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University of North Texas System

Board of Regents

Schedule of Events for
Board of Regents Meeting

University of North Texas System Building
1901 Main St, Room 712 A&B
Dallas, TX 75201

May 18-19, 2017

The University of North Texas System Board of Regents will meet on May 18 from 9:00 a.m. until
approximately 5:00 p.m. and on May 19 from 9:00 a.m. until approximately 12 p.m.

Agenda items are scheduled to follow each other consecutively and may start earlier or later than
the posted time depending on the length of the discussions and the reports of previous items.
Please note that the estimated times given in the posting are only approximate and may be
adjusted as required with no prior notice.

Any members of the Board may attend committee meetings. Because some Board members who
are not committee members may attend committee meetings and thereby create a quorum of the
full Board, committee meetings are also being posted as meetings of the full Board.

Meetings will take place at the UNT System Building. Please contact the Office of the Board
Secretary with any questions at 214.752.5545.

Thursday, May 18, 2017

9:00 am CONVENE FULL BOARD

CHANCELLOR’S REMARKS
e Better Data
e Accreditation Progress
¢ Board Schedule and Briefings

PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION
e UNT System Board of Regents: Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Student
Regent Christopher Lee

Recess Full Board to Strategic and Operational Excellence Committee.
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9:15 am STRATEGIC AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE COMMITTEE

Call to Order
e Approval of minutes of February 23, 2017 meeting

Briefing:

UNT System Administration and Institutional Strategic Plans Review
e Lee Jackson, UNT System, Chancellor
e Neal Smatresk, UNT, President
e Greg Anderson, UNTHSC, Chief Financial Officer
¢ Bob Mong, UNT Dallas, President

BACKGROUND MATERIAL
e Quarterly Operations Report
e UNTS Administration and Institutional Strategic Planning Documentation

Adjourn Strategic & Operational Excellence Committee.

10:00 am ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT SUCCESS COMMITTEE

Call to Order
e Approval of minutes February 23-24, 2017 meeting

Briefings:

Assessment of Student Learning Outcomes
e Rosemary Haggett, UNTS, Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs & Student Success
¢ Finley Graves, UNT, Provost
e Claire Peel, UNTHSC, Interim Provost
e Betty Stewart, UNT Dallas, Provost

Quarterly Academic Measures Report
¢ Rosemary Haggett, UNTS, Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs & Student Success

11:00 am FINANCE AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE

Call to Order
e Approval of minutes of February 23-24, 2017 and May 1, 2017 meeting

Briefings:

UNTHSC Campus Master Plan Update
e James Maguire, UNT System, Vice Chancellor for Facilities Planning & Construction
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Emergency Planning, Readiness, and Continuity of Operations
e Brad Scott, UNT, Director, Emergency Preparedness & Insurance Management
e Scotie Selman, UNT, Director, Risk Management Services
e Matthew Moncus, UNT, Safety Director

FY16 Consolidated Annual Financial Report Highlights
e Aaron LeMay, UNTS, Associate Vice Chancellor and Controller

Quarterly Operations Report
e Budget to Actual: Janet Waldron, UNTS, Vice Chancellor for Finance

Recess Finance and Facilities Committee.
12:30pm LUNCH
1:30 pm CONVENE FULL BOARD AND RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

Government Code, Chapter 551, Section .074 - Personnel Matters Relating to Appointment,
Employment, Evaluation, Assignment, Discipline, or Dismissal of Officers or Employees
e Consideration of individual personnel matters related to the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, discipline and dismissal of System and Institution officers or
employees

Government Code, Chapter 551, Section .071 - Consultation with Attorneys Regarding Legal
Matters or Pending and/or Contemplated Litigation or Settlement Offers
e Consultation with counsel regarding audits and any findings, conclusions or
recommendations related to those audits

2:00 pm AUDIT COMMITTEE

Call to Order
e Approval of minutes of February 23, 2017, and May 1, 2017 meeting

Action Item:

7. UNTS Acceptance of the Externally Audited UNT System FY16 Consolidated
Annual Financial Report

Briefings:

Report of Audit Activities
e Tracy Grunig, UNT System, Chief Audit Executive

UNT System Enterprise Audit Report Inventory
e Tracy Grunig, UNT System, Chief Audit Executive

BACKGROUND MATERIAL
e UNT System Consolidated Quarterly Compliance Report, December 2016 through
February 2017

Adjourn Audit Committee.
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3:30 pm CONVENE FULL BOARD AND RECESS TO EXECUTIVE SESSION

Government Code, Chapter 551, Section .072 - Deliberations Regarding the Purchase, Exchange,
Lease or Value of Real Property

Consideration of the lease and value of certain real property and improvements located
at 975 Haskell Street, Fort Worth, Tarrant County, Texas, 76107, and possible action

Government Code, Chapter 551, Section .074 - Personnel Matters Relating to Appointment,

Employment, Evaluation, Assignment, Discipline, or Dismissal of Officers or Employees

Consideration of individual personnel matters related to the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, discipline and dismissal of System and Institution officers or
employees

Consideration of individual personnel items related to Action Items 2,3,4,9,15,16
Consideration of individual personnel matters related to the compensation of and
employment agreement with the UNT Dallas President, and possible action

Government Code, Chapter 551, Section .071 - Consultation with Attorneys Regarding Legal

Matters or Pending and/or Contemplated Litigation or Settlement Offers

Consultation with counsel regarding confidential legal matters, including pending,
threatened, and contemplated litigation or settlement offers

Consultation with counsel regarding contemplated, ongoing and/or finalized
investigations and any findings, conclusions or recommendations related to those
investigations

Consultation with counsel regarding audits and any findings, conclusions or
recommendations related to those audits

Consultation with counsel on the status of negotiations and/or compliance with contracts
and agreements, including but not limited to research grants and contracts, including legal
obligations and duties and any and all related facts

Consultation with counsel regarding ethics, conflicts of interest, and contracting policies
Consultation with counsel regarding legal issues related to medical and law school
accreditation

Consultation with counsel regarding legal duties and responsibilities of members of the
Board of Regents, and System and University officers and employees

5:00 pm CONVENE FULL BOARD AND RECESS
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Friday, May 19, 2017

University of North Texas System Building
1901 Main St, Room 712 A&B

Dallas, TX 75201

9:00 am CONVENE FULL BOARD
Recess for committee meetings.

9:05 am ACADEMIC AFFAIRS AND STUDENT SUCCESS COMMITTEE

Action Item:

8. UNTS Approval and Ratification of 2017-2018 Admission Standards for UNT
System Institutions

9. UNT Approval of UNT Tenure Recommendations

10. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Bachelor of Arts Degree Program with a Major in
Latino and Mexican American Studies

11. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Bachelor of Science Degree Program with a Major
in Consumer Experience Management

12. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major
in Digital Communication Analytics

13. UNT Approval to Add Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in Data
Science

14. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major

in Advanced Data Analytics

15. UNTHSC Approval of UNTHSC Tenure Recommendations

16. UNTD Approval of UNT Dallas Tenure Recommendations

17. UNTD Approval to Add the UNT Dallas Bachelor of Business Administration
Degree with a Major in Business Analytics

Adjourn Academic Affairs & Student Success Committee.
9:45 am FINANCE AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE
Action Items:
18. UNTS Approval of Broker/Dealer List for Fiscal Year 2018
19. UNTS Amendment to Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution to the Master

Resolution Establishing the University of North Texas System Revenue
Financing System Commercial Paper Program, Series B

20. UNTS Approval of Amended Regulation 08.2000, Investment of System Funds

21. UNTS Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to
Modify the Project Scope of the Interdisciplinary Research Building at HSC

22. UNTS Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to
Modify the Scope and Budget for Sycamore Hall 27 Floor Renovation at
UNT

23. UNT Approval of a Letter of Agreement and Delegation of Authority to Negotiate

and Execute a Long-Form Agreement with Learfield Communications, LLC
to administer UNT Athletics Multi-Media Rights
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24. UNTHSC Delegation of Authority to Extend Agreement with Improving Enterprises
25. UNTHSC Authorization to Serve on Outside Board

Adjourn Finance and Facilities Committee.
10:30 am CONVENE THE FULL BOARD
CONSENT AGENDA

1. UNTS Approval of the Minutes of the February 23-24, 2017 Board Meeting, March
22 2017 Special Called Meeting by Teleconference and March 24-25, 2017
Special Called Board Meeting

2. UNT Approval of Tenure for New UNT Faculty Appointees

3. UNT Approval of UNT Recommendations for New and Continued Regents
Professor Designation

4. UNTHSC Approval of Tenure for New UNTHSC Faculty Appointee

5. UNTHSC Approval of Sub-award to Tarrant County under CDC Agreement 200-
2011-41271

6. UNTHSC Authorization to Execute an Agreement Between UNTHSC and Tarrant
County to Provide Limited Dermatologic Services to Patients Referred by
the Tarrant County Public Health Department

ACTION ITEMS:

7. UNTS Acceptance of the Externally Audited UNT System FY16 Consolidated
Annual Financial Report

8. UNTS Approval and Ratification of 2017-2018 Admission Standards for UNT
System Institutions

9. UNT Approval of UNT Tenure Recommendations

10. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Bachelor of Arts Degree Program with a Major in
Latino and Mexican American Studies

11. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Bachelor of Science Degree Program with a Major
in Consumer Experience Management

12. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major
in Digital Communication Analytics

13. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major
in Data Science

14. UNT Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major

in Advanced Data Analytics
15. UNTHSC Approval of UNTHSC Tenure Recommendations

16. UNTD Approval of UNT Dallas Tenure Recommendations

17. UNTD Approval to Add the UNT Dallas Bachelor of Business Administration
Degree with a Major in Business Analytics

18. UNTS Approval of Broker/Dealer List for Fiscal Year 2018

19. UNTS Amendment to Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution to the Master

Resolution Establishing the University of North Texas System Revenue
Financing System Commercial Paper Program, Series B
20. UNTS Approval of Amended Regulation 08.2000, Investment of System Funds
21. UNTS Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to
Modify the Project Scope of the Interdisciplinary Research Building at HSC
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22, UNTS Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to
Modify the Scope and Budget for Sycamore Hall 2 Floor Renovation at
UNT

23. UNT Approval of a Letter of Agreement and Delegation of Authority to Negotiate
and Execute a Long-Form Agreement with Learfield Communications, LLC
to administer UNT Athletics Multi-Media Rights

24. UNTHSC Delegation of Authority to Extend Agreement with Improving Enterprises

25. UNTHSC Authorization to Serve on Outside Board

11:00 am RECESS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION (Room #711)

Government Code, Chapter 551, Section .072 - Deliberations Regarding the Purchase, Exchange,
Lease or Value of Real Property
e Consideration of the lease and value of certain real property and improvements located at
975 Haskell Street, Fort Worth, Tarrant County, Texas, 76107, and possible action

Government Code, Chapter 551, Section .074 - Personnel Matters Relating to Appointment,
Employment, Evaluation, Assignment, Discipline, or Dismissal of Officers or Employees
e Consideration of individual personnel matters related to the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, discipline and dismissal of System and Institution officers or
employees
e Consideration of individual personnel matters related to the compensation of and
employment agreement with the UNT Dallas President, and possible action
e Discussion of matters related to the search to fill the position of Chancellor, UNT System

Government Code, Chapter 551, Section .071 - Consultation with Attorneys Regarding Legal
Matters or Pending and/or Contemplated Litigation or Settlement Offers
e Consultation with counsel regarding confidential legal matters, including pending,
threatened, and contemplated litigation or settlement offers
e Consultation with counsel regarding contemplated, ongoing and/or finalized
investigations and any findings, conclusions or recommendations related to those
investigations
e Consultation with counsel regarding audits and any findings, conclusions or
recommendations related to those audits
e  Consultation with counsel on the status of negotiations and/or compliance with contracts
and agreements, including but not limited to research grants and contracts, including legal
obligations and duties and any and all related facts
e  Consultation with counsel regarding ethics, conflicts of interest, and contracting policies
e Consultation with counsel regarding legal issues related to medical and law school
accreditation
e Consultation with counsel regarding legal duties and responsibilities of members of the
Board of Regents, and System and University officers and employees

12:30 pm  Reconvene the Board in Open Session (Room #712) to consider action
on Executive Session items, if any

12:35 pm ADJOURNMENT
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MINUTES

BOARD OF REGENTS
Strategic and Operational Excellence Committee
February 23, 2017

The Strategic and Operational Excellence Committee of the Board of Regents of the University of
North Texas System convened on Thursday, February 23, 2017 in Founders Hall, Room 138, at
the University of North Texas at Dallas, 7300 University Hills Blvd., Dallas, Texas, with the
following members in attendance: Regents Milton Lee, A.K. Mago, and Al Silva.

There being a quorum present the meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman Lee at
10:45 a.m. Pursuant to a motion by Regent A.K. Mago seconded by Regent Al Silva, the Committee
approved the minutes of the November 17, 2016, meeting of the Strategic and Operational
Excellence Committee on a 3-0 vote.

Committee Chair Lee noted that the Committee’s charter and calendar of topics is reviewed
annually and asked the Committee if there were any comments, questions, or amendments to
offer to the material presented to the Committee. Hearing none, the charter and schedule of topics
stood as presented.

The Committee had two briefings. For the first briefing, UNT System Chancellor Lee J ackson,
UNT Dallas President Bob Mong, UNT President Neal Smatresk, and UNT Health Science Center
President Michael Williams provided the UNT System Administration and Institutional
Strategic Plans Review.

The second briefing, IT Strategic Plans and Excellence Measures, was presented by Rama
Dhuwaraha, UNT System Chief Information Officer.

There being no further business, the Committee meeting adjourned at 12:00 p.m.

Submitted By:

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁr&
Rosemary R. Hdggett

Board Secretary

Date:_ ]orch 4, 2017

Audit Committee

University of North Texas System
Board of Regents Meeting
February 23, 2017

Page 1 of |
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UNT System
Strategic Planning Update

Presen ted by Chancellor Lee F. Jackson — May 18, 2017



PLAN PRIORITIES: UNT System Administration Strategic Goals

UNTS THEME KEY OBJECTIVES MEASURES / 5 YR TARGETS

% of Academic Programs with

Endorsed Priorities and Goals
LEARNING &

DISCOVERY: 1. Ensure quality academic program offerings

Total No. of Degrees Awarded

% of Budget Invested in Primary

Mission Service
SUSTAINABLE

o)A RN (6312, Increase mission-specific investment

B % of Statewide Average Private

Contributions Per FTSE

% of Students Who Would
QUALITY Recommend Their Program

23414 (e 25 Je1:8 3. Increase student engagement and satisfaction

LIFETIME SUCCESS: % Graduates with Institutionally

Approved High Impact Career

Experience

% Satisfaction of Internal/External

Customers
PEOPLE &

TEAMWORK: 4. Increase service quallty and satisfaction

% of engaged employees

TARGET

BASELINE 0O

TARGET
2016
BASELINE

TARGET

BASELINE

TARGET
BASELINE

TARGET

BASELINE 0

TARGET
BASELINE

TARGET

BASELINE

TARGET

BASELINE

Target

SYSTEM

STATUS

100%

10,192
9,857
9,243

80%

72%

100%
32%

100%

100%
34%

100%

100%

35%

Baseline Positive Progress Ragevelrknof
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UNT Examples — Program Goals

Program
goals
correlate to
strategic
planning
themes

UNT Planning Priorities — College of Information (excerpt)

Goal Owner

Theme

Key Objective

MWeasure

2020
Target

FY
2007

FY
2018

FY
2019

FY
2020

Plan for Measure Achievement

>

Information
Science

Learning
and
Discovery

Increase total
research
expenditures
and elevate
national
prominence

Increase
research
funding

S5M

15%

Encourage faculty to pursue external funding
that promote s their research and enhances
students success. Provide college/dept internal
summer research grants for faculty seed
funding. Adjust T/TT faculty workload to allow
faculty to focus on re search/external funding
opportunities.

Sustainable
Growth,
Finance,

and
Resources

Increase
revenuesand
value

Increase #
studentsin the
BSIS
Undergraduate
program

Create an UG cohort at Frisco for the B5I5-data
science concentration. Grow the program
online targeting paraprofessionals working in
libraries/information centers. Use the
GradTrack option to recruit additional GD
students nationally.

People and
Teamwork

Create a data
driven culture
that focuseson
continuous
improvement

Increase #
multi-authored
publications

Make it mandatory for PhD studentsto publish
at least 2 publicationsas a condition to
graduate. Provide faculty/student re search
grants with the condition that the faculty must
work with at least one PhD student to secure
the department internal funding. The funding
amount increases asthe number of PhD
studentsworking on the project increase.




UNT Examples, Program Goals — Cont.

UNT Planning Priorities — College of Liberal Arts & Sciences (excerpt)

Goal Owner

Theme

Key Objective

Measure

2020
Target

FY
2017

FY
2018

FY
2019

FY
2020

Plan for Measure Achievement

Technical
Communication

Sustainable
Growth,
Finance,

and
Resources

Increase
revenue and
value

Increase # graduate
students

50

20

Use Innovative Enrollment Growth
Grant to move campus certificate
cour ses online. Market to under-
employed individuals in Texas with
English MA four 8-week courses
running every term so individuals
can fini sh within 32 weeks.

Increase total
research
expenditures
and elevate
national
prominence

Establish a user experience
research lab to facilitate
faculty re search, expand
outreach to industry, and

train our undergraduate and
graduate students for
industry jobs

Work with CLASS Advisory Board to
obtain private funding to lease and
equip a facility in Denton. A Dept
Advisory Board member, a national
leader in user experience in industry,
will advise Dept.

Quality
Experiences
for Lifetime

Success

Prepare all
graduates to
be
competitive in
the
marketplace

Increase professional
development opportunities
for our BA majors(ETC
networking/workshop
events & internships)

Require new course, TECM 2800, for
majors. Students will attend career
fair, attend local professional group
meeting, participate in deptresume
book, and receive industry feedback.




UNT Examples, Program Goals — Cont.

UNT Planning Priorities — College of Engineering (excerpt)

Theme

Key Objective

Measure

2020
Target

FY
2017

FY
2018

FY
2019

FY
2020

Plan for Measure Achievement

Biomedical
Engineering

Learning
and
Discovery

Increase total
re search
expenditures
and elevate
national
prominence

Increase

restricted

re search
expenditures

$0.5M

20%

Hire senior faculty with a proven record in
competitive funding. Hire junior faculty with
excellent research credential sand good prospects
for funded research. Encourage faculty to work in
inter-disciplinary teams on large grants.

Sustainable
Growvth,
Finance,

and
Resources

Increase
revenues and
value

Increase #
GD students

Recruit high quality domestic and international
studentsby organizing visits to universities in the
US and abroad. Offer assistantships/ scholar ships
to outstanding students.

Quality
Experiences
for Lifetime

Success

Prepare all
graduates to be
competitive in
the marketplace

Increase #
UG degrees
awarded

Recruit high quality high school studentswith
good SAT/ACT scores and dassrank. Recruit from
technical schools such as PLTW and Texas
Academy of Biomedical Sciences. Work with
college advisorsto ensure that students take
classes on time and in the right sequence. Ensure
that support services such as tutoring are in place
for students, in addition to outstanding teaching
faculty providing state of the art education.




[B\UN SYSTEM
Employee Engagement Groups

UNT Denton UNTHSC UNT Dallas UNT System Gallup Database
2017

RARAARAARND

M Engaged Not Engaged M Actively Disengaged

Gallup: Three Types of Employees

ENGAGED: These employees are loyal and psychologically committed to the organization. They are more
productive and more likely to stay with their institution.

These employees may be productive, but they are not psychologically connected to their
institution. They are more likely to miss workdays and leave the organization.

ACTIVELY DISENGAGED: These employees are physically present but psychologically absent. They are
unhappy with their work situation and insist on sharing this unhappiness with their colleagues.




Gallup Engagement Survey 2017 Level 1

Level 1 Net Promoter Score Respondents Grand Mean

B UNT System Overall . ;[;';'s:i‘;:”h a 2 2 This is the greatest number of 3 ] 8 ] This represents the unit's overall
respandents on any one guestion engagement on a scale af 1-5

@ % Promolers

Question|D “~  Question Short Siz Gallup percentile Freguency Distribution

% responded-
Know what's expected am

39.00%
@ 1-5Strongly Disagree

Materials and equipment Qo2 . 16.83%
Opportunity to do best Qo3 .

Recognition qos [HIRESEN 15.84%
B
I

18.00% 2-Disagree

3-Meutral

Cares about me Qos 26.26% 4-Agree

Development Q06 19.00% 33.00% @ 5-Strongly Agree

Mission/Purpose Qos

16.16% 3535%

Opinions Count a7 [N 18.00% 37.00%
H
i

Committed to quality Qo9 17.00% 42.00%

Best friend a0 [NEEORIN 1200%  25.00%

Progress an | 18.00% 31.00%
Leamn and Grow Q12 . 20.00% 33.00%




[BINIR SYSTEM

Q1. I know what’s expected at work.

RESPONDENTS

423

Frequency Distribution Mean Percentile Rank - Gallup Overall Gallup Overall
I 2 A W4 W5 Gallup Overall Mean &0 Mean 75

QO1: | know what is expected of me at work. 4.21 L% 25 310% 4-39% 245 28 4.48 4.74

Current Mean




Q5. My supervisor, or someone at work, seems to care about me as a person.

RESPONDENTS

422

Frequency Distribution Mean Percentile Rank -  Gallup Overall Gallup Overall

Total N CumentMean o 'ms . 2am4 m5 Gallup Overall Mean 50 Mean 75

Q05: My supervisor, or someone at work, seems to 422 423 1A% 2-4% 3-12% 4-26% 5-54% 40 496 PP
care about me as a person. ’ N I - :




Q12. This last year, I have had opportunities at work to learn and grow.

RESPONDENTS

417

Frequency Distribution Mean Percentile Rank -  Gallup Overall  Gallup Overall

Total N Current Mean E1m2 3 4m5 Gallup Overall Mean 50 Mean 75

Q12: This last year, | have had opportunities at work 1:4% 2-7% 3-20% 4:33% 5-36%
to learn and grow. 417 3.92 - — 36 417 456




UNT Strategic Goals

Neal J. Smatresk — Strategic Planning Committee — May 18, 2017



PLAN PRIORITIES: UNT Strategic Goals

UNTS THEME

KEY OBIECTIVES

LEARNING &
DISCOVERY:

1. Increase total research expenditures and
elevate national prorminence

SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH,
FINANCE &
RESOURCES:

2. Increase revenuas and values

QUALITY
A= S Te ] 3. Prepare all graduates to be competitive in
LIFETIME the rmarketplace
SUCCESS:

PEOPLE &
TEANMWORK:

4. Create a data-driven culture that focuses
on continuous improvameant

Lost Edieed - 05,18 17

MEASURES /5 YR TARGETS
Increase restricted research expanditures n
) ) TARGET
Increase # of programs ranked nationally in 20
the top 100 BASELIME
TARGET
Increase cash donations recaived H
BASELINE
TARGET
Increase # of graduate students 8,042 N1e
BASELINE
TARGET
Increase # of degrees awarded 016
BASELINE
Incraase % of UG graduating students TARGET
recaiving significant career developrnent 50%
through university programs BASELIME
TARGET
Increase % of engaged employees 100%
BASELIME
TARGET
Increase % of faculty and staff who have 50%
participated in culture change training BASELINE

STATUS

5315

512,9

516.1

b2

573.3
516.7
513.2

8,042
5,782

6,672

9,051
8,552
8432

50%

100%

35%

50%

20.3%

Bameline PoGithee PIOBMess

Megative Trend

UNT

Page 20 of
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New Faculty Onboarding
Process Improvement Update

Joint effort with Toyota to apply the Toyota Production System to:

e Streamline new faculty onboarding experience to
provide seamless transition

* Reduce issues with onboarding new faculty
* Reduce research delays

* Provide a customer friendly approach to new faculty
onboarding

Dr. Terry Pohlen, Associate Dean, College of Business, UNT
Brandi Renton, Assistant Vice President Organizational Behavior, UNT
Scott Porter, Senior Manager, Toyota Motor North America




Faculty on-boarding process UNT

Process “Owners”
ntified by step

Kaizen Strategy

. Map process detail — step by step

. Develop a tool to see “status at a glance”—a
visual board of process, defined process lead-
times, candidate status "

. Identify problems that create struggles for new members Stz_ignatlo_nkl
faculty: onboarding portal, benefits, EIS access, " i oints quic
grant transfer, etc. identified pd ifi qd y

. Solve problems 1 X 1 by College jaentitie

. Standardize new Process




Immediate actions and improvements

Before After

May|Jun | Jul Apr|May{Jun| Jul
1 (1 (1|1 |1

TR

Offer letters accepted within ten days of being extended

Electronic on-boarding portal access made available upon creation of employee university ID
(EUID/EMPLID) with faculty completing within ten days with any exceptions noted and addressed

I-9 processing occurring when new faculty on-campus for house-hunting or arriving early

Email access, Onedrive storage, and on-line library access provided within 24 hours of
EUID/EMPLID generation

Parking and benefits directly contacting new faculty hires with key information
Faculty mentors being assigned prior to on-boarded faculty members’ arrival

Incoming faculty loaded into the Employee Retirement System (ERS) after completing the on-
boarding portal to enable benefits selection to commence on September 1

Decoupling of UNT department budget tables from other units to enable ePARs to begin
processing immediately following budget approval by Board of Regents




Other processes impacted

Faculty Onboarding—IT System Interfaces|

Research and grants

Sends CUID/EMPLID
information to Chair

Enters CAMReq
Infarmaticn and EI5
creates EUIDY

EMPLID Sends EUID/EMPLID and
imstructions to initiate
Dnbsarding to the employes

Facilities and space

Academic Resources

VISA and immigration

-9 & e-Verify By

CAMBes)
reates an Acti £t License AZURE - SYNC UNT Confirmation of
i y create Outlaa informatian with active EUID/
or emplayee Claud EMPLID

¥

Technology acquisition for new hires

Ernployes has steess b

i b
by setting pasword }/ k P EI5, active email, and VPN

Benefits

in AMS and WIFI azcess

Employee

Parking

Department

Communications




UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS AT DALLAS

UNT Dallas Strategic Plan

Bob Mong - Presented to: Strategic Planning Committee — May 18, 2017



Plan Priorities: UNT Dallas Strategic Goals UNT DALLAS

UNTS THEME KEY OBJECTIVES MEASURES / 5 YR TARGETS STATUS

TARGET
No. of Programs of Excellence compared to

national peers
1. Establish academic programs of R BASELINE

excellence that address regional and
student needs

LEARNING &
DISCOVERY: TARGET
Priority Programs Aligned to Workforce

Needs

2017
BASELINE

TARGET $5,000,000

. n 2017 $886,541
Total Cash Received $5 Million 2016 $662,600

BASELINE ~ $592,173

SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH, 2. Increase annual fundraising and
AL\ [e 35988 enrollment to achieve sustainable size TARGET

RESOURCES: 2017 3,030
% of Headcount Total Enroliment Goal 2016 2,488

BASELINE 2,575

TARGET
% of Graduates with University- sponsored 2017

high impact internships/career experiences 2018
QUALITY & 2 ps/ 2 BASELINE

213114\ [¢ 25 3. Increase graduates with quality learning
el {3511\ outcomes and career experiences
SUCCESS: % of Graduates with Outstanding

Communications Skills —

TARGET
Net Promoter Score for Students Who
Would Recommend Their Program

2017

BASELINE
PEOPLE &

TEAMWORK: 4. Build a strong culture of shared values

TARGET

% of Engaged Employees
BASELINE




Learning & Discovery UNT DALLAS

Establish academic programs of excellence that address regional

and student needs

Measure: Number of programs of excellence compared to national
peers (T: 5; R: planning phase)

Measure: Priority programs aligned to workforce needs (T: 10; R: 5)
 School of Business — Logistics
* School of Counseling & Human Services — Mental Health
 School of Education — Bilingual Education
 School of Liberal Art & Sciences — Public Health
College of Law — Juris Doctorate




Sustainable Growth, Finance & Resources Uunt DaLias

Increase annual fundraising and enrollment to achieve sustainable
size
Measure: Total cash received (T: S5M; R: FY17-5886,541)

* FY 2017 to date = $294,368.64
e 17.7% of 5 year target

Measure: Total enrollment - Headcount (T: 5,000; R: FY17 - 3,030)
 Data updated each fall semester — certified enroliment
e Fall 2016 headcount — 3,030

* Up 21.8% year over year certified numbers

Spring 2017 headcount — 2,979

 Up 22% year over year certified numbers

Summer 2017 is up 16% year over year as of 5/1/2017




Quality Experiences for Lifetime Success  unrDauias

Increase graduates with quality learning outcomes and career experiences

Measure: Percentage of graduates with University sponsored high impact

internships/career experiences (T: 100%; R: Fall 2016— 30.2%)

 Degrees expected to be awarded in Spring 2017:
School of Education - 55 (45 Undergraduates & 10 Graduates)
. HSML - 15
. Master’s in Counseling - 13
. Logistics and Supply Chain Management — 4
Total expected degrees awarded — 338 (287 Undergraduate & 51 Graduate)
*  Currently labelling additional courses with an official experiential learning designation

Measure: Percentage of graduates with outstanding communication skills
(T:85%; R: start-up phase)

 Speaking Center on campus now open; will roll out demonstrated speaking competencies Fall 2017
. Currently researching options for ePortfolios




People & Teamwork UNT DALLAS

Build a strong culture of shared values
Measure: Percentage of students who would recommend their program

(T 100%; R: start-up phase)
NPS for Spring 2017 graduating students is 40.3 (-100 to 100 scale)
67 out of 119 students completed the Spring 2017 survey (56%)
Graduating seniors will be surveyed at the end of every fall semester
All freshman, sophomore, junior, and seniors will be surveyed at the end of every spring

semester (currently in progress)

Measure: Percentage of engaged employees (T: 100%; R: FY17 —44%)

e FY17-Gallup
e  Survey completed Spring 2017
e 192 respondents; 60% participation




UNTHSC Strategy Update

Greg Anderson, CFO — Presented To: Strategic Planning Committee — May 18, 2017



PLAN PRIORITIES: UNT Health Science Center Strategic Goals

UNTS THEME

LEARNING &
DISCOVERY:

SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH,
FINANCE &

RESOURCES:

QuAaLITY
EXPERIENCES
FOR LIFETIME

SUCCESS:

PEOPLE &
TEAMWORK:

bt Elitea’ - GEGEIT

KEY OBJECTIVES

1. Transform to a high performing center

2. Strengthen H5C long-term viability

% of programs with =90% satisfaction

with quality of teaching

4. Build culture based on values

MEASURES / 5 YR TARGETS

2% of schools and institutes meeting high

performance criteria

Research award dollars increased

Total donor funds received

# of total GME slots

% of programs with >=90% satisfaction
with quality of teaching

% of programs with =90% satisfaction
with quality of education

% of engaged employees

% of New Hires hired for Values and
Competencies

TARGET
2015

BASELIME

TARGET
Z016

BASELIME

$55M
550M
TARGET
2017
2016
BASELIMNE
TARGET
100% 2016
BASELIMNE

TARGET

TARGET
2017
Z016

BASELIME

2016

BASELINE
TARGET

100%
BASELINE
TARGET
2017
100% 2016
BASELINE

STATUS
100%
2%
]
855
£47.2
542.7
S50
5113
55,3
53.4
550
455
390
360
100%
36%
455
1005%
7%
365%
100%
43%
100%
45.0%
21.3%
I
Target Baselime Positive Pragress

UNT/HEALTH
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SYSTEM

PLAN PRIORITIES: UNT System Administration Strategic Goals

UNTS THEME KEY OBJECTIVES MEASURES / 5 YR TARGETS STATUS

% of Academic Programs with VAREET 100%
L 100%

Endorsed Priorities and Goals BASELINE 0

2B LIG 1. Ensure quality academic program offerings

DISCOVERY:  [&¥ quality prog g

TARGET 10,192
Total No. of Degrees Awarded 10,192 2016 9,857
BASELINE 9,243

% of Budget Invested in Primary 80% LARCEY 80%
Mission Service ° BASELINE 72%

SUSTAINABLE

o)A A\ A2, Increase mission-specific investment
G % of Statewide Average Private 100% TARGET 100%
Contributions Per FTSE ° BASELINE 32%
% of Students Who Would 100% TARGET 100%
QUALITY Recommend Their Program > BASELINE 0
2 015\ (e Je] 183, Increase student engagement and satisfaction
LIFETIME SUCCESS: % Graduates with Institutionally
Approved High Impact Career 100% TARGET 100%
Experience BASELINE 34%
% Satisfaction of Internal/External 100% TARGET 100%
Customers > BASELINE
TARGET 100%
% of engaged employees 100%
BASELINE 35%

Target Baseline Positive Progress Negative Trend

PEOPLE &

TEAMWORK: 4. Increase service quality and satisfaction
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UNT System Administration Strategic Plan At-a-Glance

UNTS Theme Key Obiectives Initiatives Measures

IE,IE:?;\CSESY& 1. UNTS: Guide and support high

: performing standards and goals for
Create and continuously every academic, research, and
TR clinical program (UNT System)
innovative academic (08/31/31)

1.1 Require clear goals for each academic, student support, and research program on UNTS campuses, working closely with Presidents, Provosts, and other leaders

to establish clear understanding of targets for above average peer performance in the areas most important to each program. (UNTS VC: Haggett) (08/31/21) ik ity it all ez s

Targets
YEAR YEAR
Baseline 2016 2 Year 5 Year Optional Optional
100%

2. UNTS: Maintain a thorough,
regular evidence-based process of

i performance reporting and
il to improve i

(UNT System) (08/31/31)

2.1 Develop and maintain a formal assessment with each campus annually to review progress and promote innovation opportunities (UNTS VC: Haggett)
(08/31/21)

ES

: Formal progress assessments completed each year

Initiatives Measures

3.1 Establish service level goals and targets for all appropriate administrative and student services, measure performance against benchmark data, and assist

UNTS Theme
SUSTAINABLE

Key Obijectives
3. UNTS: Instill performance

Baseline

Optional Optional

gg?OVI/JI{FéE?NANCE & with peer benchmarks, |campus officials in doing the same for key campus-based services (UNTS VC: Waldron) (08/31/21) M: Meeting service level targets 100%
goals, regular 3.2 Implement technology tools to track service performance on a continuing basis across all key services (UNTS VC: Waldron) (08/31/21)
Achieve exceptional service , and custqmg fegdback M: Automate and report all service performance 100%
ey il | o W T Jience. (UNTS V/C: Waldron) (08/31/21)
includi institutions (UNT System reate a culture of service excellence. : Waldron,
clidingbtseny ( ystem) M: Customer satisfaction with quality of service 100%
08/31/31)
(¢ )
§ 4.1 Manage total i by ishi i measures in each higher education expenditure category and reporting consistently. (UNTS VC:
4. UNTS: Manage total expenditures |wajdron) (08/31/21) M: Value-added budget reporting format 100%
and student-borne costs, and be able
to provide a strong and i — - — — — - — — 5 =
Value proposition for a UNTS 4.2 Maintain appropriate tuition and financial aid strategies to reduce student costs to degree, constrain student debt, and maintain quality and competitive
ion (UNT System) (08/31/31) position. (UNTS VC: Waldron) (08/31/21) M: Measure & report cost to degree compared to targets/peers 100%
4.3 Improve financial net position. (UNTS VC: Waldron) (08/31/21)
M: # of weeks of operating cash reserves 18
5.1 Establish and maintain high performance standards for all financial management responsibilities (UNTS VC: Waldron) (08/31/21) .
5. UNTS: Provide comprehensive B OIS (i ERER g &
support and guidance in core system (575 provide services and leadership in master planning, real estate services, development and delivery of capital facilities through collaborative processes with
services that are excellent, timely, | campus ip, achieving high functionality, cost effectiveness, and i ion. (UNTS VC: Maguire) (08/31/21) M: Customer satisfaction with quality of service 100%
cost effective, and responsive (UNT
System) (08/31/31) 5.3 Provide valuable guidance to UNTS and its institutions to maintain full compliance with all relevant laws, regulations, and standards. (UNTS VC: Footer)
(08/31/21) M: Customer satisfaction with quality of service 100%

alumni education opportunities
(UNT System) (08/31/31)

UNTS Theme Key Obijectives Initiatives Measures Baseline Optional Optional
QUALITY EXPERIENCES 6.1 Broaden the exposure of all UNTS students to career-related experiences and leadership and team-based activities. (UNTS VC: Haggett) (08/31/21)
FOR LIFETIME 6. UNTS: Ensure the design of
SUCCESS: quality experiential learning, M: Graduates with lated experien 100%
leadership, and teamwork activities
Provide quality experiences |in all academic programs and a more
for lifetime success for all - sludgent record/of 6.2 Establish a comprehensive portfolio opportunity for all students to recognize their significant achievements in addition to those reflected on transcripts (UNTS
students i : \/C: Haggett) (08/31/21)
experience beyond the transcript M: Percentage of students utilizing student portfolio product 100%
(UNT System) (08/31/31)
7. UNTS: Develop alumni
through student
alumni surveys, and 7.1 Promote the building of broader alumni participation in student support programs and continuing educational opportunities. (UNTS VC: Haggett) (08/31/21) M: Yearly percentage increase in alumni engagement 10%

Work" (UNT System) (08/31/31)

UNTS Theme Key Obijectives Initiatives Measures Baseline Optional Optional

PEOPLE & TEAMWORK: T —— 8.1 Create a culture of leadership collaboration, empowerment, and accountability. (UNTS VC: Waldron) (08/31/21)

8. UINTS- Establish a culture o M: Leadership training program participation 100%
Develop the fullest potential K -
of every team member and satisfaction (UNT System) 8.2 Regularly assess employee and sati: ionand i findings into all evaluations of administrators. (UNTS VC: Waldron) (08/31/31)

(08/31/31) M: % employee engagement and satisfaction 100%

b u 9.1 Select an externally sponsored Best Place to Work program and become recognized. (UNTS VC: Waldron) (08/31/31)
9 URIER CEEaB A et AEED M: Recognition by Best Place to Work program 100%
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PLAN PRIORITIES: UNT Strategic Goals

UNTS THEME KEY OBJECTIVES

LEARNING &
DISCOVERY:

1. Increase total research expenditures and
elevate national prominence

SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH,
FINANCE &

RESOURCES:

2. Increase revenues and values

QUALITY

2 (J3114\ (25 0] 3. Prepare all graduates to be competitive in
LIFETIME the marketplace
SUCCESS:

4. Create a data-driven culture that focuses
on continuous improvement

PEOPLE &
TEAMWORK:

Last Edited - 05.10.17

MEASURES / 5 YR TARGETS
TARGET
Increase restricted research expenditures $31.5M 2016
BASELINE
. . TARGET
Increase # of programs ranked nationally in 70

the top 100 BASELINE
TARGET
Increase cash donations received $23.3M 2016
BASELINE
TARGET
Increase # of graduate students 8,042 2016
BASELINE
TARGET
Increase # of degrees awarded 2016
BASELINE
Increase % of UG graduating students TARGET

receiving significant career development 50%
through university programs BASELINE
TARGET

Increase % of engaged employees 100%
BASELINE
TARGET

Increase % of faculty and staff who have 50%
participated in culture change training > BASELINE

UNT

STATUS

$31.5
$12.9
$16.1

70

62

$23.3
$16.7
$13.2

8,042
6,782
6,672

9,051
8,552
8,432

50%

29%

100%

35%

50%

20.3%

Target Baseline Positive Progress Negative Trend
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UNT System Alignment

UNT - Institutional Strategic Plan At A Glance Sep-Aug | Sep-Aug | Sep-Aug | Sep-Aug | Sep-Aug
2015-2016 2017-2018 | 2020-2021 | 2025-2026 | 2030-2031
UNTS Theme UNT Key Objectives UNT Initiatives UNT Measures FY'16 FY'18 FY'21 FY'26 FY'31
LEARNING & 1. UNT: Strengthen the quality, 1.1 Establish off-site instructional facilities - Finley Graves (8/31/21) M: total # of off-site instructional facilities 2 4 5 5 5
DISCOVERY: numbers and accessibility of academic
offerings to address evolving student 1.2 Increase SCH through distance education offerings - Finley Graves (8/31/21) M: total # distance education SCH 157,481| 173,458 198,165| 239,889 271,674
1. Create and and regional economic and workforce
continuously improve |needs. 1.3 Achieve re-accreditation through the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Commission on College - Bob Brown (12/31/17) M: % of reaccreditation process complete 97% _ _ _ _
vibrant and
innovative academic 1.4 Review and improve comparative status and rankings of academic programs - Finley Graves (8/31/31) M: # of programs nationally ranked in top 100 in their field 49 64 70 75 80
communities
1.5 Evaluate and adjust academic programs within colleges and schools to address emerging needs - Finley Graves (08/31/21) M: % of programs reviewing curricula on a 3-year cycle 0% 50% 100% 100% 100%
2. UNT: Enhance research activities 2.1 Initiate Institutes of Research Excellence and establish functional governance model - Tom McCoy (08/31/31) M: $ grant revenue received annually 0 $4M $8M $13M $25M
in key established and emerging areas
of strength to promote innovation, 2.2 Strengthen faculty in key established and emerging areas - Tom McCoy (08/21/2021) M: net increase in total # of additional new faculty hired in identified key areas 1 5 12 20 50
entrepreneurialism and increase
research funding. 2.3 Increase private sponsored research agreements (SRAs) - Tom McCoy (08/31/21) M: total # of new SRAs executed annually 2 6 12 17 25
2.4 Build intellectual property portfolio - Tom McCoy (08/31/31) M: total # of new licenses executed annually 1 2 4 5 7
2.5 Optimize and expand research space - Tom McCoy (08/31/21) M: # of square feet of research space 280,691| 300,000{ 315,000 320,000 400,000
SF SF SF SF SF
2.6 Establish plan and schedule for participation in Texas National Research University Fund - Tom McCoy (08/31/21) M: total annual restricted research expenditures as a % of $45M 40% 44% 67% 111% 178%
2.7 Increase graduate student funding - Finley Graves (08/31/21) M: average UNT graduate stipends compared to average in OSU Graduate Stipend Study 109% 110% 112% 113% 115%
2.8 Align promotion and tenure standards to our national prominence goal - Finley Graves (08/31/16) M: % of department P&T standards reviewed and improved to aspirant standards on 5-year cycle 100% _ _ _ _
2015-2016 2017-2018 | 2020-2021 | 2025-2026 | 2030-2031
UNTS Theme UNT Key Objectives UNT Initiatives UNT Measures FY'16 FY'18 FY'21 FY'26 FY'31
SUSTAINABLE 3. UNT: Improve management of 3.1 Improve financial net position - Bob Brown (08/31/21) M: # of weeks of operating funds in reserves 15 16 17 20 22
GROWTH, FINANCE & [fiscal and physical resources to
RESOURCES: enhance efficiencies and cost savings. | 3-2 Establish user friendly financial dashboards - Bob Brown (08/31/21) M: # of interactive dashboards 2 5 7 9 15
5 Achieve 3.3 Improve and expand campus physical infrastructure - Bob Brown (08/31/21) M: % of facilities with renovation age greater than 25 years 69% 67% 65% 58% 50%
exceptional service : , . , : .
and value for all 4. UNT: Increase key measures of 4.1 Increase philanthropic support - David Wolf (08/31/21) M: total $ annual cash received $14.9M( $19.1M $25.4M| $35.9M| $46.4M
) : engagement and fundraising.
customers including _ _
sidleie 4.2 Increase number of donors - David Wolf (08/31/21) M: increase the total # of donors 10,000 10,500 11,250 12,500 13,750
4.3 Expand alumni network and engagement - David W olf (08/31/21) M: increase total # UNT Alumni Association members 9,000 10,500 12,000 14,000 16,000
4.4 Increase new investment into UNT Foundation and University Endowments (permanent and quasi) - David Wolf (08/31/21) M: new gift $ additions to endowments and quasi-endowments per year $3.0M $4.0M $5.5M $7.5M $10M
5. UNT: Improve student and 5.1 Implement mobile application that provides enterprise solution for most valued functions and information to current and prospective M: % of process complete 8% 100% _ _ _
administrative customer service. students - Shannon Goodman (08/31/18)
5.2 Work with UNT System to improve shared and campus administrative functions to develop high quality services and data systems - Bob |[M: % of service level targets met 90% 92% 96% 98% 98%
Brown (08/31/21)
6. UNT: Adopt focused strategies to 6.1 Increase enrollment by developing and implementing a robust student enrollment plan - Shannon Goodman (08/31/21) M: total # of headcount enrollment (Denton & off-site instructional facilities) 37,175 38,557 40,665 43,010 45,263
improve the quality and diversity of the
student population. 6.2 Implement robust CRM and marketing automation software - Shannon Goodman (08/31/18) M: % of process complete 50% 100% _ _ _
6.3 Achieve minority-serving institution (MSI) status - Joanne Woodard (08/31/18) M: % complete 50% 100% _ _ _
6.4 Achieve Hispanic—serving institution (HSI) status - Joanne Woodard (08/31/21) M: % complete 60% 80% 100% _ _
6.5 Increase the number of National Merit Scholars - Shannon Goodman (08/31/21) M: # of new National Merit Scholars annually 15 17 20 25 30
6.6 Improve the overall quality of the entering class (FTIC) - Shannon Goodman (08/31/21) M: % of entering FTIC students in top 25% of high school class 55%| 56.10% 58.60% 62.60%| 66.50%
2015-2016 2017-2018 | 2020-2021 | 2025-2026 | 2030-2031
UNTS Theme UNT Key Objectives UNT Initiatives UNT Measures FY'16 FY'18 FY'21 FY'26 FY'31
QUALITY 7. UNT: Foster and support student 7.1 Increase retention numbers by creating a comprehensive retention program designed to identify and address students' academic and well{M: % first year (fall-to-fall) FTIC retention 79.17%| 79.71% 80.61% 83.16%| 85.42%
EXPERIENCES FOR [persistence and success. being needs- Elizabeth With (08/31/21)
LIFETIME SUCCESS: 7.2 Improve 6-year graduation rate (UNT Only; cohort based) - Shannon Goodman (08/31/21) M: % six year graduation rate 51.30%| 52.80% 53.40%| 54.40%| 55.40%
3. Provide quality 7.3 Increase degrees awarded - Shannon Goodman (08/31/21) M: total # degrees awarded 8,803 8,853 9,140 9,526 9,958
experiences for
lifetime success for |8. UNT: Prepare all students to be 8.1 Expand professional development and internship opportunities available to students - Finley Graves (08/31/21) M: # of programs included in QEP 0 20 50 100 125
all students competitive in the marketplace.
8.2 Establish new and expand current programs to improve student career preparedness - Elizabeth With (08/31/21) M: % of students participating in professional development and internship opportunities 25% 33% 50% 55% 60%
2015-2016 2017-2018 | 2020-2021 | 2025-2026 | 2030-2031
UNTS Theme UNT Key Objectives UNT Initiatives UNT Measures FY'16 FY'18 FY'21 FY'26 FY'31
PEOPLE & 9. UNT: Recruit, retain, develop and 9.1 Establish a program to improve mentoring, training and career development support for staff - Bob Brown (12/31/21) M: % of staff participation 50% 60% 80% 85% 90%
TEAMWORK: support an outstanding team of faculty
and staff. 9.2 Increase participation of staff mid-level managers receiving training for upper-level responsibility - Bob Brown (08/31/21) M: % of staff mid-level manager participation 10% 20% 30% 35% 35%
4. Develop the fullest
potential of every 9.3 Expand mentoring and career development for new full-time faculty - Finley Graves (08/31/18) M: % new full-time faculty participating in mentoring programs 50% 100% _ _ _
team member : : : I :
9.4 Ensure robust academic leadership development- Finley Graves (08/31/21) M: # of faculty participating in leadership development programs 82 95 110 120 120
10. UNT: Develop a common sense | 10.1 Develop and implement a campus climate assessment process - Joanne Woodard (08/31/21) M: % of employee engagement and satisfaction 25% 50% 100% 100% 100%

of purpose based on best practices

5/11/2017 4:07 PM
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. . UNT HEALTH
PLAN PRIORITIES: UNT Health Science Center Strategic Goals BCIENCE CENTER

UNTS THEME KEY OBJECTIVES MEASURES / 5 YR TARGETS STATUS

TARGET 100%
o N . .
% of schools an<.:I |n§t|tutes meeting high 100% 5016 R
performance criteria
LEARNING & saseune I
1. Transfi to a high performi t
DISCOVERY: ransform to a high performing center e s
Research award dollars increased $55M 2016 $47.2
BASELINE $42.7
TARGET $50
Total donor fund ived $50M 207 —
otal donor funds receive
SUSTAINABLE BAS:L‘I’;‘; $§54-3
GROWTH, y
2. Strengthen HSC long-term viabilit
FINANCE & . . i TARGET 550
RESOURCES: 2017 455
# of total GME slots 2016 390
BASELINE 360
TARGET 100%
% of programs with >90% satisfaction with 100% 2016 36%
quality of teaching
QUALITY BASELINE 45%
2 (J3114) (¢35 0] % of programs with >90% satisfaction with
LIFETIME quality of teaching
TARGET 100%
SUCCESS: % of programs with >90% satisfaction with
. . 100% 2016 27%
quality of education
BASELINE 36%
TARGET 100%
% of engaged employees 100%
BASELINE 43%
PEOPLE &
4. Build culture based on values
TEAMWORK: TARGET 100%
% of New Hires hired for Values and 100% 2017 45.0%
Competencies ¢ 2016 21.3%
BASELINE IN2T13%mM

Target Baseline Positive Progress Negative Trend

Last Edited - 05.03.17
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UNTHSC Strategic Plan At-a-Glance

UNTS Theme

LEARNING &
DISCOVERY

Key Objectives

1. Transform to high-performing
health science center

Targets
YEAR YEAR YEAR
Initiatives Measures Baseline 2016 2 Year (2017) 3 Year (2018) 5 Year
1.1 Restructure to high-performing schools and institutes (Claire Peel) (08/31/20) M: Number of schools and institutes recognized as a high performing school or institute 2 2 5 6 7
1.2 Expand educational, clinical and research programs with external partners (Claire Peel) (08/31/20) M: # of new signed partnership agreements 0 4 5 5 7
1.3 Develop high-performing Patient Safety Institute (Michael Hicks) (08/31/20) M: # of clinical academic programs for which core curriculum is implemented 0 1 2 3 4

UNTS Theme

Key Objectives

Initiatives

Measures

Baseline

2016

2 Year (2017)

3 Year(2018)

SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH, FINANCE
& RESOURCES

2. Strengthen HSC long-term
viability

2.1 Develop successful, financially-sustainable practice plan that aligns with the mission of HSC (Michael Hicks) (08/31/20) M: % of clinics that are financially sustainable 25% 80% 90% 100% 100%
2.2 Increase number of GME slots by adding new GME programs (Claire Peel) (08/31/20) M: # of total GME slots 360 391 420 475 550
2.3 Create a culture of continuous improvement (Steve Sosland) (08/31/20) M: # of process improvement projects completed 0 3 10 total 12 total 15 total
2.4 Improve net financial position (Greg Anderson) (08/31/20) M: # of weeks of operating cash reserves 19.1 16.5 17 18 22
2.5 Increase philanthropy (Doug White) (08/31/20) M: Total donor funds received 2016-2020 $3,428,423 | $5,300,000 | $ 12,100,000 [{$ 25,000,000 | $ 50,000,000

UNTS Theme

Key Objectives

Initiatives

Measures

Baseline

2016

2 Year (2017)

3 Year(2018)

5 Year

QUALITY
EXPERIENCES FOR
LIFETIME SUCCESS

3. Create student outcomes and
experiences that deliver value and
extraordinary service to others

3.1 Enhance student services for career counseling (based on UNTHSC Student Satisfaction Survey) (Claire Peel) (08/31/20) M: Percent of graduating students during academic year who receive career services 41.38% 41.38% 50% 60% 75%
3.2 Improve quality of teaching (based on UNTHSC Student Satisfaction Survey) (Claire Peel) (08/31/20) M: Number of programs with >90% student satisfaction with quality of teaching 4 4 6 8 11
3.3 Improve quality of education (based on UNTHSC Student Satisfaction Survey) (Claire Peel) (08/31/20) M: Number of programs with >90% student satisfaction with quality of education 1 1 6 8 11

UNTS Theme

Key Objectives

Initiatives

Measures

Baseline

2016

2 Year (2017)

3 Year(2018)

5 Year

PEOPLE &
TEAMWORK

4. Build culture based on values

4.1 Create a nationally recognized best places to work environment (Steve Sosland) (08/31/20) M: # of Best Place to Work campus initiatives 0 2 4 5 7
4.2 Create Leadership Institute (Steve Sosland) (08/31/20) M: # of external clients 0 3 4 6 8
4.3 Create a customer service culture (Steve Sosland) (08/31/20) M: Customer satisfaction with quality of service 0 0% 100% 100% 100%
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PLAN PRIORITIES: UNT Dallas Strategic Goals

UNTS THEME KEY OBJECTIVES

AN R4 1, Establish academic programs of excellence
»]Kee)/3 '8 that address regional and student needs

SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH, 2. Increase annual fundraising and
FINANCE & enrollment to achieve sustainable size
RESOURCES:

QUALITY

2 (J3114) (25 70]H 3. Increase graduates with quality learning
LIFETIME outcomes and career experiences
SUCCESS:

PEOPLE &

TEAMWORK: 4. Build a strong culture of shared values

Last Edited - 04.12.17

MEASURES / 5 YR TARGETS

No. of Programs of Excellence compared to
national peers

Priority Programs Aligned to Workforce

Needs

Total Cash Received $5 Million
% of Headcount Total Enrollment Goal “

% of Graduates with University- sponsored 100%
high impact internships/career experiences °
% of Graduates with Outstanding

- . 85%
Communications Skills
Net Promoter Score for Students Who Would
Recommend Their Program
% of Engaged Employees 100%

TARGET

BASELINE

TARGET
2017
BASELINE

TARGET
2017
2016

BASELINE

TARGET
2017
2016

BASELINE

TARGET

2017

2016

BASELINE

TARGET

BASELINE

TARGET

2017

BASELINE

TARGET

BASELINE

UNTIDALLAS

UNIVELSATY OF NORTH TEXAS AT DALLAS

STATUS
5
10
5
3
$5,000,000
$886,541
$662,600
$592,173
8,042
3,030
2,488
2,575
100%
27.4%
29%
35%
85%
50
40.3
100%
44.0%
Target Baseline Positive Progress Negative Trend
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UNT Dallas Strategic Plan At-a-Glance

Targets

INTS Theme I ives
LEARNING & 1. Align our work to our market S 1.1 Reduce the gap between UNT Dallas program offerings and the market needs (Shumway) (08/31/21) # of priority programs identified 5| 6) 10
DISCOVERY: greatest needs (UNT Dallas)
|(08/31/21)
1. Create and continuously (2. Identify priority programs that 2.1 Establish hallmark programs in each academic school (Shumway) (08/31/21) # of hallmark programs identified 1] 3| 5)
improve vibrant and are relevant, distinctive, and
innovative academic differentiated, including one that will
communities be the best in North Texas (UNT
Dallas) (08/31/21)
3. Recruit and retain outstanding 3.1 Align UNT Dallas mission/vision to recruit outstanding teacher-scholars in terms of teaching, teaching service, university service, service to profession, and % of faculty hires that qualify as outstanding teacher-scholars 0% 15% 20%
faculty (UNT Dallas) (08/31/21) research. (Muniz) (08/31/21)
3.2 Retain outstanding teacher-scholars to include teaching, teaching service, university service, service to profession, and research. (Muniz) (08/31/21 % of faculty identified as outstanding teacher-scholars 0% 10% 20%
3.3 Recruit outstanding master-teachers to include teaching, teaching service, university service, and service to profession. (Casa de Calvo) % of faculty hires that qualify as outstanding master-teachers 0% 70% 80%
3.4 Retain outstanding master-teachers to include teaching, teaching service, university service, and service to profession. (Casa de Calvo) % of faculty identified as outstanding master-teachers 0% 0%
4. Benchmark with similar 4.1 Identify areas of excellence compared to regional peers (Shi) (08/31/21) # of regional peers 5 5
asplranonal universities regionally, (4.2 Identify areas of excellence compared to national peers (Shi) (08/31/21) # of national peers 3| 3|
and best in class (UNT 4.3 Identify areas of excellence compared to best in class peers (Shi) (08/31/21) # of best in class peers 3| 3|
Dallas) (08/31/21) 4.4 1dentify areas of excellence compared to AASCU peers (Shi) (08/31/21) # of AASCU peers 44 44
eme ey O e e 016 e e
SUSTAINABLE 5. Use data strategically to guide 5.1 Commit to Proactive, Informed Data-Driven Decision-Making Via Data Improvement (Edelman) (08/31/21) Retrievable and accurate data is housed in the data warehouse - 75% 100%
GROWTH, FINANCE & |better decision making (UNT Dallas)
RESOURCES: (08/31/21) 5.2 Improve the Availability and Visibility of Data Among Functional Units (Edelman) (08/31/21) % of constituents have access to reliable data to make informed decisions 75% 90% 100%
5.3 Implement New and Enhanced Visualization Tools and Techniques for Planning and Forecasting (Edelman) (08/31/21) % completion of Data Warehouse to enhance planning and forecasting. -] 75% 100%!
2. Achieve exceptional 6. Increase philanthropic support 6.1 Commit to ambitious fundraising goals (Williams) (08/31/21) Total Cash Received 2016-2021 800,000 000,000 5,000,000
service and value for all (UNT Dallas) (08/31/21) 6.2 Develop goal and strategy for first capital campaign (Williams) (08/31/21) Capital campaign plan completion 0% 40% 100%
customers including 6.3 Increase value of endowments (permanent and quasi) (Williams) (08/31/21) New gift dollar additions to endowments and quasi-endowments 25,000 100,000 000,000
students 7. Increase enrollment, retention, 7.1 Grow student enrollment (Edelman) (08/31/21) Increase student headcount 2,575 2,488 3,480 5,000
and completion rates (UNT Dallas)
(08/31/21) 7.2 Exceed FTIC state retention rate (Edelman) (08/31/21) % above state retention rate -5.3% 3% 6.5% 10%
7.3 Improve 4-year graduation rate (Edelman) (08/31/21) Four year graduation rate 6% 15%! 20% 25%
7.4 Improve 6-year graduation rate (Edelman) (08/31/21) Six-year graduation rate NA| ] 50%
8. Improve student and 8.1 Create a customer-oriented culture (Robertson) (08/31/26) Net Promoter Score 40.3] 50|
administrative customer service
9. Keep tuition and fees affordable 9.1 Remain among the most affordable 4-year university within the North Texas region (Fashina) (08/31/21) Remain in the lowest quartile of cost of tuition and fees within the region 100% 100% 100%
UNT Dallas) (08/31/21;
10. Build active residential life and  |10.1 Tie pending construction to increased academic and student activities along with implementation of 1st year experience programing (Chapple) (08/31/21) # of programs developed 0| 2| 6)
additional facilities to make UNTD
more vibrant (UNT Dallas)
[(08/31/21)
11. Develop more meaningful private-11.1 Build the number of private-public partnerships (Lumzy) (08/31/21) # of partnerships 1] 7| 20|
public partnerships (UNT Dallas)
|(08/31/21)
12. Improvement management of 12.1 Improve financial net position through growth in reserves. (Fashina) (08/31/21) # of weeks of operating funds in reserve 9| 12
fiscal resources (UNT Dallas)
(08/31/21)
eme ey O e 016 e e
QUALITY EXPERIENCES|13. Active Learning: every student |13.1 Demonstrated Competencies: All graduates demonstrate outstanding oral and written communication skills (Balas) (08/31/21) Score of 90% for the "Communication' rubric 0 40% 85%
FOR LIFETIME graduates with one of more of these |13.2 Demonstrated Competencies: All graduates demonstrate strong critical thinking and analytical abilities (Balas) (08/31/21) Score of 85% for the "'Initiative/Problem Solving" rubric 0 40% 78%
SUCCESS: experiential credentials: a paid 13.3 Demonstrated Competencies: All graduates demonstrate ethical decision making (Balas) (08/31/21) Score of 90% for the "'Leadership and Ethics" rubric 0] 50% 80%
internship; a demanding research  |13.4 Demonstrated Competencies: All graduates demonstrate ability to work well with others (Balas) (08/31/21) Score of 95% for the ""Teamwork" rubric [o] 50% 90%
3. Provide quality effort; a scholarly work-related 13.5 Pathway to Social and Economic Mobility: Become a national leader in producing graduates who make better than expected earning after graduation % of Alumni that will earn more than the prevailing entry wages after one year 0% 0% 0%
experiences for lifetime project; extensive service learning Edelman) (08/31/25)
success for all students participation (UNT Dallas) 13.6 Enhance and expand Experiential Learning Experiences (Lacy) (08/31/21) % of Graduates with Univers. Sponsored high impact internship/career experiences 34% 29% 100%!
(08/31/21) 13.7 Be known for conducting service learning projects in the community (Lacy) (08/31/21) % of participating community partners that report levels of satisfaction 10% 70%
14. Develop expertise serving under- [14.1 Benchmark with Best-In-Class Institutions that have expertise in serving under-resourced college students (Chapple) (08/31/21) # of Best-In-Class Institutions 5) 5) 5
resourced college students (UNT 14.2 Expand Mentorship Programs (Chapple) (08/31/21) # of mentorship programs 0) 2| 3
Dallas) (08/31/21) 14.3 Obtain Title |11 Grants for developing universities (Williams) (08/31/21) # of grants obtained 0 1 4
eme ey Objective e gasure 016 e e
PEOPLE & TEAMWORK:| 15. Build a strong culture based on [15.1 Practice inter-professional cooperation and respect (Finney) (08/31/21) % of engaged employees 44% 60% 100%
our shared values (UNT Dallas)
4. Develop the fullest (08/31/21)
potential of every team
member 15.2 G.R.E.A.T Communications - Genuine Relevant Effective and Timely Communication (Jolly) (08/31/21) % of primary audiences who articulate the university’s institutional mission 10%! 40% 80%
# of traditions 2] 4 [

15.3 Establish traditions (Chapple) (08/31/21)
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&) UNTISYSTEM

MINUTES
BOARD OF REGENTS
Academic Affairs and Student Success Committee
February 23-24, 2017

Thursday, February 23, 2017

The Academic Affairs and Student Success Committee of the Board of Regents of the University
of North Texas System convened on Thursday, February 23, 2017, in Founders Hall, Room 138,
at the University of North Texas at Dallas, 7300 University Hills Blvd., Dallas, Texas with the
following members in attendance: Regents Al Silva, Milton Lee, and A.K. Mago.

There being a quorum present, the meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman Silva at
9:39 a.m. Pursuant to a motion by Regent A.K. Mago seconded by Regent Milton Lee, the
Committee approved the minutes of the November 17-18, 2016, meeting of the Academic Affairs
and Student Success Committee on a 3-0 vote.

Committee Chair Silva noted that the Committee’s charter and calendar of topics is reviewed
annually and asked the Committee if there were any comments, questions or amendments to offer
to the material presented to the Committee. Hearing none, the charter and schedule of topics
stood as presented.

The Committee had two briefings. For the first briefing, Regent Silva explained to the Committee
why he invited Dr. Ray Keck, Interim President, Texas A&M University-Commerce, to talk to the
Committee about Student Success: What Works, and he asked President Mong to introduce
President Keck. Discussion followed after President Keck’s presentation.

The second briefing, UNT System Provosts: Academic Highlights, was presented by UNT
Provost Finley Graves, UNT Health Science Center Interim Provost Claire Peel, and UNT Dallas
Provost Betty Stewart.

Committee Chairman Silva noted that the Committee had two background reports. There were no
questions about them.

There being no further business, the Committee meeting recessed at 10:45 a.m. until Friday,

February 24, 2017, at approximately 9:05 a.m. at the UNT System Building, Room 712, 1901 Main
St., Dallas, Texas.

Academic Affairs & Student Success Committee
University of North Texas System

Board of Regents Meeting

February 23-24, 2017
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Friday, February 24, 2017

The University of North Texas System Board of Regents convened on Friday, February 24, 2017,
at the UNT System Building, Room 712, 1901 Main St., Dallas, Texas with the following members
in attendance: Regents Al Silva, Milton Lee, and A.K. Mago.

There being a quorum present the meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman Silva at
9:02 a.m. The Committee had one action item to consider.

2017-10 UNTHSC Approval of UNTHSC Request for New Master of Science
Degree in Public Health Sciences

Pursuant to a motion by Regent A.K. Mago and seconded by Regent Milton Lee, the Committee
approved the above item on a 3-0 vote.

There being no further business, the Committee meeting adjourned at 9:06 a.m.
Submitted By:
F'? rearuy K. Ha_?,gx,ti‘

Rosemary R. Haggett
Board Secretary

Date: 2N areh 9. 2017

Academic Affairs & Student Success Committee
University of North Texas System

Board of Regents Meeting

February 23-24, 2017
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Assessment of
Student Learning Outcomes

Presented to: Academic Affairs & Student Success Committee, May 18, 2017



The Board's Role in Student Learning Outcome Assessment SYSTEM

“Boards can play an important role in the overall process of assessment by
ensuring it is done and by requesting regular reports on the outcomes of student
learning assessment and the actions taken in response to the outcomes.”

- AGB Effective Committee Series,
“The Academic Affairs Committee”




Questions Boards Should Ask SYSTEM

Do we say what and how much students should
learn? Where do we say it?

What kinds of evidence do we collect about
learning?

RS Are we benchmarking performance against
ACADEMIC QUALITY external standards?

Who is responsible for assessment and how is it
accomplished?

By Peter T. Ewell

How do we use assessment results?




UNT

UNT Assessment Examples




AACSB Accounting Accreditation
Assurance of Learning — Closing the Loop 2014

Noted Program Weakness:

Lack of adequate practice for undergraduate and graduate students to
develop spreadsheet skills.

Reviewer’s Recommendation:

Faculty should review the opportunities students have to develop and
practice spreadsheet skills within the curriculum.

Department’s Response to Recommendation:

The department will develop a plan to increase spreadsheet skills for students enrolled in its accounting
program. Potential methods to enhance spreadsheet skills include: (a) using an existing course within the
college, (b) developing a new course within the college or department, or (c) integrating the use of
spreadsheet assignments within current courses.




Accounting Department’s Action Plan

To better prepare both undergraduate and graduate students, the
following course-level changes were made:

ACCT 4100 — Accounting Systems:

Microsoft certification at the intermediate level is now required of all
undergraduate accounting students.
e Current pass rate is 85% on first try and 90% on second attempt.

ACCT 5120 — Using Information Systems in Accounting:

Advanced Excel functions are assigned in two projects to enhance previously
acquired skills and advance current proficiency. Skills include the usage of:

1) Pivot tables and their associated charting/tabling proficiency
2) Vlookups, Sumifs, Nested If functions (for data analytics), Arrays (for data analytics), and the use of
Trace Precedents (a worksheet auditing function).
e Current pass rate is 92% for both projects.




Rubric for Advanced Excel Skills

ACCT 5120 Pass/Fail Rubric for Advanced Excel Skills
Total Points - 100

Content
Area Ability Tested

Points

Pivot Table 1 Managing data vertically for data analytics

25

Pivot Table 2 Managing data horizontally for data analytics

25

Arrays Creating products and sums for data analysis

10

TRACE
PRECEDENTS | Using Excel’s formula audit function
command

ISNUMBER

Creating products and sums for data analysis
command

VLOOKUP

Pulling information from large datasets for data analysis
command

HLOOKUP

Pulling information from large datasets for data analysis
command




Accrediting Council on Education in Journalism and |
Mass Communications (ACEJMC) 2016 UNT

Noted Program Weakness:

A lack of programmatic focus and shortage of graduate courses
beyond narrative journalism in curricular areas of student academic and
professional interest.

Reviewer’s Recommendation: Q ())
Increase programmatic focus and create/better define graduate courses

in additional specializations.

Action Plan:

« Launch an accelerated online Master’s in Digital Communication Analytics (a collaboration with
Journalism and the Colleges of Business and Information) in fall 2017.

« Launch a Grad Track Pathway Program to target high-achieving undergraduate students in fall 2017.

« Better promote graduate offerings, including the Public Relations certificate and social media classes.




UNTHSC Assessment

Examples




Osteopathic Medicine: D.O. Degree UNT HEALTH

Student Learning Outcome:
By the end of their first year, students are able to apply basic
science knowledge to clinical decision making.

!

Measurement: Performance in first year courses.

Target: 100% of students successfully complete first year
academic requirements.

Results: In 2009, 11% of first year students did not successfully
complete first year courses.




UNT HEALH

Interpretation of Results:

The increased class size resulted in students not receiving academic

resources.

Creation of Advisory Colleges with 40 students assigned
to each college.

Continued Assessment

Actions:
In years 2011-2016, the first year retention rate was
94% to 97%

Use of small group learning activities (“flipped classroom”
concept)

Assessment of Actions 1

In 2010, first year completion rate rose from 89% to 95%




Pharmacy: PharmD Degree UNT HEAUTH

Student Learning Outcome:
Students will provide patient-centered care as experts on

medications.

Measurement: Preparation of problem lists and management
plans for commonly encountered primary care issues.

Target: 85% on Objective Structured Clinical Examinations (OSCE)

sections.

Results: For 2014-15, in OSCE stations that assess developing
problem lists and management plans, students scored 78% and 84%.




UNT HEALH

Interpretation of Results:

Coursework did not provide enough clinical case scenarios, or demonstrate to
students how to “work up” a patient.

v

Continued Assessment:

Reassess in 2016-17 Actions:

Modification of course content
Additional Actions:

Development of a standardized format for Assessment of Actions

documenting probtlerln lists and ﬁ In 2015-16, students’ scored 82% and 87%
Management plans. on OSCE sections.




UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS AT DALLAS

UNT Dallas Assessment

Examples




Clinical Mental Health Counseling: MS Degree UNT DALLAS

Student Learning Outcome:

By the end of their first internship course, students will complete
the Counselor Preparation Comprehensive Exam (CPCE) as an
assessment of student learning and performance on professional
identity and professional competence standards.

!

Measurement: Performance on the CPCE Exam.

Target: 100% of students successfully complete the CPCE exam

requirements.

Results: Between Spring 2014 and Spring 2016, 88% of students
in Internship | successfully passed the CPCE Exam.




Clinical Mental Health Counseling: MS Degree UNT DALLAS

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS AT DALLAS

Interpretation of Results:

The CPCE exam has eight content areas, which are graded separately.
Students must pass seven of eight content areas to pass the CPCE Exam ‘

Continued Assessment:

Actions:

Assess New Cohorts in 2016-17 Students who fail to pass more

than two content areas are

required to retake the CPCE
‘ Exam the last semester before

graduation

Additional Actions:

Nine students who failed one section of Assessment of Actions

the CPCE were a_IIowed to write a ﬁ In 2014-16, 9 students needed to retake the
remediation paper.
CPCE exam




CPCE Pass Rates 2014 - 2016 UNT DALLAS

Date CPCE Taken Pass Overall Exam | Pass with 1 section Did not pass Pass Rate
missed (write (needed to retake
paper on topic) exam)

Spring 2014 0
3
(Ethics, Helping
Rel, Group)

Fall 2014 0
Spring 2015 0

5

(Ethics x 3; Career x

2)
Fall 2015 - offsite 0 100%
Fall 2015 0 89%
Spring 2016 1 75%

(Assessment)

OVERALL 67 50 9 9 88%

Counseling Program Faculty have utilized CPCE results in determining ways and
means of enhancing Counseling Curricula, including adding an Ethics course as a
required course and instituting standardized generic syllabi for Core Courses.




Organizational Behavior/Human Resource
Management: BBA Degree UNT, DALLAS

Student Learning Outcome:
By the midpoint of the HR Capstone course, students will be prepared to successfully pass the professional
Society of Human Resource Management (SHRM) Assurance of Learning assessment.

Measurement:
Percentage of students who choose to take the SHRM assessment and pass it.

Target.

40% of the students enrolled in the capstone will choose to take the assessment.
At least 62% pass the assessment on the first attempt, which matches the currently published national pass
rate.
Results: ‘
In 2016 and 2017, no students took the assessment
-40% of the students enrolled in the HR capstone expressed interest in taking the assessment in 2017.

In 2015, 9 students out of approximately 19 (47%) participated and 2 passed (22%), when the university
covered the cost.




Closing the Loop: Organizational
Behavior/[Human Resource Management

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS AT DALLAS

Results Explained:
Lack of funding and specific preparation resulted in a low
pass rate. ’

Actions:
Continued Assessment: Provide scholarships or loans with
From 2018-2022, modify curriculum incentives to support students taking the
and provide financial support as assessment.
needed.

Better structure the syllabus and embed
‘ SHRM content throughout curriculum.

Assessment of Actions:
Report on progress made for ﬁ

participation and pass rate.




Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 24, 2017

Title: Approval and Ratification of 2017-2018 Admission Standards for UNT System
Institutions

Background:

UNT System Regents Rule 3.701 states that the Board shall “set Institution admission
standards consistent with the role and mission or each Institution, considering the
admission standards of similar institutions nationwide having a similar role and mission,
as determined by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board.” Further, Regents
Rule 3.801 states that the Board may establish admission standards for each of the
institutions,” and Regents Rule 7.204 states that “changes to admissions standards must
be submitted by the President to the Chancellor for review and approval by the Board.”

As UNT, UNT Health Science Center and UNT Dallas continue to grow and evolve, it is
prudent to regularly reaffirm the admission standards of the institutions. The UNT
System institutions recognize the Board of Regents’ authority related to approval of
admissions standards and seek to submit a consolidated annual update of all admissions
standards for BOR approval and ratification. To ensure that all admission standards have
been duly approved by the Board of Regents, the attached summary is being submitted
by the UNT System for approval and ratification.

Minor changes and/or clarifications were made to UNT transfer and graduate admission
standards. Some new UNT Dallas freshman and transfer admission standards are
proposed. Each UNTHSC college has made minor changes to its admission standards.

UNT:
e SAT scores were updated to reflect new SAT scoring.

UNT Dallas:

e New SAT test score equivalents have been added to the requirements for freshman
admission, to reflect new SAT scoring.

e Transfer admission for students with less than 30 semester credit hours now
requires a minimum 2.5 college GPA.

¢ Criminal Justice graduate admission now requires letters of recommendation and
a writing sample/personal statement, similar to other graduate programs.

e Letters of Recommendation are now required for College of Law admission, and
the LSAC fee was updated from $170 to $175.

UNT Health Science Center:
e Graduate School of Biomedical Science now requires a resume/CV for traditional
and specialized M.S. programs.

SYSTEM
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e The application fee for the MPH, MHA & Dual Degree Programs has been
increased from $40 to $50.

e The DrPH program has been removed from admissions standards. UNTHSC is no
longer accepting students into that program.

e A master’s degree is now recommended rather than required for the PhD program.

e The UNT System College of Pharmacy now prefers a minimum of a 40 composite
percentile on the PCAT rather than requiring a minimum of a 40 composite
percentile.

Financial Analysis/History:

There is no substantive anticipated financial impact with any of these proposed changes.

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron

J a n et DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT System,
ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,
W email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,
a c=US

Vice ChancelP8f:fot R &fEd25 0500

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.
Nancy S. Footer s

=nancy.foot
Date: 2017.05.09 16:01:58 0

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:
2017-2018 Academic Year

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve and ratify the attached admission
standards for UNT, UNT Health Science Center, and UNT Dallas.

Recommended By: Rosemary Haggett

Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs
and Student Success

Digitally signed by Rosemary R. Haggett
Rosema ry R. | o icsmmans tmgoen octimmarsiy o
North Texas System, ou=Vice Chancellor for
Academic Affairs and nt Success,

H a ett email=rosemary.haggett@untsystem.edu, c=US
Date: 2017.05.08 17:07:53 -05'00"

Vice Chancellor

SYSTEM
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Digitally signed by Lee Jackson

L e e DN: cn=Lee Jackson, 0o=UNT System,

ou=0ffice of the Chancellor,
email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,

J a C kso n lcj:altjes 2017.05.09 17:02:16 -05'00"

Chancellor

Attachments Filed Electronically:
e 2017-2018 Admission Standards for UNT System Institutions

SYSTEM
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Board Order

Title: Approval and Ratification of 2017-2018 Admission Standards for UNT System
Institutions

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the Board of Regents has the authority to set institutional admission standards
consistent with the role and mission of each institution, and

Whereas, changes in admission standards must be approved by the Board of Regents, and

Whereas, it is prudent to ensure on an annual basis that all admission standards of the UNT
System institutions have been approved by the Board of Regents,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The FY 2017-2018 Admission Standards for UNT, UNT Health Science Center and

UNT Dallas.
VOTE: ayes nays abstentions
BOARD ACTION:
Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents

SYSTEM
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The University of North Texas System Universities:

Freshman Admission Requirements, Year 2017-2018

Admission Conditional
Campus/ Application Fee Under l-Jniform Standarc!s f.or Full Aflmission and TOEEFL Other Requirements
Program Admission Admission Requirements for Full
Policy Admission
$75 non-refundable | Top 10% with Next 15% and have | Individual review— Min scores are: Recommended: completion of
fee submitted SAT | a min 1030 SAT Applicants who do not | 550 International ApplyTexas essay
or ACT score Reasoning Test meet the standards for | Paper;
International (Evidence Based full admission or who 79 IBT Optional: Personal statement
students: $85 non- Reading & Writing | rank in the fourth ijn:e;zzrjeﬁi;fcszr::::datlon
refundable fee (EBRW) + Math) or | quarter may be Score must be less
20 ACT. admitted only by than 2 years old Various colleges may have
$90 Late application individual review. unless the student additional requirements
fee Rank in 2nd has been including, but not limited to,
UNT quarter and have a | Conditional Admission continuously interviews, auditions,
min 1130 SAT without meeting studying at a U.S. additional paperwork, higher

Reasoning Test or
23 ACT.

Rank in 3rd quarter
and have amin
1250 SAT
Reasoning Test or
26 ACT.

English language
proficiency
(International
Students): Study
English at UNT IELI and
finish final level - Level
6.

college/university

6.5 IELTS

minimum entrance exam
requirements, etc.

Adult admission (earned HS
diploma or GED 5 or more years
ago & never enrolled in college)
requires a personal statement,
and THECB form (required by law)

Page 1 of 2
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The University of North Texas System Universities:

Freshman Admission Requirements, Year 2017-2018

Admission Conditional
Campus/ Application Fee Under l-Jni-form Standarc.ls for Full A<.:lmission and TOEEFL Other Requirements
Program Admission Admission Requirements for Full
Policy Admission
$40 non-refundable | Top 10% with Next 15% and have a Individual review— Optional, but recommended:
fee submitted SAT | min 950 SAT (old)or | Applicants who do not personal statement & two
or ACT score 1030 SAT (=) meet the standards for letters of recommendation.
Reasoning Test or 20 ..
ACT. full admission or who
rank in the fourth Adult admission (earned HS
Rank in 2nd quarter quarter may be diploma or GED 5 or more
and have amin. 1050 | admitted only by years ago & never enrolled in
SAT (old) or 1125 individual review. college) requires a personal
f)';iV;)AFé?asomng L statement, THECB form
’ (required by law) and may
Rank in 3rd quarter require a personal interview.
and have a min. 1180
SAT (old) or 1250 Jaguar Gateway Program
(new) Reasoning Test (JGP) - Denied student, on the
UNT Dallas or26 ACT.

4.0-3.50 GPA and min
850 SAT (old) or 930
SAT (new) Reasoning
Test or 17 ACT.

3.49 -3.00 GPA and
min 930 SAT (old) or
1010 SAT (new)
Reasoning Test or 19
ACT.

2.99 - 2.50 GPA and
min 1050 SAT (old) or
1125 SAT (new) or 22
ACT.

cusp of admission, can attend
6-week college readiness
summer boot camp and enroll
in 6 hours (ENGL 1313 and
MATH 1314). With successful
completion in 6 hours with
cumulative GPA of 2.5 or
higher, conditionally admitted
for upcoming fall semester
with required supportive
resources.
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The University of North Texas System Campuses: Transfer Admission Requirements, Year 2017-2018

Campus/ Application Fee Admission Standards Use of High School Inter.n ational Other Requirements
Program Record Requirements
$75 non-refundable | >44 SCH min. college 2.0 <30 SCH Min TOEFL scores are: International Students will
fee GPA (4.0 system) -Graduation from 550 International Paper; have additional requirements
accredited high school 213 Computer; for admission.
International 30-44 SCH min. college - Min. college 2.5 GPA (4.0 | 79 IBT
students: $85 non- 2.25 GPA (4.0 system) system) Adult admission (earned HS
refundable fee Score must be less than 2 diploma or GED 5 or more years
Students must be eligible | - SAT/ACT score and high | years old unless the student | ago & have less than 29 SCH)
UNT $90 Late application | to return to all institutions | school class rank as has been continuously requires a personal statement
fee attended. required for UNT studying at a U.S. and THECB form (required by
freshmen college/university law)
6.5 IELTS
$40 non-refundable | >44 SCH min. college 2.0 <30 SCH requires a Adult admission (earned HS
fee GPA (4.0 system) minimum 2.5 college GPA diploma or GED 5 or more years
and official high school ago & have less than 29 SCH)
30-44 SCH min. college transcript or GED & SAT requires a personal statement,
2.25 GPA (4.0 system) or ACT score. THECB form (required by law)
and may require a personal
Students must be eligible | - SAT/ACT score and high interview.
to return to the last school class rank as
UNT Dallas

institution attended.

required for UNT Dallas
freshmen

Various schools/programs
may have additional
requirements including, but
not limited to, interviews,
additional paperwork, higher
minimum entrance exam
requirements, etc.

Page 1 of 1
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The University of North Texas System Campuses: Graduate & Professional Admission Requirements, Year 2017-2018

Campus/ Application Previous Undergraduate GMAT International Letters of .
Program Fee Degree Cumulative GPA CRE Business | Requirements Recommendation
(LOR)/Other
$75 Bachelor's GPA requirement for If required by | Official test | Min. TOEFL Acceptance must occur
application Degree froma | UNT consideration: the academic scores must | score of: 550 both with TGS and
fee (domestic | regionally program, be sent to written, 213 specific degree
and accredited Graduate applicants to official test TGS only for | computer- program.
international) | school. UNT are evaluated scores must be | College of based, 79
holistically, based on sent to TGS. Business internet-based Please contact academic
(A $95 Official specific departmental applicants. for applicants department for additional
application transcripts and program College of whose native departmental admission
fee will be from all requirements. Successful | Education language is not requirements.
charged for previously candidates usually have | requires GRE English and
International | attended met certain GPA minima: | less than 5 who do not
applicants colleges and 3.00 GPA in the years old. have a degree
beginning Fall | universities undergraduate degree from an
2017) must be sent. for admission to the accredited U.S.
Master's program; institution. A
UNT Or 3.50 GPA in the minimum IELTS
Toulouse undergraduate degree of 6.5 is also
Graduate for direct admission to acceptable.
School Doctoral programs;
(TGS) Or3.50 GPA in
Masters-level studies for
admission to Doctoral
programs
Students with a GPA
below the prescribed
standard will be
deferred for admission.
A minimum GPA has
now been suggested for
students applying to a
doctoral degree
program who only hold
a bachelor’s degree.
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The University of North Texas System Campuses: Graduate & Professional Admission Requirements, Year 2017-2018

Campus/ Application Previous Undergraduate Standardized GMAT International Letters of )
Program Fee Degree Cumulative GPA Test Scores Business | Requirements Recommendation
(LOR)/Other
$50 Bachelor's 2.8 GPA+ on Official GRE Official test Acceptance must occur
application degree froma | undergraduate degree | test scores must both with the Office of
fee regionally OR 3.0 GPAonthelast | scores mustbe | be sentto Graduate Admissions and
accredited 60 SCH of sent to the the Office of specific degree program.
school. undergraduate degree | Office of Graduate
OR3.4GPAona Graduate Admissions Resume - required by the
Official completed master's Admissions for | for the following programs: MBA
transcripts degree. all schools. School of and Educational
from all Business. Leadership
z:te g;ﬂgy Letters of '
Recommendation —
colleges and : .
universities required by the foII‘owmg
ruE e i programs: Counseling,
UNT Dallas Criminal Justice, Public
Graduate Leadership, Educational
Programs Leadership
Writing sample/personal
statement - required by
the following programs:
Counseling, Criminal
Justice, Educational
Leadership, and Pubic
Leadership: Educational
Leadership and School
Counseling also require a
departmental application,
2 years creditable teaching
experience and a copy a
teacher service record.
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The University of North Texas System Campuses: Graduate & Professional Admission Requirements, Year 2017-2018

Campus/ Application Previous Undergraduate | Standardized GMAT International Letters of .
Program Fee Degree Cumulative GPA | Test Scores Business Requirements Recommendation
(LOR)/Other
$0-no Bachelor's No minimum GPA Official LSAT LORs are required.
application degree from a requirement test Applicants must utilize
fee regionally scores Credential Assembly
accredited required Service (CAS) to submit
school. Official current LSAT score, official
transcripts from transcripts and letters of
all previously recommendation (LORs).
attended The LSAC charges $175 fee
col‘lege:s gnd to applicant for CAS
universities i
. service. Two (2) letters of
required. . .
recommendation required
UNT Dallas electronically through CAS.
College of Law Must submit a professional
resume and personal
statement. Applicants may
be required to submit
specific addendum
statements, such as prior
law experience or
character responses.
Applicants encouraged to
request optional interview
with member of
admissions committee.
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The University of North Texas System Health Science Center: Admission Standards, Year 2017-2018

Official Standardized . Letters of
N Bachelor's Undergraduate International .
Campus/ Program Application Fee D College . Test . Recommendation
egree . Cumulative GPA . Requirements
Transcripts Requirements (LOR) /Other
Applications to Minimum of Official No minimum GPA Medical College | International A
TCOM are made three years of | transcripts cutoff; expected to | Admission Test | applicants are premedical/health
through the Texas college (90 from all have betterthana | (MCAT). classified as non- | professions
Medical and Dental SCH or universities B average However, MCAT | residents and advisory
Schools Application equivalent # and colleges is not required must meet the committee
Service (TMDSAS). of quarter attended for the Primary | same evaluation or three
The fee is set by this | hours) must be Care requirements as letters of
service. TCOM toward a submitted to Partnership all other students. | evaluation are
requires a bachelor's the TCOM Program International required.
supplemental degree from | admissions applicants must Applicants are also
application be aregionally office after show proof of strongly
submitted directly to | accredited acceptance. financial means encouraged to
the university. There | U.S. college prior to obtaining | submit a letter of
is no fee for the or university avisa to enter the | evaluation from an
supplemental (or Canadian country. osteopathic
application. equivalent) is physician familiar
UNTHSC required with the applicant
TCOM (some (please note - this is
courses may recommended but
be in NOT required). The
progress). physician may
Certain pre- submit this letter of
requisite evaluation directly
courses must to TCOM if it is not
be already included in
completed. the advisory
Note: Strong committee
preference evaluation.
given to those
who complete
a bachelor's
degree prior
to
matriculation.
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The University of North Texas System Health Science Center: Admission Standards, Year 2017-2018

UNTHSC
Graduate School of
Biomedical Science

Traditional &
Specialized M.S.
Programs

A non-refundable
application fee
applies.

Note: Waived for
McNair scholars with
documentation of
participation.

Bachelor's
degree from
regionally
accredited
institution
required.
Competitive
applicant
typically has a
background
in biology,
biochemistry,
chemistry or
related field.

Official

transcripts

At least a 3.0 GPA
on a 4.0 scale on

from all the last 60
universities undergraduate SCH
and colleges | prior to receiving
attended bachelor's degree
must be sent. | oronall
undergraduate

work. Applicants
holding a master's
degree must have a
3.0 GPA in master's
work or meet the
undergraduate
requirements for
unconditional

Submit official
test scores,
depending on
the program of
interest: GRE,
MCAT or DAT

Official TOEFL or
IELTS score is
required for
applicants who
are not U.S.
citizens or
permanent
residents, unless
applicant has
completed a
degree program
within the U.S.
For credits earned
outside the U.S.,
applicant must
submit an official

Two letters of
recommendation
signed on
letterhead and sent
directly from
recommenders;
Resume/CV
required.

admission. WES or ECE
course-by-course
evaluation as well
as the individual
transcript.
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The University of North Texas System Health Science Center: Admission Standards, Year 2017-2018

, Official Standardized . Letters of
N Bachelor's Undergraduate International .
Campus/ Program Application Fee College . Test . Recommendation
Degree : Cumulative GPA . Requirements
Transcripts Requirements (LOR) /Other
A non-refundable Bachelor's Official At least a 3.0 GPA Submit official Official TOEFL or Two letters of
application fee degree from transcripts on a 4.0 scale on test scores, IELTS score is recommendation
applies. regionally from all the last 60 depending on required for signed on
accredited universities undergraduate SCH | the program of | applicants who letterhead and sent
Note: Waived for institution and colleges | prior to receiving interest: GRE, are not U.S. directly from
McNair scholars with | required. attended bachelor's degree MCAT, DAT or citizens or recommenders. A
documentation of Competitive must be sent. | oron all PCAT. permanent resume/cv is also
UNTHSC participation. applicant undergraduate residents, unless required.
Graduate School of typically has a work. Applicants applicant has
H '
Biomedical Science Paclfground holding a master's completed a
in biology, degree must have a degree program
biochemistry, 3.0 GPA in master's within the U.S.

M.S. in Medical
Science

chemistry or
related field.

work or meet the
undergraduate
requirements for
unconditional

For credits earned
outside the U.S.,
applicant must
submit an official

admission. WES or ECE
course-by-course
evaluation as well
as the individual
transcript.
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The University of North Texas System Health Science Center: Admission Standards, Year 2017-2018

Official Standardized . Letters of
N Bachelor's Undergraduate International .
Campus/ Program Application Fee D College . Test . Recommendation
egree : Cumulative GPA . Requirements
Transcripts Requirements (LOR) /Other
A non-refundable Bachelor's Official At least a 3.0 GPA Official test Official TOEFL or Two letters of
application fee degree from transcripts on a 4.0 scale on score required IELTS score is recommendation
applies. regionally from all the last 60 depending on required for signed on
accredited universities undergraduate SCH | the program of | applicants who letterhead and sent
Note: Waived for institution and colleges | prior to receiving interest — GRE, are not U.S. directly from
McNair scholars with required. attended bachelor's degree MCAT, DAT citizens or recommenders;
documentation of Competitive must be sent. | oron all permanent Supplemental
participation. applicant undergraduate residents, unless materials (e.g.
UNTHSC typically has a work. Applicants applicant has resume/CV) will be
Graduate School of background holding a master's completed a considered but are
Biomedical Science in biology, degree must have a degree program | not required.
biochemistry, 3.0 GPA in master's within the U.S.

Ph.D. Program

chemistry or
related field.

work or meet the
undergraduate
requirements for
unconditional

For credits earned
outside the U.S.,
applicant must
submit an official

admission. WES or ECE
course-by-course
evaluation as well
as the individual
transcript.
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The University of North Texas System Health Science Center: Admission Standards, Year 2017-2018

Official Standardized . Letters of
. .. Bachelor's Undergraduate International .
Campus/ Program Application Fee b College . Test . Recommendation
egree : Cumulative GPA . Requirements
Transcripts Requirements (LOR) /Other
Applications to the Bachelor's Official 3.2 graduate GPA Submit official Applicants with Three letters of
MPH, MHA, MS, PhD, | degree or transcripts for PhD Programs scores from: foreign recommendation,
and dual degree equivalent from all GRE, GMAT, transcripts must statement of
programs must be from a universities MCAT, LSAT, include an official | purpose, current
made through the recognized and colleges PCAT, or DAT. WES or ECE resume or
Schools of Public institution. A attended transcript curriculum vita, and
Health Application master’s must be sent. Note: the exam | evaluation report | possible on-campus
Service (SOPHAS) degree is req. is waived listing course-by- | interview or
with min. app. fee of | recommended for applicants course U.S. grade | technology-
$135. MHA students for the PhD possessing a point assisted interview.
may also apply Program. professional equivalencies.
UNTHSC through the degree with Min. TOEFL:
School of Public Healthcare license to Internet-based =
Health Administration, practice in the 85.
Management & u.s.
Policy CAS
MPH, MHA, & Dual (HAMPCAS) with

Degree Programs

min. app. fee set by
service. TCOM
students applying for
the dual MPH
program must apply
through SOPHAS
Express. Thereis a
non-refundable
application fee of
$50.
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The University of North Texas System Health Science Center: Admission Standards, Year 2017-2018

, Official Standardized . Letters of
N Bachelor's Undergraduate International .
Campus/ Program Application Fee College . Test . Recommendation
Degree . Cumulative GPA . Requirements
Transcripts Requirements (LOR) /Other
Applications to the Bachelor's Official Minimum 3.0 GPAin | There are no International Two letters of
DPT program are degree from | transcripts last 60 hours of standardized students must professional
made through PTCAS | aregionally- | from all coursework. test meet the same reference
(Physical Therapy accredited universities Completion of requirements requirements as submitted through
Centralized U.S. college and colleges | specific coursework | for this all other students. | the PTCAS
Application Service). | or university attended with @ minimum 3.0 | program. International/non- | application. A letter

The cost of the

must be sent.

GPA.

resident students

from a practicing

UNTHSC School of PTCAS application is must show proof | PTis highly
Health Professions set by this service. of.ﬂnanaal m.e.ans recommended.
The DPT program prior to obtaining
requires a $35 non- a visa to enter the | Admissions
Physical Therapy refundable country. interview (by
application invitation)
processing fee,
payable only by
check or money
orderissued to UNT
Health Science
Center.
Applications to the Bachelor's Official Minimum overall GRE test score International Two letters of
PA program are degree from transcripts 3.00 GPA as required, students must professional
made through CASPA | aregionally- from all calculated by earned no more | meet the same reference through
(Central Application accredited universities CASPA than five years requirements as the CASPA
Service for Physician | U.S. college and colleges prior to the all other students. | application.
Assistants). The cost | or university attended date of International/Non- [ Admissions
UNTHSC School of of the CASPA must be sent. application resident students | interview (by
Health application is set by must show proof | invitation)
q 5.0 this service. The PA of financial means
ProfessionsPhysician : . .
. program requires a prior to obtaining
Assistant non-refundable a visa to enter the
application fee of $35 country.
paid directly to the
program.
Page 6 of 7
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The University of North Texas System Health Science Center: Admission Standards, Year 2017-2018

Official Standardized . Letters of
N Bachelor's Undergraduate International .
Campus/ Program Application Fee D College . Test . Recommendation
egree . Cumulative GPA . Requirements
Transcripts Requirements (LOR) /Other
Apply for admission Applicants Official Achieve a minimum | A preferred No international Obtain three (3)
via PharmCAS - fee must transcripts overall 2.50 grade minimum of a admissions. letters of
dependent upon complete 71 from all point average on 40 composite recommendation.
number of PharmCas | prerequisite universities prerequisite percentile on Letters of
Degree Program credit hours. | and colleges | coursework. the PCAT recommendation
Designators by However, if attended (Pharmacy must be from a
applicant. An SCP the applicant | must be sent | Important Note: If College person who can
Supplemental has attained a | to PharmCAS | an applicant claims | Admissions comment on the
Application is also bachelor’s and the exemption for Test) applicant's
required with anon- | degree or Pharmacy general coursework academic,
refundable higher from Admissions requirements based volunteer,
application fee. an accredited | Office. on a completed community service
US college or bachelor's (or and/or employment
Applicant must university, higher) degree experiences and
submit both they may from an accredited attributes. Letters
PharmCAS and SCP elect U.S. college or of
UNT System College Supplemental exemption university, then recommendation
of Pharmacy Application. by from the only his/her math from friends and
designated deadline | general and science family members are
in order for course prerequisite not accepted.
application to be requirements. coursework will be
reviewed for included in the GPA
interview An official calculation. A 2.5
consideration. transcript is math and science
required GPA must be
noting that a maintained.
degree was
conferred
prior to
matriculation.
Page 7 of 7
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: March 24, 2017

Title: Approval of UNT Tenure Recommendations

Background:

Each faculty member on the attached list of tenure recommendations has been carefully reviewed
and judged as meeting the requirements for tenure by the department-level Reappointment,
Promotion, and Tenure Committee (RPTC), the department chair, the college-level RPTC, the
dean, and the provost.

Financial Analysis/History:

The award of tenure carries with it the assurance of continued employment, absent the showing
of good cause for termination.

Digitally signed by Bob Brown
DN: cn=Bob Brown, o=University of North

B O b B rOW n Texas, ou=VP for Finance and Administration,
email=bob.brown@unt.edu, c=US

Date: 2017.05.04 16:39:14 -05'00"

Institution Chief Financial Officer

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
a n e DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT System,

ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,

email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,
Waldron _ :*
— ——PBate26+765-68-692526—65'00'

Vice Chancellor for Finance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Tenure will be effective on September 1, 2017.

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Regents approve the faculty on the attached list for
tenure effective September 1, 2017.

SYSTEM
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Recommended By:

Attachments Filed Electronically:

Tenure Recommendations Attachment May 2017

SYSTEM

O. Finley Graves

Provost and Vice President for
Academic Affairs

N e a I Digitally signed by Neal Smatresk
DN: cn=Neal Smatresk, o=University
of North Texas, ou=President,
email=neal smatresk@unt.edu, c=US

S m a t re S k Date: 2017.05.05 08:40:37 -05'00"

President

Digitally signed by Rosemary R. Haggett

Rosemary R. szt .

North Texas System, ou=Vice Chancellor for
Academic Affairs and Student Success,

H a ett email=rosemary.haggett@untsystem.edu, c=US
Date: 2017.05.08 16:02:21 -0500'

Vice Chancellor

Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
DN: cn=Lee Jackson, o=UNT System,
L J k ou=O0ffice of the Chancellor,
ee a C SO n email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,
c=US
Date: 2017.05.09 17:03:15 -05'00"

Chancellor
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Board Order

Title: Approval of UNT Tenure Recommendations

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, each faculty member on the attached list of tenure recommendations has been
carefully reviewed and judged as meeting the requirements for tenure by the department-level
Reappointment, Promotion, and Tenure Committee (RPTC), the department chair, the college-
level RPTC, and

Whereas, these are recommended by the Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs, and
Whereas, “the President transmits his recommendations for tenure to the Board of Regents,”

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The award of tenure to the faculty identified in the attachment to this order effective
September 1, 2017.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents

SYSTEM
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Name Current College Department Advanced Degree Notable Accomplishments
Rank & Specialty
Dr. Jordan Frith Assistant | College of Technical PhD, North Jordan Frith’s research focuses on location-aware
Professor | Liberal Arts Communication | Carolina State technologies with a specific focus on smartphones.
and Social University, He has published 2 books, 6 book chapters, and 16
Sciences Communication,

Rhetoric, and
Digital Media

articles (one in the Journal of Business and Technical
Communication and one in the Journal of Computer-
Mediated Communication). He currently has a grant
under review with the NSF, and has received more
than $10,000 in internal funding. He was hired with
an interdisciplinary cluster of digital media scholars
and has created 5 new courses in his effort to launch
the interdisciplinary Digital Media Studies
certificate. His teaching evaluation scores
consistently rank him among the highest in the
department, and student comments at both the
undergraduate and graduate levels are positive. He
has served on a thesis committee for the Department
of Anthropology. He has served his department as
director of graduate studies, has chaired 4 lecturer
search committees, and has also served on the
Department’s Executive Committee. He is the only
assistant professor to serve on the planning
committee for UNT’s New College at Frisco. He has
served on the editorial board of the journal Mobile
Media & Communication, and is a frequent reviewer
of manuscripts for publishers including Routledge,
Palgrave Books, Polity, and 12 different scholarly
journals. He co-organized an all-day workshop on
“Sonic Pedagogies” at the Conference on College
Composition and Communication (CCCC).
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Dr. Christopher
Lam

Assistant
Professor

College of
Liberal Arts
and Social
Sciences

Technical
Communication

PhD, Illinois
Institute of
Technology,
Technical
Communication

Christopher Lam’s research focuses on three areas of
Technical Communication: collaboration and
communication technologies, the professionalization
of technical and professional communication, and the
application of social media data for practical or
pedagogical purposes. He has published 13 peer-
reviewed journal articles and 5 peer-reviewed
conference proceedings papers. The majority of his
publications are first authored. He has published in
journals including the Journal of Business and
Technical Communication, Institute of Electrical and
Electronics Engineers (IEEE) Transactions on
Professional Communication, and International
Journal of Business Communication. He has received
internal UNT grants and has been part of two
external proposals, both to NSF. His teaching
evaluations are among the highest in the department.
He has mentored two students, one on a year-long
and one on a semester-long independent study. He
has served on the department’s Personal Affairs
Committee, Executive Committee and on the college
Computing Committee. He has chaired the
department’s hiring committee for a lecturer and is
currently chairing a search for an assistant professor.
He has served on the Faculty Senate Writing
Committee and as a mentor for the ACCESS
mentoring program through UNT Division of Student
Affairs. He works as an ad hoc reviewer for top tier
journals and was recently appointed as Associate
Editor on IEEE.
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Dr. Alexandra
Ponette-Gonzalez

Assistant
Professor

College of
Science

Geography and
the Environment

PhD, Yale
University, Forest
Ecology

Alexandra Ponette-Gonzalez specializes in
ecosystems geography, global environmental change,
and terrestrial ecosystems. Her academic background
enables her to work with scientists from geography,
chemistry, ecology, and economics. She has
published 12 peer-reviewed journal articles, of which
she has been the lead author on six. Her articles have
been published in journals such as BioScience,
Ecological Applications, Environmental Science and
Technology, and Global Change Biology. She has
received funding from NSF, National Aeronautics
and Space Administration, and National Geographic
Society. She is one of only a few UNT faculty
members in UNTSs history to receive a NSF Faculty
Early Career Development (CAREER) Award. She is
the Pl on this grant of $459,368, bringing her total
funding to over $688,000. She has presented her
research at conferences and has given invited
presentations, both nationally and internationally. As
an educator she is rated highly effective and has
served on geography Master’s committees. She
organized a departmental orientation program for
new graduate students to help them develop as
teaching assistants and scholars. She has been
recognized as the department’s Most Appreciated
Professor by the student-led geography club. She has
developed graduate recruiting materials and attends
recruiting events, such as Preview Day and the
Society for Advancement of Chicanos/Hispanics and
Native Americans in Science national conference.
She is a board member of the Conference of Latin
Americanist Geographers and has served on NSF
panels, reviewed funding proposals, and reviewed
articles submitted to journals.
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Dr. Rajeev Azad

Assistant
Professor

College of
Science

Biological
Sciences and
Mathematics

PhD, Jawaharlal
Nehru University,
Mathematical
Modeling of
Nonlinear
Biological and
Physical Systems

Rajeev Azad is a computational biologist with
interdisciplinary research focusing on gene
discovery, gene regulation, and genome evaluation.
He has been a principal investigator (PI) or co-PI on
5 extramural grants. He is Pl on a National Institutes
of Health (NIH) grant with a budget of $455,000 and
is co-Pl on three National Science Foundation (NSF)
awards totaling over $2 million. He was PI on a grant
from the Mathematical Bioscience Institute that he
received as an Early Career Award. Of the 13 peer-
reviewed papers he has authored, he is corresponding
author on six. He has authored a book chapter and
has 4 manuscripts written and submitted for review.
Six of his most recent publications have one of his
students as a co-author. He has delivered 13 oral
research presentations at conferences, given 20
invited seminars, and has co-authored 25 oral or
poster presentations given by his graduate students.
He teaches graduate level courses that attract
students from Biological Sciences, Computer Science
and Engineering, and Mathematics. His student
evaluation scores are all at the highly effective level.
Currently, he has 7 PhD students, 2 Master’s
students, and 2 undergraduate students in his
laboratory. He has graduated a PhD student and 2
Master’s students. His service includes 19 graduate
committees, and he participates in seminar programs
of Biology and Mathematics. He is an ad hoc
reviewer for NIH, NSF, and the Czech Science
Foundation. He has participated in 2 NIH panels and
1 NSF panel. He peer reviews submitted articles for
19 different professional journals.
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Dr. Lior Fishman

Assistant
Professor

College of
Science

Mathematics

PhD, Ben Gurion
University,
Mathematics

Lior Fishman’s research relates to connecting
diophantine approximation to dynamics and measure
theory. He was the first to make a connection
between geometric measure theory and a number
theoretical technique known as Schmidt’s game. He
currently has a 5-year grant from the Simons
Foundation and has received 2 internal grants from
UNT. He has submitted 5 NSF proposals and 2
National Security Agency proposals. He has
published 15 peer-reviewed publications, has 2
others that are accepted, and 8 under review. His
papers have been published in the Journal de
Mathematiques Pures et Appliquees and the
Proceedings of the London Mathematical Society. He
has been an active member of the Research Training
Group (RTG) in Logic and Dynamics, an NSF
funded program for training postdocs, graduate
students, and undergraduate students. He participated
in the selection and mentoring of the RTG
postdoctoral scholars. He has prepared 11 new
courses, and is found to be a highly effective teacher.
He has graduated a PhD student and a Master’s
student. He is currently advising 2 PhD students. He
has served as faculty mentor for undergraduate
research projects, and has coordinated the Summer
Undergraduate Mathematics Scholars program. He
has also served on his departmental hiring
committees, the department’s strategic planning
committee, and helped organize UNT Mathematics
conferences. He regularly serves as a referee for
scholarly journals.
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Dr. Hakan
Tarakci

Assistant
Professor

College of
Business

Information
Technology and
Decision
Sciences

PhD, Purdue
University,
Quantitative
Methods

Hakan Tarakci’s research focuses on reliability and
maintenance outsourcing, inventory management
models, and the concept of learning/forgetting in
operations. He has published pedagogical work in the
International Journal of Information and Operations
Education and published articles in Institute of
Industrial and Systems Engineers Transactions. He is
sole author on one of these articles and lead author
on six. He has presented at 9 conferences. He is
consistently rated excellent by students in all
categories of teaching effectiveness. He has served as
a member of a dissertation committee and he is
founder of the first Institute for Operations Research
and Management Science (INFORMS) student
chapter at UNT. He has supervised the INFORMS
chapter as faculty sponsor, and has served as a
faculty resource for students who attend the national
annual conference. Departmentally, he has served as
departmental secretary, member of the Information
Technology and Decision Sciences (ITDS)
Curriculum Committee, ITDS PhD exam pool, and
ITDS Executive Committee. He has served as a
session chair at the 2014 INFORMS conference and
has served 5 times at the Production and Operations
Management Society annual conference.
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Dr. Miriam
Boesch

Assistant
Professor

College of
Education

Educational
Psychology

PhD, Purdue
University,
Special Education

Miriam Boesch’s research is in augmentative and
alternative communication, a discipline that uses
strategies to improve the communication skills of
individuals who cannot use natural speech. She has
published 11 refereed papers, being the lead author
on four. Her 2 papers with the highest number of
citations were both published with her as the lead
author. She is Co-Pl on a United States Department
of Education personal preparation grant totaling over
$1 million and has been PI on 4 internal grants. She
was selected as the College of Education Junior
Research Award recipient in 2014. She is rated an
effective instructor and has taught classes at both the
graduate and undergraduate levels. She serves as a
committee member on 11 dissertation committees.
She has served on the department’s Master’s Policies
Committee and is advisor for the Master’s
concentration in Autism Spectrum Disorders. She is a
member of Editorial Board for Teaching Exceptional
Children, the Communication Disorders Quarterly,
and is an ad-hoc reviewer for journals and grant
proposals.
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Dr. Mei Chang

Assistant
Professor

College of
Education

Educational
Psychology

PhD, Ball State
University,
Educational
Psychology

Mei Chang’s research focuses on bridging school
psychology with the research, measurement, and
statistics field. She has published 5 articles of which
she is first author on one. She has 3 manuscripts
under review, of which she is lead author on 2, and
has 5 papers in progress for which she is lead author.
She has made 24 conference presentations and is the
recipient of 2 external grants and 2 internal grants
totaling $8,000. She has taught 6 different courses
across 2 program areas, and her students rate her as
effective to highly effective. She has co-chaired a
dissertation committee and served on 3 dissertation
committees of students who have completed their
studies. She is currently serving on 7 doctoral student
committees. She has served as faculty advisor for the
Office of Research Consulting, as a committee
member of the department’s Master’s Policies
Committee, and has been instrumental in organizing
The Advances in Research Design Symposium. She
serves on the Frontiers in Psychology Editorial
Board, reviews for other journals and conferences,
and has been an officer for the National Association
of School Psychologists.
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Dr. Elizabeth
Prosek

Assistant
Professor

College of
Education

Counseling and
Higher Education

PhD, Old
Dominion
University,
Counseling

Elizabeth Prosek’s research focus is in the area of
interventions for clients with co-occurring disorders. She
has produced 19 in-press or published refereed journal
articles, 3 book chapters, and has presented at over 20
professional meetings. She has secured 2 grants as Pl
totaling over $550,000, one from U.S. Department of
Justice and one from Texas Veterans Commission. She
has also secured 2 internal grants totaling over $10,000.
In 2015, she was awarded the Southern Association for
Counselor Education and Supervision’s Outstanding Pre-
Tenure Faculty Award and the Outstanding Faculty
Member Award from the local chapter of Chi Sigma
lota. She has initiated a research team composed of
Master’s and PhD students whom she mentors on
projects of mutual interest. From this research team, she
has co-authored with students a total of 17 articles. Her
teaching evaluations are consistently high. She has
served on committees for 5 defended dissertations, and is
now chairing 2 dissertation committees. She is currently
serving as a member or chair of 7 program committees.
She has served on the Faculty Senate and its Executive
Committee. She is currently serving as Executive Board
Secretary for the Association for Assessment and
Research in Counseling and as reviewer on 4
organizations including the Texas Association for
Counselor Education and Supervision and American
Counseling Association Annual Conference. She also
serves as a program evaluator for the Denton County
Veterans Court.
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Dr. Jamaal Young

Assistant
Professor

College of
Education

Teacher
Education and
Administration

PhD, Texas A&M
University,
Curriculum and
Instruction

Jamaal Young’s research focuses on urban student
mathematics achievement, teacher technology
instruction, and culturally responsive pedagogy. Of his 9
published articles in peer-reviewed journals he is first
author on six. He has 3 articles in press, 2 articles in
conference proceedings, 2 book chapters, and 2 more
chapters in press. He has secured over $30,000 in
external and internal grant funding. He has been
recognized with 2 awards from the American
Educational Research Association (AERA): the 2016
Outstanding Reviewer Award — Review of Educational
Research, by the AERA Journal Publications Committee,
and the 2016 AERA Institute on Statistical Analysis for
Education Policy by the NSF. He has taught graduate
and undergraduate courses, and his student ratings range
from effective to highly effective. He has chaired a
completed doctoral dissertation committee, served on 6
doctoral committees, and currently serves as a committee
member on 7 dissertations in progress. He has been
instrumental in establishing a support program for junior
faculty in the College of Education named Publication
Oriented Writing Essential Resources (POWER). He
served as Chair of the Teacher Education &
Administration (TE&A) Diversity and Equity
Committee. He developed and implemented a semester-
long book study on culturally responsive instruction,
which ended with an all-day workshop for all TE&A
faculty members. He was co-program chair of the Texas
Chapter of National Association for Multicultural
Education conference. He has served as editor for
Journal of Educational Research and Studies and
currently serves on the editorial review board for Journal
of Multicultural Affairs. He serves as reviewer for 9
other journals.
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Dr. Rodney
Nielsen

Associate
Professor

College of
Engineering

Computer
Science and
Engineering

PhD, University of
Colorado at
Boulder,
Computer Science
and Cognitive
Science

Rodney Nielsen’s research spans a broad spectrum of
Natural Language Processing, Machine Learning, and
Cognitive Science. It has an emphasis on Educational
Technology, Health and Clinical Informatics, and their
confluence — Educational Health and Wellbeing
Companion Robots. He has published 4 journal articles,
2 book chapters, 1 encyclopedia article, 19 peer-
reviewed conference papers, and 3 workshop papers. He
has presented papers at the Association for
Computational Linguistics, International Conference on
Intelligent Tutoring Systems, Conference of the North
American Chapter of the Association for Computational
Linguistics: Human Language Technologies, and the
International Conference on Artificial Intelligence in
Education. He has transferred two grants to UNT, one
from NSF and one from the Institute of Education
Sciences totaling over $2.5 million. He was awarded the
UNT Competitive Funding Award in 2014. His students
have earned first place in 3 poster/report competitions.
He has developed technology to improve classroom
instruction, which was piloted in 58 middle school
science classes. He is currently major advisor for 6 PhD
students and 2 Master’s thesis students. His work with a
PhD student has earned the student an NSF Graduate
Research Fellowship in the Computer Science and
Engineering Department. He has served on 3 university
committees, 4 departmental committees, and a faculty
search committee. He has served as host site organizer
for the North American Computational Linguistics
Olympiad open round and invitational round, and as a
Board of Advisors member for The Road Ahead for
Educational Technology/Intelligent Tutoring Systems.
He is currently serving on the Board of Advisors for NSF
Cyberlearning and Future Learning Technologies and
NSF Community Research Infrastructure.
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Mr. Clinton
Carlson

Assistant
Professor

College of
Visual Arts
and Design

Design

BFA, University
of Nebraska,
Visual
Communication
Design

MFA, University
of Alberta

Clinton Carlson’s scholarship, both as a researcher and a
designer, focuses on how an empathic understanding of
human problems can influence graphic solutions. He has
published a book, 2 book chapters, and 3 peer-reviewed
journal articles. He has 9 scholarly presentations with 6
invited talks both nationally and internationally. He also
generates client-based work specializing in branding,
advertising, and identity. His clients include Florida
Keys Mosquito Control District, Toyota Racing, Chief
Industries, Tekzenit, Veteran Works, Colorado Meth
Project, and Centers for Disease Control. He has
received $18,250 in grant funding with $2,500 coming
from the American Institute of Graphic Arts (AIGA). He
has recently worked with Tekzenit on a yearlong position
as a principal for the Tekzenit Innovation and Research
Lab to establish the xD program, an apprenticeship
program that aligns recent graduates from related fields
into user experience design. His students have won
awards at the Dallas Society of Visual Communications,
National Student Show. He collaborates with students on
intersecting client-based social practice design with
design pedagogy to write and publish projects as peer-
reviewed publications. He is rated as a highly effective to
excellent educator. He has served as his department’s
Communication Design Association advisor and Interior
Design Studio Portfolio Lecture and Critique reviewer.
He has served his college and UNT on 3 search
committees, chaired a search committee, and participated
as a panel member for new faculty orientation. He serves
his profession as a member of the UX Graduate
Certificate Advisory Council of St. Lawrence College, an
article proposal reviewer with the International
Professional Communications Journal, and a grant
reviewer for AIGA Design Educators Community.
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Mr. Jude Landry

Assistant
Professor

College of
Visual Arts
and Design

Design

MFA, Louisiana
Tech University,
Graphic Design

Jude Landry engages his client-based studio practice at
UNT with expertise in a wide variety of media. His work
has appeared in the Print Magazine Regional Design
Annual, Communication Arts Typography Annual,
Creative Quarterly, and in LogoLounge, all journals in
the fields of communication and graphic design. His
work has been exhibited at national and international
juried exhibitions including Good 50x70 International
Poster Competition and Project Passion Exhibition. His
curated exhibitions include Graphic Advocacy and For
The Love of Type. He has received commissions for
artwork from national and international companies
including Bender Bound, Bayer Aspirin, Bernard
Malamud Library, Crate & Barrel Products, and Urban
Graphic. He is the recipient of international juried
awards including Art Director’s Club Young Guns
Award and the HOW Poster Design Award, and national
juried awards including FPO: For Print Only Awards-
Judge’s Choice and Best of Category, TedX Oil Spill
Poster Competition, and French Paper Sample Room
Contest. His students have received recognition at
national professional and student competitions and
exhibitions for their projects. He developed a new
Design Entrepreneurship course which teaches business
and marketing strategies for the sale of designed
artifacts. His service to UNT includes being a member of
the College Academic Committee, College Bound
recruiting event, and Art Technology Center proposal
committee. He served as a search committee chair and
search committee member. He has served his profession
as Juror at the Poster For Tomorrow International Poster
Competition, Juror for Indie Craft Parade, and has
exhibited his work at UNT on the Square gallery.
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Dr. Barrett J.
Taylor

Assistant
Professor

College of
Education

Counseling and
Higher Education

PhD, University of
Georgia, Higher
Education

Barrett Taylor’s scholarship focuses on status and
inequality, resources, strategy, practice, and production
in education. His teaching interests include higher
education organization, finance, and policy. Prior to
coming to UNT, Dr. Taylor held positions as the
Mentoring and Recruitment Coordinator for the
University of Alabama, College of Nursing; Associate
Director for Admissions for Schreiner University; and
Assistant Director of Admissions for the University of
Maine. Dr. Taylor is the author or coauthor of 13 peer-
reviewed manuscripts, many in the most influential
journals in higher education studies, as well as author for
six, editor-reviewed book chapters including one in
Critical Approaches to the Study of Higher

Education, the American Education Research
Association (AERA) Division J (Higher Education)
"book of the year" for 2015. His scholarly impact
extends beyond the field of higher education, as
indicated by two single-authored publications in
disciplinary journals (sociology), additional publications
in education studies, policy studies, and a forthcoming
book chapter in economics. Dr. Taylor has more than
$400,000 in externally sponsored research projects and
serves on the Editorial Board for The Journal of Higher
Education.
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: March 24, 2017

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Bachelor of Arts Degree Program with a Major in Latino
and Mexican American Studies

Background:

The University of North Texas (UNT) is requesting to add a Bachelor of Arts (BA) degree program
with a major in Latino and Mexican American Studies, effective August 28, 2017.

The BA degree program with major in Latino and Mexican American Studies examines the
politics, history, language, culture, literature, sociology, anthropology, economics, and creative
accomplishments of Latinos in the United States. This rapidly growing population includes
people who trace their heritage to Mexico, Cuba, Puerto Rico, El Salvador, Guatemala, Nicaragua,
and many other Latin American and Caribbean nations.

The rapidly growing Latino population is reshaping Texas and beyond, as well as transforming
the landscape of higher education. Based on 2014 Census Bureau projections, Latinos will be the
largest racial-ethnic group in Texas by 2020 and will constitute the majority of Texas residents by
2044. Latinos are currently the largest minority group in the United States and by 2044, when
the country is “majority minority,” they will be 25% of the national population. Meanwhile, newly
released statistics by the Texas Education Agency show Latinos are already more than 50% of the
students in Texas public schools with growing numbers enrolling in colleges and universities
across the state.

With these demographics in mind, it has become a matter of high urgency to formulate curricula
and other initiatives to address the higher education needs of Latino students and to better
educate all students about the history and culture of a population group that is profoundly
important for the continuing development and success of Texas and the United States.

The Texas Workforce Commission Report on Texas Growth Occupations 2015 makes clear that
the greatest demand for workers in the future of our state will be in education, management,
professional and technical services, health care and social services, and energy production. Of
these, only energy production does not have immediate ties to Latino and Mexican American
studies. UNT students who go into growth occupations will have an advantage if they can show
knowledge and understanding about the state’s rapidly increasing Latino population. Future
Texas teachers, business leaders, doctors, nurses, social workers, and other professionals must be
prepared to understand the history, culture, and particular issues of the state’s Latino community
which they will increasingly serve in coming decades. The Latino and Mexican American Studies
program will prepare students to be more competitive in the increasingly challenging and diverse
workforce environment.

Latino and Mexican American Studies is a 120-hour BA program residing in the College of Liberal
Arts and Social Sciences, department of Political Science. Students take four (4) required
substantive classes (12 hours), four (4) classes (12 hours) across three (3) elective areas - in no
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more than two (2) areas, and complete either an internship and/or senior research paper (6
hours).

Financial Analysis/History:
The costs and funding needed for the BA in Latino and Mexican American Studies meets the

Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Programs established by the Coordinating Board
rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for new Baccalaureate and master’s Degree Programs.

The program will use existing faculty and courses. Resources were already acquired by the UNT
Library. This degree program is cost neutral.

Bob Brown:

Date: 2017.05.04 16:48:23 -05'00'

Institution Chief Financial Officer

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
a n e DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT System,

ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,

email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,
Waldron__::
— ——PBater26+765:68-69:26:36—65'00"

Vice Cnancellor for Finance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel. ;
Nancy S. Footer

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Fall 2017

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Regents approve adding the BA degree program
with a major in Latino and Mexican American Studies to the UNT degree program inventory.

Recommended By: O. Finley Graves
Provost and VPAA
Neal Dty sonediy sl Smutee
of N(‘)rfh Texas, ou=President, N
S matres k DT 505 cavtaT 0300
President
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Vice Chancellor

Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
DN: cn=Lee Jackson, o=UNT System,
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Chancellor

Attachments Filed Electronically:

e THECB Certification Form for New Degree Programs
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Board Order

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Bachelor of Arts Degree Program with a Major in
Latino and Mexican American Studies

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, UNT is uniquely positioned to offer an exceptional baccalaureate program in Latino
and Mexican American Studies, and

Whereas, UNT will be able to produce graduates with the breadth and depth of talent needed
for future success in their chosen field, and

Whereas, costs and funding needed for the BA with a major in Latino and Mexican American
Studies meets the Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’ Degree Programs established by the
Coordinating Board rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for New Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree
Program,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The addition of the UNT BA degree program with a major in Latino and Mexican
American Studies.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

Directions: An institution shall use this form to request a new bachelor’s or master’s degree program that
meets all criteria for approval in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:

(a) The program has institutional and governing board approval; (b) the program complies with the
Standards for Bachelor’s and Master's Programs; (c) adequate funds are available to cover the costs of
the new program; (d) new costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million;
(e) the program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14); and (f) the
program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.

If a new bachelor’s or master’s program does not meet the criteria above, an institution must submit a
request using the Form for Requesting a New Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Program.

Information: Contact the Division of Academic Quality and Workforce at 512/427-6200 for more information.

Administrative Information

1. Institution: University of North Texas

2. Program Name: Bachelor of Arts Degree Program with a Major in Latino and Mexican
American Studies

3. Proposed CIP Code: 45.0101.00

4. Number of Required Semester Credit Hours (SCHs)!:

A minimum of 120 hours including 30 hours at UNT are required for the
degree. A minimum of 42 advanced hours including 24 advanced hours earned
at UNT are required for the degree.

5. Administrative Unit:

The Department of Political Science within the College of Liberal Arts and Social Sciences

6. Delivery Mode: On campus instruction

7. Implementation Date: August 28, 2017

8. Contact Person:

Name: Valerie Martinez-Ebers

Title: University Distinguished Research Professor
E-mail: valerie.martinez-ebers@unt.edu

Phone: 940-390-2304

! Bachelor’s degrees should not exceed 120 SCH per Board rule 5.44 (a) (3). Those that exceed 120 SCH must provide
detailed documentation describing the compelling academic reason for the number of required hours, such as programmatic
accreditation requirements, statutory requirements, or licensure/certification requirements that cannot be met without
exceeding the 120-hour limit.
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Page 2

Signature Page
I hereby certify that all of the following criteria have been met in accordance with the
procedures outlined in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:
(@) The program has institutional and governing board approval.

(b) The program complies with the Standard’s for New Bachelor’s and Master’s
Programs.

(c) Adequate funds are available to cover the costs of the new program.
(d) New costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million.
(e) The program is a hon-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14).
(f) The program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.
I hereby certify that my institution has notified all public institutions within 50 miles of the
teaching site of our intention to offer the program at least 30 days prior to submitting this

request. I also certify that if any objections were received, those objections were resolved
prior to the submission of this request.

Chief Executive Officer Date

I hereby certify that the Board of Regents has approved this program.

Date of Board of Regents approval:

Board of Regents (or Designee) Date

Updated 2.23.15
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: March 24, 2017

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Bachelor of Science Degree Program with a Major in
Consumer Experience Management

Background:

The University of North Texas (UNT) is requesting to add a Bachelor of Science (BS) degree
program with a major in Consumer Experience Management, effective August 28, 2017.

This degree program will be housed in the Department of Merchandising and Digital Retailing
under the College of Merchandising, Hospitality Management, and Tourism (CMHT).

The BS degree program with a major in Consumer Experience Management is designed to prepare
graduates to meet current and future needs of Texas consumer services industries that include
retail, travel and leisure, and media. A digital explosion has empowered how 21st century
consumers seek and engage with products, services, and brands. Traditional business-to-
consumer (B2C) models are being supplanted by a new paradigm of consumer engagement built
on a customer’s journey that is driven by 24/7/365 digital access to products, services and
information and expectations for personalization and customization in the marketplace.

UNT is positioned to be the first university to offer this unique program using a collaborative and
interdisciplinary approach and CMHT’'s comprehensive inventory of retail, hospitality, and
tourism consumer-focused courses. This program will prepare graduates to understand
consumers’ expectations for a seamless, personal experience that occurs through end-to-end
commerce and omni-channel encounters — from customer engagement and experience to
operations and analytics.

Job market research for positions requiring a bachelor’s degree in combination with knowledge
and skills aligned with the Consumer Experience Management degree show a strong work force
need in this area with thousands of positions available across the United States. A nation-wide
online search was conducted to identify academic programs focused on consumer experience
management. Three universities offered Consumer Experience Management as a certificate
program or executive education program, but none were offering it as a degree program.

The proposed BS degree program with a major in Consumer Experience Management will require
a minimum of 120 hours. Of these 120 hours, 39 hours are required courses, 6 hours are
prescribed electives, and 33 hours are for a minor or concentration area.

Financial Analysis/History:

The costs and funding needed for the BS in Consumer Experience Management meets the
Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Programs established by the Coordinating Board
rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for new Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree Programs.
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The total funding over five years is $407,500. The funding total includes salaries for two (2)
faculty members (one (1) new hire in year three and a second hired in year four, depending on
program growth) and funds for maintenance and operations. The program will draw on existing

faculty and coursework, some of which is offered online.

UNT'’s total anticipated revenue over five (5) years is $1,568,410. The program will reallocate
funds to cover costs for the first two (2) years. By year three, UNT will recognize a positive revenue

source.

Digitally signed by Bob Brown
DN: cn=Bob Brown, o=University of North
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Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Digitally signed by Nancy . Footer

Nancy S. Footer g

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:
Fall 2017

Recommendation:

The Provost recommends that the Board of Regents approve adding the BS degree program with
a major in Consumer Experience Management to the UNT degree program inventory.

Recommended By:
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President
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Board Order

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Bachelor of Science Degree Program with a Major in
Consumer Experience Management

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the University of North Texas is positioned to be the first to offer the BS degree in
Consumer Experience Management, and

Whereas, business paradigm shift for consumer engagement has created a strong job market
for graduates in this field, and

Whereas, costs and funding needed for the BS degree in Consumer Experience Management
meets the Standards for Bachelor's and Master’ Degree Programs established by the Coordinating
Board rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for New Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree Program,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The addition of the UNT BS degree program with a major in Consumer Experience
Management.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

Directions: An institution shall use this form to request a new bachelor’s or master’s degree program that
meets all criteria for approval in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:

(a) The program has institutional and governing board approval; (b) the program complies with the
Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs; (c) adequate funds are available to cover the costs of
the new program; (d) new costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million;
(e) the program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14); and (f) the
program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.

If @ new bachelor’s or master’s program does not meet the criteria above, an institution must submit a
request using the Form for Requesting a New Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Program.

Information: Contact the Division of Academic Quality and Workforce at 512/427-6200 for more information.

Administrative Information

1. Institution: University of North Texas

2. Program Name: Bachelor of Science Degree Program with a Major in Consumer
Experience Management

3. Proposed CIP Code: 52.0207 Customer Service Management

4. Number of Required Semester Credit Hours (SCHs)!: 120

5. Administrative Unit: Department of Merchandising and Digital Retailing within the
College of Merchandising, Hospitality and Tourism

6. Delivery Mode: Face to Face and Online

7. Implementation Date: August 28, 2017

8. Contact Person:
Name: Judith Forney
Title: Dean
E-mail: JForney@unt.edu
Phone: 940.565.2448 (direct) or 940-565-2925 (Terri Yip, Assistant to the Dean)

! Bachelor’s degrees should not exceed 120 SCH per Board rule 5.44 (a) (3). Those that exceed 120 SCH must
provide detailed documentation describing the compelling academic reason for the number of required hours, such
as programmatic accreditation requirements, statutory requirements, or licensure/certification requirements that
cannot be met without exceeding the 120-hour limit.
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Page 2

Signature Page
I hereby certify that all of the following criteria have been met in accordance with the
procedures outlined in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:
(@) The program has institutional and governing board approval.

(b) The program complies with the Standard’s for New Bachelor’s and Master’s
Programs.

(c) Adequate funds are available to cover the costs of the new program.
(d) New costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million.
(e) The program is a hon-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14).
(f) The program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.
I hereby certify that my institution has notified all public institutions within 50 miles of the
teaching site of our intention to offer the program at least 30 days prior to submitting this

request. I also certify that if any objections were received, those objections were resolved
prior to the submission of this request.

Chief Executive Officer Date

I hereby certify that the Board of Regents has approved this program.

Date of Board of Regents approval:

Board of Regents (or Designee) Date

Updated 2.23.15
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: March 24, 2017

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in Digital
Communication Analytics

Background:

The University of North Texas (UNT) is requesting to add a Master of Science (MS) degree
program with a major in Digital Communication Analytics, effective August 28, 2017.

Public relations (PR) and advertising as professions are in the midst of drastic transformation and
movement toward quantification. The industry of PR has seen exponential growth of social media
platforms and communications, whose metrics have been a hot topic for many years. Despite the
PR and advertising industries’ strong demand for more numerically savvy communications
professionals, college graduates from traditional programs are ill-prepared for the challenge. The
proposed program will take a guided, transdisciplinary approach to preparing graduate students
and acclimating current professionals to the growing demands of a data-driven market. Current
programs have been analyzed. This degree will connect industry and existing programs to create
new career pathways in fields related to journalism, advertising, public relations, and marketing.

There is a need in the workforce for graduates with analytic skills. The Bureau of Labor Statistics
has predicted that market research analyst employment opportunities will grow by 19%, or more
than 92,000 jobs. The need for advertising, promotion, and marketing managers will grow by 9%,
or 19,700 jobs during the same timeframe.

The Digital Communication Analytics program will build on existing faculty expertise in
Journalism, Learning Technology, Information Science, and Marketing. In addition to six (6)
Journalism courses, required courses will include one (1) existing Marketing course and one (1)
existing Learning Technology course. Electives include courses from Journalism, Business, and
Learning Technology.

The MS degree program with a major in Digital Communication Analytics requires 36 hours.

Financial Analysis/History:

The costs and funding needed for the MS degree with a major in Digital Communication Analytics
meets the Standards for Bachelor’'s and Master's Degree Programs established by the
Coordinating Board rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for new Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree
Programs.

The total funding over five (5) years is $1,284,317. The funding total includes salaries for two (2)

full-time faculty members (assistant professor and lecturer), adjunct salaries, and funds for
maintenance and operations.
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UNT'’s total anticipated revenue over five (5) years is $2,236,632. The program will be funded
through the use of UNT incentive funds that were set aside for initiatives that have the potential

to increase university enrollment.

Digitally signed by Bob Brown
DN: cn=Bob Brown, o=University of North

Bo b Brown meariaime miximnssin
-email=bob.brown@unt.edu, c=US

Date: 2017.05.04 16:50:50 -05'00"

Institution Chief Financial Officer

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT System,
ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,

Janet
Wa I d&_ i“;;lﬂanet.waIdron@untsysfenlw.edu,

Vice Chancellor for Finance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Digitally signed by Nancy S. Footer

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Fall 2017

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Regents approve adding the MS degree program
with a major in Digital Communication Analytics to the UNT degree program inventory.
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Board Order

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in Digital
Communication Analytics

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 17-18, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the MS in Digital Communication Analytics degree program is designed to prepare
students for an evolving workforce by providing marketable skills and to meet the needs created
by the growth in data analytics, and

Whereas, the MS in Digital Communication Analytics degree program will build on course
offerings already in place in Information Science and Business, and

Whereas, costs and funding needed for the MS degree in Digital Communication Analytics
meets the Standards for Bachelor's and Master’ Degree Programs established by the Coordinating
Board rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for New Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree Programs,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The addition of the UNT MS degree program with a major in Digital Communication
Analytics.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

Directions: An institution shall use this form to request a new bachelor’'s or master’s degree program that
meets all criteria for approval in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:

(a) The program has institutional and governing board approval; (b) the program complies with the
Standards for Bachelor's and Master’s Programs, (c) adequate funds are available to cover the costs of
the new program; (d) new costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million;
(e) the program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14); and (f) the
program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.

If a new bachelor’s or master’s program does not meet the criteria above, an institution must submit a
request using the Form for Requesting a New Bachelor’s and Master's Degree Program.

Information: Contact the Division of Academic Quality and Workforce at 512/427-6200 for more information.

Administrative Information

1. Institution:  ynjversity of North Texas

2. Program Name: paster of Science with a Major in Digital Communications Analytics

3. Proposed CIP Code: 11.0401.00 Information Science/Studies

4. Number of Required Semester Credit Hours (SCHs)!: 36

5. Administrative Unit:  Mayborn School of Journalism

6. Delivery Mode:  Both online and face to face

7. Implementation Date: August 28, 2017

8. Contact Person:
Name: Dorothy Bland
Title: Dean, Mayborn School of Journalism
E-mail: Dorothy.Bland@UNT.EDU

Phone:  940-565-4917

! Bachelor’s degrees should not exceed 120 SCH per Board rule 5.44 (a) (3). Those that exceed 120 SCH must
provide detailed documentation describing the compelling academic reason for the number of required hours, such
as programmatic accreditation requirements, statutory requirements, or licensure/certification requirements that
cannot be met without exceeding the 120-hour limit.
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Certification Form for New Bachelor's and Master’s Programs
Page 2

Sighature Page
I hereby certify that all of the following criteria have been met in accordance with the
procedures outlined in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:
(a) The program has institutional and governing board approval.

(b) The program complies with the Standard'’s for New Bachelor’s and Master’s
Programs.

(c) Adequate funds are available to cover the costs of the new program.
(d) New costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million.
(e) The program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14).
(f) The program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.
I hereby certify that my institution has notified all public institutions within 50 miles of the
teaching site of our intention to offer the program at least 30 days prior to submitting this

request. | also certify that if any objections were received, those objections were resolved
prior to the submission of this request.

Chief Executive Officer Date

I hereby certify that the Board of Regents has approved this program.

Date of Board of Regents approval:

Board of Regents (or Designee) Date

Updated 2.23.15
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 10, 2017

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in Data
Science

Background:

The University of North Texas (UNT) is requesting to add a Master of Science (MS) degree
program with a major in Data Science, effective August 28, 2017.

The MS degree program with a major in Data Science is designed to address the current market
needs for highly skilled data science professionals. Continued technological advances and the
exponential growth of data/information are creating new types of jobs that did not exist before.
There has been a significant increase in the number of data-related employment positions such
as data scientist, data science manager, data science application developer, data science engineer,
big data analyst, data science consultant, data science architect, and data manager. As data
accumulates, organizations are increasingly hiring individuals with the expertise to find meaning
in the numbers and drive positive business decisions based on what they learn.

The MS degree program with a major in Data Science will prepare students for careers in data
science with a broad knowledge of the tools, techniques, and methods. Some of the areas this
program is concerned with include statistical analysis, natural language processing,
computational linguistics, information retrieval, information visualization, social network
analysis, text analytics, and data mining. The program helps graduates to acquire the type of skills
and competencies needed in designing, implementing, and transforming data sets and large
volumes of information into actionable knowledge. It provides students with the knowledge they
need to manage data science projects and work with analytic tools and technologies. The program
will educate a new generation of information professionals capable of taking the leadership role
through connecting the dots and using data to support information and knowledge management
initiatives within the organization.

The Department of Information Science currently offers an MS in Information Science with a
concentration in Data Science. There are enough existing courses to support the core of this stand-
alone degree program. Student demand for data science courses has required the department to
add additional sections in recent years.

Thirty-six (36) credit hours are required for this Master’s degree. All students are required to
complete three (3) foundation (core) courses: INFO 5501 - Fundamentals of Data Science and
Data Analytics; INFO 5502 - Analytic Tools, Techniques, and Methods; and INFO 5709 - Data
Visualization and Communication. Students also must complete a research project through INFO
5082 (3 hours) — Seminar in Research and Research Methodology.

Elective courses are comprised of existing courses from Business, Linguistics and Engineering in
addition to Information Science. The curriculum of this degree program will provide additional
depth of knowledge and allow students expanded flexibility on the world market.
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Financial Analysis/History:

The costs and funding needed for the MS degree with a major in Data Science meets the Standards
for Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Programs established by the Coordinating Board rules, Section
5.45, Criteria for new Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree Programs.

The total funding over five (5) years is $1,118,159. The funding total includes salaries for two (2)
full-time faculty members, adjunct salaries, and funds for maintenance and operations. UNT’s
total anticipated revenue over five (5) years is $2,772,789. The Department of Information
Sciences will cover program costs until formula funding begins.

Digitally signed by Bob Brown
DN: cn=Bob Brown, o=University of North

B o b B ro W n Texas, ou=VP for Finance and Administration,
email=bob.brown@unt.edu, c=US

Date: 2017.05.04 17:11:14 -05'00

Institution Chief Financial Officer
Digitally signed by Janet Waldron

J a n et DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT System,

ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,
email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,

c=US
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Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Digitally signed by Nancy . Footer

Nancy S. Footer s

Date:

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Fall 2017

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Regents approve adding the MS degree program
with a major in Data Science to the UNT degree program inventory.

Recommended By: O. Finley Graves
Provost and VPAA
Neal Dy snsdiy el Svk
of NQTh Texas, ou=President, -
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President
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THECB Certification Form for New Degree Programs
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Board Order

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in
Data Science

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the proposed MS with a major in Data Science degree program is designed to
educate a new generation of information professionals, and

Whereas, there are growing employment opportunities and a shortage of educated
professionals in the field, and

Whereas, costs and funding needed for the MS degree with a major in Data Science meets the
Standards for Bachelor's and Master’ Degree Programs established by the Coordinating Board
rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for New Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree Programs,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The addition of the UNT MS degree program with a major in Data Science.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents

SYSTEM

Page 116 of 697



Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

Directions: An institution shall use this form to request a new bachelor’s or master’s degree program that
meets all criteria for approval in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:

(a) The program has institutional and governing board approval; (b) the program complies with the
Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs; (c) adequate funds are available to cover the costs of
the new program; (d) new costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million;
(e) the program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14); and (f) the
program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.

If @ new bachelor’s or master’s program does not meet the criteria above, an institution must submit a
request using the Form for Requesting a New Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Program.

Information: Contact the Division of Academic Quality and Workforce at 512/427-6200 for more information.

Administrative Information

1. Institution: University of North Texas

2. Program Name: Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in Data Science

3. Proposed CIP Code: 11.0401.00 Information Science/Studies

4. Number of Required Semester Credit Hours (SCHs)!: 36

5. Administrative Unit: Department of Information Science within the College of
Information

6. Delivery Mode: Both online and face to face

7. Implementation Date: August 28, 2017

8. Contact Person:
Name: Suliman Hawamdeh
Title: Professor and Department Chair
E-mail: suliman.hawadeh@unt.edu
Phone: 940-565-3690

! Bachelor’s degrees should not exceed 120 SCH per Board rule 5.44 (a) (3). Those that exceed 120 SCH must
provide detailed documentation describing the compelling academic reason for the number of required hours, such
as programmatic accreditation requirements, statutory requirements, or licensure/certification requirements that
cannot be met without exceeding the 120-hour limit.
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Page 2

Signature Page
I hereby certify that all of the following criteria have been met in accordance with the
procedures outlined in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:
(@) The program has institutional and governing board approval.

(b) The program complies with the Standard’s for New Bachelor’s and Master’s
Programs.

(c) Adequate funds are available to cover the costs of the new program.
(d) New costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million.
(e) The program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14).
(f) The program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.
I hereby certify that my institution has notified all public institutions within 50 miles of the
teaching site of our intention to offer the program at least 30 days prior to submitting this

request. I also certify that if any objections were received, those objections were resolved
prior to the submission of this request.

Chief Executive Officer Date

I hereby certify that the Board of Regents has approved this program.

Date of Board of Regents approval:

Board of Regents (or Designee) Date

Updated 2.23.15
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: March 17, 2017

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in
Advanced Data Analytics

Background:

The University of North Texas (UNT) is requesting to add a Master of Science (MS) degree
program with a major in Advanced Data Analytics, effective August 28, 2017.

The MS in Advanced Data Analytics is a focused interdisciplinary degree designed to provide
students with the academic and practical preparation necessary to meet a growing research field,
and a rapidly expanding need of business and industry. The program centers on developing deep
analytic competencies in statistics and data analysis, coupled with a strong knowledge of
contemporary data structures, to prepare students to conduct sophisticated analysis in business,
industry, and science. Graduates are expected to pursue careers as senior statisticians/data
analysts in industry and/or go onto PhD programs in quantitative fields. Students completing the
MS in Advanced Data Analytics are expected to be academically prepared for the PStat/GStat
statistician accreditation through the American Statistical Association. The quantitative and
statistical analysis focus of the program blends academic research with industry trends by
addressing the seven (7) domains identified by the Certified Analytics Professional certification
program. The MS in Advanced Data Analytics also employs a case study approach by collaborating
with regional businesses, to provide pertinent classroom experiences to complement the rigorous
gquantitative preparation. This approach ensures that graduates in a research and quantitative
degree program are highly competitive in the job market and are successful in obtaining relevant
industry certifications (e.g., the Certified Analytics Professional credential from the Institute for
Operations Research and Management Science).

The Dallas-Fort Worth region is ranked among the top 10 metropolitan areas in the U.S. for
technology-oriented business based on the number of jobs, sector growth, and compensation.
Regional employment growth in the technology services sector, which includes data analytics
related jobs, was greater than 11% over 2016. A recent McKinsey report estimates that there will
be 140,000 to 190,000 unfilled data analytics positions in the U.S. by 2018. The proposed MS in
Advanced Data Analytics program will help meet the demand for data analysts across diverse
industry sectors and provide opportunities for graduates to enter high-paying careers.

The MS with a major in Advanced Data Analytics is a 30-hour degree program. Students are
required to complete 21 semester credit hours in Data Analytics; Large Data Visualization;
Harvesting, Storing, and Retrieving Data; Discovery and Learning with Big Data; and an
interdisciplinary capstone course. Elective courses range from database management to
information and cyber security.
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Financial Analysis/History:

The costs and funding needed for the MS with a major in Advanced Data Analytics meets the
Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Programs established by the Coordinating Board
rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for new Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree Programs.

The total funding over five (5) years is $1,235,240. The funding total includes salaries for two (2)
full-time faculty members, adjunct salaries, and funds for maintenance and operations. UNT’s
total anticipated revenue over five (5) years is $3,149,887. The program will be funded through
the use of UNT incentive funds that were set aside for initiatives that have the potential to increase
university enrollment.
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Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Fall 2017

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Regents approve adding the MS degree program
with a major in Advanced Data Analytics to the UNT degree program inventory.

Recommended By: O. Finley Graves
Provost and VPAA
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President
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Board Order

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in
Advanced Data Analytics

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, there is an increasing demand for graduates trained in data analytics for business
and industry fields, and

Whereas, UNT is strategically positioned in the Dallas-Fort Worth region to offer the MS with

amajor in Advanced Data Analytics both face-to-face and online in order to meet varying needs
of students, and

Whereas, costs and funding needed for the MS with a major in Advanced Data Analytics
meets the Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’ Degree Programs established by the
Coordinating Board rules, Section 5.45, Criteria for New Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree
Program,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The addition of the UNT MS degree program with a major in Advanced Data Analytics.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

Directions: An institution shall use this form to request a new bachelor’s or master’s degree program that
meets all criteria for approval in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:

(a) The program has institutional and governing board approval; (b) the program complies with the
Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs; (c) adequate funds are available to cover the costs of
the new program; (d) new costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million;
(e) the program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14); and (f) the
program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.

If @ new bachelor’s or master’s program does not meet the criteria above, an institution must submit a
request using the Form for Requesting a New Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Program.

Information: Contact the Division of Academic Quality and Workforce at 512/427-6200 for more information.

Administrative Information

1. Institution: University of North Texas

2. Program Name: Master of Science Degree Program with a Major in Advanced Data
Analytics

3. Proposed CIP Code: 27.0599

4. Number of Required Semester Credit Hours (SCHs)!: 30 SCH

5. Administrative Unit: Toulouse Graduate School

! Bachelor’s degrees should not exceed 120 SCH per Board rule 5.44 (a) (3). Those that exceed 120 SCH must
provide detailed documentation describing the compelling academic reason for the number of required hours, such
as programmatic accreditation requirements, statutory requirements, or licensure/certification requirements that
cannot be met without exceeding the 120-hour limit.
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs

Page 2

6. Delivery Mode: Both online and face to face

7. Implementation Date: 8/28/2017

8. Contact Person:

Name: Terri Day

Title: Special Assistant to the Provost
E-mail: Terri.Day@UNT.edu

Phone: 940-565-4392

Updated 2.23.15

Page 124 of 697



Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Page 2

Signature Page
I hereby certify that all of the following criteria have been met in accordance with the
procedures outlined in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:
(@) The program has institutional and governing board approval.

(b) The program complies with the Standard’s for New Bachelor’s and Master’s
Programs.

(c) Adequate funds are available to cover the costs of the new program.
(d) New costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million.
(e) The program is a hon-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14).
(f) The program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.
I hereby certify that my institution has notified all public institutions within 50 miles of the
teaching site of our intention to offer the program at least 30 days prior to submitting this

request. I also certify that if any objections were received, those objections were resolved
prior to the submission of this request.

Chief Executive Officer Date

I hereby certify that the Board of Regents has approved this program.

Date of Board of Regents approval:

Board of Regents (or Designee) Date

Updated 2.23.15
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 27, 2017

Title: Approval of UNTHSC Tenure Recommendations

Background:

The faculty listed below for tenure recommendation have been carefully reviewed by the
appropriate school/college promotion and tenure committees following the established
procedures and published criteria, and endorsed by the Chair/Institute Executive Director,
Dean, Interim Provost, and the President.

Dr. Rebecca Cunningham received her PhD in Neurobiology from the University of Texas — San
Antonio in 2006, and completed a succession of postdoctoral training fellowships in 2014. She
joined the UNT Health Science Center (UNTHSC) in 2014, and is currently an Assistant
Professor in the Institute for Healthy Aging, with an academic appointment in the Graduate
School of Biomedical Sciences (GSBS). As a member of the faculty, Dr. Cunningham has been
successful in the areas of student education and training, research, and contributes significantly
and meaningfully to the mission of UNTHSC. In research, her accomplishments are
underscored by her success in securing funding from the National Institutes of Health (NIH)
and other private foundations, which in this highly competitive climate for funding, is a
testament to the high caliber of her research program. In teaching, she plays an active role in
the training and mentoring of graduate students. And in service, both locally and nationally, she
has contributed significantly, as exemplified by her service on several institutional committees
at UNTHSC, and her selection to serve on Editorial Boards of highly visible and reputable
scientific journals that include Endocrinology and the Journal of Alzheimer's Disease. Her
accomplishments are also underscored and recognized through several awards, including the
2016 Health Care Hero award from the Fort Worth Business Press. Dr. Cunningham’s past
performance, and her highly collaborative style of interaction with students, staff and faculty
alike, is a predictor of her future success and contributions to the mission of UNTHSC. The
awarding of tenure to Dr. Cunningham will promote the continued success of UNTHSC.

Dr. Harlan Jones received his PhD in Biomedical Sciences from the UNTHSC in 2001 and he
completed his postdoctoral training at the Emory University School of Medicine in 2004. He is
currently an Assistant Professor in the newly established Center for Infectious and
Inflammatory Diseases, Institute for Molecular Medicine, with an academic appointment in the
GSBS. Dr. Jones has served on numerous committees on campus, especially in the area of
minority outreach. These activities align well with the institutional mission and core value of
serving others first. Dr. Jones currently serves as the Associate Director of the Professional
Development Core of the National Research Mentoring Network, and the Director of Relations
for the Center for Diversity and International Programs. From 2009-2010 Dr. Jones served as
the Director of Graduate Student Recruitment and Minority Affairs. From 2010-2014, he served
as the Assistant Dean for Recruitment and Outreach in the GSBS. He also contributes to the
GSBS teaching and service missions through his didactic presentations, committee
appointments and his mentorship of graduate students. His work in this area was honored by
the UNTHSC Graduate Student Association (GSA) in 2006 when he was selected as the GSA
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Outstanding Graduate Faculty Member of the Year. The awarding of tenure will allow Dr. Jones
to continue to contribute to the mission of this institution.

Dr. Scott R. Penzak received his PharmD from Wayne State University, Detroit, MI, in 1997. He
is currently a Professor and serves as the Vice Chair in the Department of Pharmacotherapy in
the University of North Texas System College of Pharmacy (UNTSCP). Dr. Penzak was recruited
from the NIH where he was the Director of the Clinical Pharmacokinetics Research Laboratory
(CPRL) from 2001-2014. From 1998-2001, Dr. Penzak was an Assistant Professor of Pharmacy
Practice at Mercer University College of Pharmacy. Dr. Penzak joined UNTSCP to participate in
starting a new pharmacy program in an academic health science center, with new facilities, and
the vast opportunities for building research collaborations. Since 2014, he has authored or co-
authored 14 peer-review publications that have been published in Nature, Clinical Infectious
Disease, PL0S One, BioMed Central Cardiovascular Disorders, and Pharmacotherapy. Dr.
Penzak’s publications have been and continue to be cited in literature. In 2013, he received the
NIH Director’s Award in Science for “Continuous Excellence in Science and Contributions to the
HIV Literature”. He was selected by the pharmacy students in 2014 as the Pharmacotherapy
Faculty Teacher of the Year. Dr. Penzak was also selected by the American Association of
Colleges of Pharmacy (AACP) Academic Leadership Fellows Program for 2016-2017. The
awarding of tenure will allow him to continue his success in scholarly activities, expand
educational skills and promote research partnerships.

Dr. Katalin Prokai received her BSc in Chemical Engineering, MSc in Chemistry, and PhD in
Organic Chemistry from the University of Veszprem (now University of Pannonia) in Veszprem,
Hungary. She completed post-doctoral training in Medicinal Chemistry, Drug Delivery, and
Bioanalytical Chemistry at the University of Florida. She joined UNTHSC as faculty in the
Department of Pharmacology and Neuroscience in 2005 and is currently an Associate Professor.
She became one of the founding faculty members of the UNTSCP in the Department of
Pharmaceutical Sciences in 2012. Dr. Prokai has extensive teaching experience. She taught
“Drug Discovery and Design” and “Integrated Biomedical Sciences” to graduate students in
GSBS, UNTHSC, from 2007-2012. She has served as the course director in “Pharmaceutics 1”
and “Pharmaceutics 11” and as a co-course director in “Basic Principles in Medicinal Chemistry
& Pharmacology”. She was awarded “2015-2016 Teaching Faculty of the Year Award” by the
Pharmacy Student Government Association. Dr. Prokai has a long history of research successes
and productivity. She has been active in research for the past 30 years, and published more
than 50 peer-reviewed manuscripts. She is internationally known for her research
contributions. Dr. Prokai has been successful in securing research funding on a novel drug
design for glaucoma therapy. The awarding of tenure will allow her to continue her success in
education and research.

Financial Analysis/History:

In general, the award of tenure carries with it the assurance of continued employment absent
the showing of good cause for termination.

Gregory R. &
A n d e rSO n Date: 2017.05.05 :20 -05'00 e

Institution Chief Financial Officer
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Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Nancy S. Footer

Date: 2017.05.09 16:06:28 -05'00°

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Effective September 1, 2017.

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Regents authorize and approve the following
faculty for tenure effective September 1, 2017:

Dr. Rebecca Cunningham
Dr. Harlan Jones

Dr. Scott Penzak

Dr. Katalin Prokai

PN

Recommended By: Claire Peel

Interim Provost

Dr‘ \‘ .‘: \ed by Dr. Michael R.
Michael R.
Williams

ed
Date: 2017.05.04 18:12:32 05'00"

President

Digitally signed by Rosemary R. Haggett
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Board Order

Title: Approval of UNTHSC Tenure Recommendations

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the tenure recommendations have been carefully reviewed by the appropriate
school/college promotion and tenure committees following the established procedures and
published criteria, and

Whereas, these recommendations are endorsed by the Chair/Institute Executive Director,
Dean, Interim Provost, and the President, and

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following faculty
for tenure effective September 1, 2017:

1. Dr. Rebecca Cunningham
2. Dr. Harlan Jones
3. Dr. Scott Penzak
4. Dr. Katalin Prokai
VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 12, 2017

Title: Approval of UNT Dallas Tenure Recommendations

Background:

In accordance with the University of North Texas at Dallas Policy 6.009 Tenure and/or Promotion
Review, the faculty listed below for tenure recommendation have been carefully reviewed and
endorsed by the Program Chair, Dean, Provost and President.

Dr. Iftehar Amin was hired in 2010 as Assistant Professor of Counseling in the School of
Human Services. He received his B.S. and M.A. in Sociology from the University of Dhaka in
Bangladesh. He received a M.A. in Sociology from the University of Texas at Arlington and a Ph.D.
in Sociology from the University of North Texas. Prior to coming to UNT Dallas he taught at the
University of Louisiana at Monroe. Dr. Amin has demonstrated excellence in teaching through
consistently favorable student evaluations. He was instrumental in creating an online certificate
in gerontology and coordinated this program with service learning activities. Dr. Amin has an
excellent record of refereed publications and presentations, which have been published in well-
regarded journals in his field. Dr. Amin serves the university well. He is a collegial faculty member
and has developed partnerships with agencies and organizations in the Dallas region. He also has
been active in serving on various committees within the university and has organized meetings
for his profession.

Dr. Matthew Babcock joined the UNT Dallas faculty in 2010 as an Assistant Professor in Social
Sciences. He received a B.A. in History and Spanish from Dartmouth College, an M.A. in History
from the University of New Mexico and a Ph.D. in History from Southern Methodist University.
Prior to coming to UNT Dallas, he taught at Stephen F. Austin University. Dr. Babcock is an
organized, dedicated and knowledgeable teacher who engages his students through critical
thinking. His teaching evaluations are consistently of high quality. He interacts with students
regularly and challenges them to work hard and stretch themselves. Dr. Babcock is a true scholar
and an expert in his field. His new book titled Apache Adaptation to Hispanic Rule, is a
foundational contribution to his field and was published by Cambridge University Press. Dr.
Babcock serves as program coordinator for History/Social Sciences. He has also served on over
twenty university committees and has delivered four Texas State Historical Association lectures
to public school teachers in Richardson, Houston and Austin, TX.

Dr. Walter Borges joined the UNT Dallas faculty in 2010 as an Assistant Professor of Social
Sciences. He received a B.A. in History from Cornell University and a Ph.D. in Political Science
from the University of Texas at Dallas. Prior to coming to UNT Dallas, he taught in the
Department of Public and International Affairs at George Mason University in Virginia. Dr.
Borges has been rated as highly effective by his students and has done so in classes enrolling larger
than normal numbers of students at the university. He is an organized, dedicated,
knowledgeable, and creative teacher who delivers important content to students through
accessible and strategic modes of teaching. Dr. Borges’' research focuses largely on electoral
politics. His current work includes a chapter for a new reader on Texas politics, as well as a co-
authored book about Presidential and Congressional voting during the Obama administration.
His work has been cited by numerous scholars in the field of political science. Dr. Borges has
dedicated himself to service while at the university. He has served as president of Faculty Alliance,

SYSTEM

Page 130 of 697



participated broadly in university functions and has been asked to serve on the editorial board of
Electoral Studies, a prestigious journal in political science and international relations.

Dr. Gwendolyn Johnson joined the UNT Dallas faculty in 2010 as an Assistant Professor of
Education. She received her B.S. in Mathematics Education and her M.B.A. from Bowling Green
State University. She received her Ph.D. in Curriculum and Instruction from the University of
South Florida. Dr. Johnson consistently receives excellent evaluations from her students and
peers as evidence of her teaching excellence. She not only holds high expectations for her students
but works tirelessly to adapt her methods and strategic modes of delivery to her students’ needs.
Dr. Johnson’s research revolves around middle-and high-school mathematics curricula, teachers’
knowledge of and feelings about mathematics, and language issues in the teaching of
mathematics. She has published in top-tier mathematics journals and is consistently called upon
to contribute to scholarly books and publications through the inclusion of higher order
mathematics activities. Additionally, she has been awarded two Teacher Quality Grants from the
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board to engage multiple school districts around improving
mathematics instructions in grades 4-6. Dr. Johnson has been very committed to service to the
university. She is very dedicated to mentoring students and has provided a free tutoring service
to assist students with passing math sections of the teacher certification exam. Currently she is
an officer in the Faculty Alliance.

Dr. Byungik Kahng joined the UNT Dallas Faculty in 2010 as an Assistant Professor of
Mathematics. He received a B.S. in Mathematics from Seoul National University, a M.S. in
Mathematics from Stanford University, and a Ph.D. in Mathematics from the University of Illinois
at Urbana-Champaign. Prior to coming to UNT Dallas, he served as a Visiting Assistant Professor
and Postdoctoral Researcher at the College of William and Mary. Dr. Kahng is a very effective
teacher who receives stellar evaluations from his students. He has been a pioneer of online Math
instruction at UNT Dallas. He commits to learning his students’ names and interacts with them
both in- and outside of the classroom. Dr. Kahng is an excellent scholar and has numerous
publications. He has supervised 23 undergraduate research projects which produced 30 external
conference presentations. He is ranked 4% among 52 mathematics teachers serving
comprehensive public universities in the Dallas-Fort Worth area for the number of citations of his
work. Dr. Kahng has an excellent service record. He oversees the Math Club and has contributed
significantly to shaping his department and the university.

Dr. Yu-fen Lin joined the UNT Dallas Faculty in 2010 as Assistant Professor of Counseling
Education. She earned a B.A. in French from Dang-Chiang University, a M. Div. in Theology from
Taiwan Theological College and Seminary, a M.S. in Counseling from Texas A&M-Commerce, and
a Ph.D. in Counselor Education from Sam Houston State University. Dr. Lin’s teaching has been
rated very highly by both students and faculty. She is known as a caring teacher who is dedicated
to thinking about how to engage her students. Dr. Lin is a highly regarded researcher whose work
adds substantial value to the counseling field, as attested by external reviewers. Her research is
particularly relevant to the American Counseling Association proving useful for the development
of practicing clinicians. Dr. Lin is the Internship Coordinator within her department. She is also
active in community and campus activities and has served the university on the Faculty Alliance
work-life committee.

Financial Analysis/History:

In general, the award of tenure carries with it the assurance of continued employment absent the

showing of good cause for termination. Digitally signed by
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Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.
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Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:
Tenure will be effective September 1, 2017.

Recommendation:

The president recommends that the Board of Regents authorize and approve the following faculty
for tenure effective September 1, 2017.

1. Dr. Iftehar Amin
2. Dr. Matthew Babcock
3. Dr. Walter Borges
4. Dr. Gwendolyn Johnson
5. Dr. Byungik Kahng
6. Dr. Yu-fenLin
Recommended By: Betty Stewart

Provost
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President
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Board Order

Title: Approval of UNT Dallas Tenure Recommendations

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18 - 19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and

seconded by Regent

, the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, in accordance with the University of North Texas at Dallas Policy 6.009 Tenure
and/or Promotion Review, these recommendations have been carefully reviewed and endorsed
by the Program Chair, Dean, Provost and the President, and

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following faculty
for tenure upon Board approval effective September 1, 2017:

Dr. Iftehar Amin

Dr. Matthew Babcock
Dr. Walter Borges

Dr. Gwendolyn Johnson
Dr. Byungik Kahng

Dr. Yu-fen Lin

o0k W

VOTE: ayes nays

BOARD ACTION:
Attested By:

Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary
Board of Regents

abstentions

Approved By:

Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents
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Committee: Academic Affairs &
Student Success

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 12, 2017

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Dallas Bachelor of Business Administration Degree with
a Major in Business Analytics

Background:

This undergraduate program introduces students to the data and business analysis industry,
culminating in a Bachelor of Business Administration degree with a major in Business Analytics.
This is a program of study for students desiring work in areas that involve statistical analysis, data
preparation, data presentation, and database management.

The program will be designed to provide students with the following:

e Practiced expertise in entry-level statistical analysis, furthering the exposure to statistical
method used by the data sciences

» Experiential orientation and applied experiences in statistical analysis tools, focusing on
the standards at the time of offering

e Experiential orientation and applied experiences in statistical presentation tools, focusing
on the standards at the time of offering

e Industry standard approaches and practices of the data sciences with respect to database
management

The proposed degree is a business program that will provide coursework and experiential learning
activities (internships, service learning, and capstone projects) in business analytics. Application
of industry standards, maintaining relevancy, applied mathematical competence, communication
and social skills, presentation methodology, and creative approaches to data science will be
emphasized. A solid network of partnerships with area organizations who practice data and
business analytics in a manner that supports internships and jobs for students as well as advice
and support for faculty is a major emphasis of the program.

The degree will require a total of 120 semester credit hours summarized in the table below.

Semester
Category Credit
Hours
General Education Core Curriculum 42
Required Business Core 27
Additional Pre-Business Requirements 15
Required Courses for the Major 18
Prescribed Electives for the Major 9
Free Electives 9
TOTAL 120
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Upon completion graduates will be able to:
1) Analyze data and business problems from a statistical perspective
2) Lead meetings utilizing appropriate visualization techniques to present complex data
patterns
3) Utilize modern computational tools to aid in solving complex problems
4) Compose recommendations for best practices with regard to strategic issues

Financial Analysis/History:

The costs and funding needed for the Bachelor of Business Administration with a major in
Business Analytics meet the Standard for Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree Programs established
by the Coordinating Board rules, Section 5-45, Criteria for new Baccalaureate and Master’s Degree
Programs. Projected five-year costs and funding are summarized in the table below.

UNT Dallas currently has one full-time lecturer and one full-time associate professor/assistant
dean as a members of the faculty who are academically qualified to teach in the program. The
university is committed to the hiring of one additional tenure-track professor to teach in the
program starting in Fall 2018.

The current facilities, material equipment, and library resources are adequate to support the new
program.

Five-Year Costs Five-Year Funding
Personnel $695,000 | Reallocated Funds $0
Facilities and Equipment Anticipated New Formula
$0 | Funding? $309,325
Library, Supplies, Special Item Funding
and Materials $0 $0
Other2 $2000 | Designated Tuition*
$816,476
Total Costs $697,000 | Total Funding $1,125,801

daniel.edelman gstassreaey
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Institution Chief Financial Officer
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Schedule:

Upon approval by the Board of Regents, the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board, and the
Commission on Colleges of the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools, enrollment of the
initial class would be scheduled for Fall 2018.

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Regents approve the authorization of a new Bachelor
of Business Administration degree with a major in Business Analytics.

Recommended By: Betty Stewart

Provost
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Board Order

Title: Approval to Add the UNT Dallas Bachelor of Business Administration Degree with
a Major in Business Analytics

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18 - 19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the Bachelor of Business Administration Degree with a major in Business Analytics
will prepare students for work in areas that involve statistical analysis, data preparation, data
presentation, and database management, and

Whereas, the job market need for the proposed business analytics program is driven by high
growth in the number of jobs in the data sciences, and

Whereas, there is a projected 60% shortfall between demand and supply of skilled workers in
this field by 2018,

Whereas, the program meets the Standard for Bachelor’s and Master's Degree Programs
established by the Coordinating Board rules, Section 5-45, Criteria for New Baccalaureate and
Master’s Degree Programs,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The proposed Bachelor of Business Administration Degree with a major in Business
Analytics and authorizes the Provost and Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs
to provide the appropriate notification to the Texas Higher Education Board for final
approval.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board

Directions: An institution shall use this form to request a new bachelor’s or master’s degree program that
meets all criteria for approval in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:

(a) The program has institutional and governing board approval; (b) the program complies with the
Standards for Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs; (c) adequate funds are available to cover the costs of
the new program; (d) new costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million;
(e) the program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14); and (f) the
program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.

If a new bachelor’s or master’s program does not meet the criteria above, an institution must submit a
request using the Form for Requesting a New Bachelor's and Master’s Degree Program.

Information: Contact the Division of Academic Quality and Workforce at 512/427-6200 for more information.

1. Institution: University of North Texas at Dallas

2. Program Name:

3. Proposed CIP Code: 52.1399

Administrative Information

Bachelor of Business Administration degree
with a major in Business Analytics

4. Number of Required Semester Credit Hours (SCHs)!: 120

5. Administrative Unit: School of Business

6. Delivery Mode: Traditional

7. Implementation Date: Fall 2018

8. Contact Person:
Name:
Title:
E-mail:
Phone:

Theodore Larson

Lecturer, Information Systems
Theodore.Larson@untdallas.edu
972-338-1825

! Bachelor’s degrees should not exceed 120 SCH per Board rule 5.44 (a) (3). Those that exceed 120 SCH must
provide detailed documentation describing the compelling academic reason for the number of required hours, such
as programmatic accreditation requirements, statutory requirements, or licensure/certification requirements that
cannot be met without exceeding the 120-hour limit.
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Certification Form for New Bachelor’s and Master’s Programs
Page 2

Signature Page
I hereby certify that all of the following criteria have been met in accordance with the
procedures outlined in Coordinating Board Rules, Chapter 5, Subchapter C, Section 5.44:
(a) The program has institutional and governing board approval.

(b) The program complies with the Standard’s for New Bachelor’s and Master’s
Programs.

(c) Adequate funds are available to cover the costs of the new program.
(d) New costs during the first five years of the program will not exceed $2 million.
(e) The program is a non-engineering program (i.e., not classified under CIP code 14).
(f) The program will be offered by a university or health-related institution.
I hereby certify that my institution has notified all public institutions within 50 miles of the
teaching site of our intention to offer the program at least 30 days prior to submitting this

request. I also certify that if any objections were received, those objections were resolved
prior to the submission of this request.

Chief Executive Officer Date

I hereby certify that the Board of Regents has approved this program.

Date of Board of Regents approval:

Board of Regents (or Designee) Date

Updated 2.23.15
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Academic Quality Dashboard UNT g
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Data used is the most recent data available from the THECB Accountability Report as of May 10, 2017.

Page 140 of 697




Student Access & Success Dashboard UNT OF NORIT TEXAS®
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Data used is the most recent data available from the THECB Accountability Report as of May 10, 2017.
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Research Dashboard UNT AL S

Federal and Private Research
Total Research Expenditures Expenditures Restricted Research
per FTE Faculty
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per FTE Faculty

Data used is the most recent data available from the THECB Accountability Report as of May 10, 2017.
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Academic Quality Dashboard UNT DALLAS
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Data used is the most recent data available from the THECB Accountability Report as of May 10, 2017.
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Student Access & Success Dashboard UNT DALLAS
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Data used is the most recent data available from the THECB Accountability Report as of May 10, 2017.
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Student Access & Success and UNT HEALTH
Research Dashboard SCIENCE CENTER

Federal and Private Research
Total Headcount Enrollment Total Degrees Awarded Total Research Expenditures Expenditures
per FTE Faculty

Current Year Data Available
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Data used is the most recent data available from the THECB Accountability Report as of May 10, 2017.
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MINUTES

BOARD OF REGENTS
Finance and Facilities Committee
February 23-24, 2017

Thursday, February 23, 2017

The Finance and Facilities Committee of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas
System convened on Thursday, February 23, 2017, in Founders Hall, Room 138, at the University
of North Texas at Dallas, 7300 University Hills Blvd., Dallas, Texas, with the following members
in attendance: Regents Rusty Reid, Don Potts, Glen Whitley, and Laura Wright.

There being a quorum present, the meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman Reid at
1:24 p.m. The minutes of the November 17-18, 2016, Finance and Facilities Committee meeting
were approved on a 4-0 vote following a motion by Regent Glen Whitley, seconded by Regent Don
Potts. The Committee Charter and Annual Schedule were reviewed. There were no
comments or changes made.

The Committee’s first briefing was a UNT Dallas Master Plan Update, which was given by
Vice Chancellor for Facilities Planning and Construction James Maguire and UNT Dallas
President Bob Mong.

Vice Chancellor for Finance Janet Waldron gave an Overview of Finance Briefings that would
be given that afternoon.

The next briefing was the Quarterly Budget Report presented by UNT System Budget Director
Jim Gross.

Luke Lybrand, Treasury Manager for the UNT System, and James Verfurth, a UNT student,
briefed the Committee on the Recent Bond Sale.

The Committee then received a Treasury and Debt Update, given by UNT System Associate
Vice Chancellor for Treasury.

The final briefing of the afternoon informed the Committee about the complexity and variety of
UNT System Shared Services software application. ITSS Key Software Applications was
deliver by Kem Marcum, UNT System ERP Application Development Director.

There being no further business, the Committee meeting recessed at 4:06 p.m. until Friday,

February 24, 2017, at approximately 9:20 a.m. at the UNT System Building, Room 712, 1901 Main
St., Dallas, Texas.

Finance and Facilities Committee
University of North Texas System
Board of Regents Meeting
February 23-24, 2017
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Friday, February 24, 2017

The Finance and Facilities Committee of the University of North Texas System Board of Regents
convened on Friday, February 24, 2017, at the UNT System Building, Room 712, 1901 Main St.,
Dallas, Texas with the following Regents in attendance: Regents Rusty Reid, Don Potts, Glen
Whitley, and Laura Wright.

There being a quorum present the meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman Reid at
9:06 a.m. The Committee had six action items to consider. The first action item was presented by
UNT System Vice Chancellor James Maguire.

2017-11 UNTS Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital
Improvement Plan to Add a New Eagle Point Lot and to
Modify the Project Scope and Budget for the Track and Field
Stadium at UNT

Pursuant to a motion by Regent Glen Whitley and seconded by Regent Laura Wright, the
Committee approved the above item on a 4-0 vote.

UNT Vice President for Finance and Administration Bob Brown presented the next action item.

2017-12 UNTS Procurement of External Services for Grants Systems
Implementation

Pursuant to a motion by Regent Don Potts and seconded by Regent Laura Wright, the Committee
approved the above item on a 4-0 vote.

UNT Health Science Center Chief Financial Officer Greg Anderson presented the next action item.

2017-13 UNTHSC  Approval of Affiliated Entity Agreement between the
University of North Texas Health Science Center and
UNTHSC Foundation

Pursuant to a motion by Regent Glen Whitley and seconded by Regent Don Potts, the Committee
approved the above item on a 4-0 vote.

The next action item was also presented by Greg Anderson.

2017-14 UNTHSC  Approval of UNTHSC Professional Medical Malpractice Self-
Insurance Plan Experience Dividend

Pursuant to a motion by Regent Glen Whitley and seconded by Regent Laura Wright, the
Committee approved the above item on a 4-0 vote.

UNT Dallas Chief Financial Officer Dan Edelman presented the next two action items.

Finance and Facilities Committee
University of North Texas System
Board of Regents Meeting
February 23-24, 2017
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2017-15 UNTD UNT Dallas College of Law FY18 and FY19 Tuition Increase

Pursuant to a motion by Regent Laura Wright and seconded by Regent Don Potts, the Committee
approved the above item on a 4-0 vote.

2017-16 UNTD UNT Dallas Residence Hall Fees

Pursuant to a motion by Regent Glen Whitley and seconded by Regent Don Potts, the Committee
approved the above item on a 4-0 vote.

There being no further business, the Committee meeting adjourned at 9:16 a.m.

Submitted By:

Rosemary R. Hgggett
Board Secretary

Date: )Q?GAM, 4. 2017

Finance and Facilities Committee
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MINUTES

BOARD OF REGENTS
Finance and Facilities Committee
May 1, 2017

The Finance and Facilities Committee of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas
System convened on Monday, May 1, 2017 in Room 712, UNT System Building, 1901 Main St,
Dallas, TX with the following committee members in attendance: Regents Don Potts, Rusty Reid,
Glen Whitley, and Laura Wright.

There being a quorum present, the meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman, Regent
Rusty Reid, at 4:20 p.m.

James Mauldin, UNTS Associate Vice Chancellor for Treasury, briefed the Committee on System
Regulation 08.200, Investment of System Funds.

There being no further business, Regent Potts made a motion for adjournment, which Regent

Whitley seconded. The motion was approved and the Finance and Facilities Committee meeting
adjourned at 4:40 p.m.

Submitted By:

Rosemary R. Hag
Board Secretary

Date: 7):)&3{ 8, 2017

Finance and Facilities Committee
University of North Texas System
Board of Regents

May 1, 2017
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UNT Health Science Center

Campus Master Plan Update

UNT System Board of Regents

Presented by:

James Maguire, Vice Chancellor for Facilities Planning and Construction
& Chief Architect

May 18-19, 2017



Campus Master Plan Update UNT HEALTH
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UNT HSC Context UNT HEALTH

e 33 acres west of downtown Fort Worth
* Fall 2016 Enrollment of 2,366

e Current Graduate Colleges
Texas College of Osteopathic Medicine
Graduate School of Biomedical Sciences

ey -
e

-
. % 4 L™
b ~‘. : Al

School of Public Health ',;~‘,',,-€i._. 1
School of Health Professions ol
UNT System College of Pharmacy

Planning underway TCU-UNTHSC School of
Medicine

May 18-19, 2017 UNT System Board of Regents



Campus Master Plan Principles

* Aligns the long term physical development with
the campus strategic and academic plans

* Creates community and supports its neighbors
* Encourages linkages between outdoor spaces

e Supports responsible stewardship of natural
resources

* Creates a clear campus identity

May 18-19, 2017 UNT System Board of Regents
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Interdisciplinary Research Building (IRB)  unr seag

* Approximately 173,000 GSF a = ‘ T
- ; .i" ) - - x S !
* Project Budget: $121,000,000 e - of | m:\\\ 1t

* Program Space:
e UNT System College of Pharmacy

* North Texas Eye Research Institute

e School of Medicine

May 18-19, 2017 UNT System Board of Regents



Interdisciplinary Research Building (IRB)  unr seag

PARKING GARAGE

CLIFTON
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Interdisciplinary Research Building (IRB)  unr seag
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Campus Master Plan Update UNT HEALTH

e Schedule

e April/May 2017 Firm Selection & Procurement
* February 2018 Target Completion Date

* The Campus Master Plan will serve as a guide for campus growth and
development

* Develop recommendations and implementation plan for short, medium, and long-term actions for
improvements to existing and proposed new facilities to support academic programs and anticipated
campus growth

Develop architectural and landscape design guidelines and standards which develop a cohesive
character and quality between buildings, streets, landscape and open spaces

Develop guidelines and strategies for pedestrian circulation, parking and transportation
Develop a detailed analysis and planning for campus utilities, systems and related infrastructure

May 18-19, 2017 UNT System Board of Regents



Campus Master Plan Update UNT HEALTH
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UNT Health Science Center

Campus Master Plan Update

UNT System Board of Regents

Presented by:

James Maguire, Vice Chancellor for Facilities Planning and Construction
& Chief Architect

May 18-19, 2017



Emergency Planning,
Readiness &

Continuity of Operations

Presen ted by Brad Scott, Scotie Selman & Matt Moncus — May 18, 2017



Presentation Summary B s

Discussion Topics

 Emergency Management Program Overview
* Planning and Training
* Continuity of Operations




Emergency Management Program Partners o«

Internal Partners External Partners

Senior Management | Fort WORTH "\’:))

Legal and Compliance T
Campus Police DENTON City of Dallas

University Communications
Student Affairs
Facilities z ] .
. o o . American
Housing and Dining Services X Red Cross
Parking and Transportation
Athletics Private
Sector

Study Abroad * * Engagement
Information Technology Services NATIONAL WEATHER service




Emergency Management Program ur SRR

Emergency Operations Center — Daily Operations

Weather Monitoring and Notification
Mitigation Prevention

International Risk

Planning and Training
Recovery Preparedness

Fire/Life Safety

Outreach and Education Response

Continuity of Operations Planning




Planning and Training B s

Plans Continuous Improvement
Emergency Management Plans
Hazard/Event Specific Protocols
Continuity of Operations Plan
Building Specific Plans

Training and Exercises
Outreach and Education
Drills
Table Top Exercises
Full Scale Exercises




Planning and Training 7 B

Planning and Training Focus (FY17)

16 Activations 22 Table Top Exercises Public Safety & Security
Football Games Tornado Housing & Dining Services
Large Scale Planned Events Hazardous Material Research

Mass Gatherings Active Shooter Academic Instruction
Severe Weather Structure Fire Public Information

. Major Protest/Civil Unrest Housing/Dining Services
2017 Full Scale Exercise Bomb Threat Student Health
Mass Casualty Response Utility Fnilure . Facilities Maintenance
Operational Communication International Incident (Study Abroad) « Enrollment

Operational Coordination * Registrar

Public Information and Warning . Financinl Aid
Housing « Admissions

ITSS




[SINEN SYSTEM
Planning and Training

LA s
Reser




Continuity of Operations v R

Contingency plans to minimize operational impact during
and after an incident

Submitted to State Office of Risk Management (SORM)
Plans meets SORM standards

Internal review — identified areas for improvement




Future Actions 7 B

UNT Dallas/System: Hiring FTE to lead emergency

management and continuity program development
\

UNTHSC: Implement Emergency Management Strategic
Plan, 2017 — 2021
\

UNT: Implement multi-year improvement plan

\3




End of

Presentation




FY16 Consolidated Annual

Financial Report Highlights

C. Aaron LeMay — Presented to Finance and Facilities Committee — May 18, 2017



Agenda SYSTEM

* FY2016 Financial Supporting Work
e Sample of FY2016 Financial Reports
* FY2017 Continuing Projects

e Statement of Net Position

e Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

* Deeper Look at Revenues and Expenses
* FY2017 New Projects




FY2016 Financial Supporting Work SYSTEM

* Integrated component and consolidated AFR processes with new Chart
of Accounts

* Developed consistent certification and reporting processes for
components
e Coordinated checklist and certification through component controllers & CFOs
* Cognhos Reporting
e Statement of Net Position
* Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
* Matrix of Operating Expenses
* nVision Reporting
e Statement of Cash Flows
* Net Investment in Capital Asset reconciliation

* Accelerated audit from FY2015 to FY2016 by three months




Sample of FY2016 Financial Reports SYSTEM

* Consolidated AFR * Workers' Compensation
 Audited & State Versions Assessment - Payroll Report

* GT PBC Preparation * Sources & Uses (State)

* 178 PBC Requests e Basis of Information in the THECB
* 157 Subsequent Requests Almanac

* Over 1,000 Files Provided e THECB Texas Public University
* Component AFRs Expenditure Study

* |PEDS Report (Federal)  Designated Tuition Report for

e U.S. News & World Report Legislature

* IFRS Report (State) * Peterson's Annual Survey of

Undergraduate Institutions
* NCAA Agreed Upon Procedures




FY2017 Financial Improvement Projects SYSTEM

* Continuing Projects
Accelerate component and consolidated AFR to February
Review and correct data for the new Chart of Accounts
Develop consistent reporting templates for all components
Create quarterly financial reports for management
Burst key management reports out of Cognos




Statement of Net Position SYSTEM
For the Year Ended August 31, 2016

Total Assets & Increased to $1.83B from $1.75B

Deferred Outflows t $26.8M increase in legislative appropriation
receivables
$20.7M increase in net capital assets
S10.7M increase in non-current investments

% Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease)

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets 544,986 498,910 9.2%
Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets, Net 1,025,004 1,004,303 2.1%
Other Non-Current Assets 233,585 223,979 4.3%
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 25,854 22,298 15.9%
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,829,429 1,749,450 4.6%




Statement of Net Position |
For the Year Ended August 31, 2016 SYSTEM

% Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease)

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Current Liabilities 407,949 376,985 8.2%
Non-Current Liabilities:

Bonded Indebtedness 514,046 362,782 41.7%

Other Non-Current Liabilities 142,377 282,173 (49.5%)

Deferred Inflows of Resources 22,123 32.034 (30.9%)

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,086,495 1,053,974 3.1%

Total Liabilities & t Increased to $1.09B from $S1.05B

Deferred Inflows $22.1M increase in current notes and bonds payable

S19.3M increase in unearned revenue
S12.6M decrease in funds held for others




Statement of Net Position
For the Year Ended August 31, 2016

Net Position t

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted:

Funds Held as Permanent Investments:

Non-Expendable
Expendable
Other Restricted
Total Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and Net Position

S47M increase in net position

S7.9M increase in net investment in capital assets
$8.6M increase in restricted net position

S30.9M increase in unrestricted net position

% Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease)

465,252 457,329 1.7%

46,960 45,615
18,161 16,475
39,135 33,550

104,256 95,640
173,426 142,547
742,934 695,516
1,829,429 1,749,490




Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended August 31, 2016

SYSTEM

Operating revenues increased by t S31.7M
5%

Operating expenses increased by S46.9M
5%

Net increase in fair value of

investments was $10.7M due to

favorable market conditions

This partially offset the prior

year net decrease of $21M

State appropriation revenue $19.5M

(legislative, additional, and t
capital appropriations) increased

by 7% over prior year.

Operating Revenues
Contracts and Grants
Sales of Goods 17%, $107.3M
and Services

12%, $73.9M

Auxiliary
Enterprises
10%,
$65.7M Professional
Fees, Net
7%, $41.3M

<

Tuition and
Fees, Net
54%,
$341.5M




ALL UNTS ACADEMIC COMPONENTS REVENUE SOURCES BY CATEGORY

4% 0 0
6% 6% 9% 9% 10% 11% 12% 11%

19% 15% o
0 19% 18% 14% 13% 14% 16% 16%

35% 28% 29% 29%
31% 3204 30%

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

m State of Texas Student & Parent m Federal Government Institutional Resources Hospitals, Clinics, Professional Fees




REVENUE SOURCES BY CATEGORY & ACADEMIC COMPONENT
0
5% 4% 3. 7%
“
16%  17% ‘ - w2oem | 14%

23% 22% 22%

41%

12% 11%

45%  42%
40%  40%  39%
(o)
o 10% 9%

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

University of North Texas University of North Texas Dallas University of North Texas HSC

m State of Texas Student & Parent  m Federal Government Institutional Resources Hospitals, Clinics, Professional Fees




Operating Expenses — NACUBO Function SYSTEM"

® Auxiliary Enterprises ® Depreciation and
6% Amortization, 7%

® Scholarships and ‘

Fellowships, 7% .
o\ . W Instruction, 33%
- —
Operation and Maintenancy

® Institutional Suppor

o,
|

=
of Plant, 6% q \\

= Student Services, 7% | Public Service, 5%

Academic Support,
10%




Operating Expenses - Natural Classification SYSTEM"

Other Operating
Expenses
13%

Salaries and Wages
48%

Scholarships
8%
Depreciation and /n
Amortization |
7%
Materials and Supplies
5%
Professional Fees and Services

0,
7% Payroll Related Costs

12%




EXPENSES BY NACUBO CATEGORY & ACADEMIC COMPONENT
4% 2% 2% g9 E— w20 2% 2%
o, 8N 8N gy WG | 11% - 2% 6% - Soq 6% [5%N

8% 9% 704 6% 7%
11% 13% 6%

12%
13%

5% 2% 7% 7%
11% 2% 2%
0 0
. 7% 6% 5% 504 19% 23% 33%
% 7% 5% 6% = 24%
7%

1% 1% 119 110

10% 14%

11%
I I : | 10% I 11%

2015 2014 2013 2016 2015 2014
University of North Texas

H [nstruction

2013 2012 2016 2015 2014 2013
University of North Texas Dallas

m Research & Public Service
Institutional Support
Auxiliary Enterprises

University of North Texas HSC
Academic Support
Operations & Maintenance of Plant

m Other Expenses & Capital Outlay

Student Services
Scholarships & Fellowships




FY2017 Financial Improvement Projects SYSTEM

* Continuing Projects
* Accelerate component and consolidated AFR to February
* Review and correct data for the new Chart of Accounts
* Develop consistent reporting templates for all components
* Create quarterly financial reports for management
* Burst key management reports out of Cognos

* New Projects
* Improve account reconciliation tracking with PeopleSoft enhancements
* Increase automated reporting tools for AFRs and PBCs
* Automation of Travel and Expense




Committee: Finance & Facilities

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 7, 2017

Title: Approval of Broker/Dealer List for Fiscal Year 2018

Background:

In accordance with System Regulation 08.2005.10, Authorized Broker/Dealers, “The Board of
Regents must annually review and adopt a list of financial institutions and broker/dealers
qualified and authorized to engage in investment transactions with and for the System.”

The system desires to update the list of firms represented in order to reflect mergers and
acquisitions, increase competition, and increase local participation. The selection of the firms
represented by the attached list is based on reputation in the industry, applicable licenses, and
Broker Check by FINRA. Broker/Dealers on the provided list review the Investment Policy and
any amendments as provided by System staff and provide a certification that they are registered
under the rules of the National Association of Securities Dealers, have received and reviewed the
Investment Policy and certify that they will use best efforts to not offer investments other than
those authorized in the Investment Policy.

Financial Analysis/History:

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
J a n et DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT

. . . R ) System, ou=Vice Chancellor for
There is no cost associated with this action. Finance,

email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,
a . =Us

. Date: 2Q17.05.08 09:38:31 -05'00"
Vice Chance(ﬂor or Finance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Nancy S. Footer

Date: 2017.05.09 16:07:43 -05'00'

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:
Approval would be effective immediately.

Recommendation:
The Associate Vice Chancellor for Treasury and Reporting recommends that the Board of Regents

approve the attached list of broker/dealers, authorizing them to engage in investment
transactions with and for the System.

SYSTEM
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Recommended By: James Mauldin

Associate Vice Chancellor for Treasury
and Reporting

Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
Lee DN: cn=Lee Jackson, o=UNT
System, ou=0ffice of the
Chancellor,
email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,

Jackson &

Date: 2017.05.09 17:22:18 -05'00'

Chancellor

Attachments Filed Electronically:

e List of Recommended Broker/Dealers

SYSTEM

Page 187 of 697



Board Order

Title: Approval of Broker/Dealer List for Fiscal Year 2018

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, §2256.025 of the Government Code states, “The governing body of an entity subject
to this subchapter or the designated investment committee of the entity shall, at least annually,
review, revise, and adopt a list of qualified brokers that are authorized to engage in investment
transactions with the entity”, and

Whereas, System Regulation 08.2005 states, “The Board of Regents must annually review and
adopt a list of financial institutions and broker/dealers qualified and authorized to engage in
investment transactions with and for the System”, and

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The attached list of broker/dealers, enabling them to engage the System in investment
transactions.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents

SYSTEM
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List of Broker/Dealers Recommended for Approval

May, 2017
Firm Office Location
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC Dallas, TX
Mizuho Securities USA, Inc. New York, NY
Raymond James Financial, Inc. Fort Worth, TX
FTN Financial Houston, TX
Rice Financial Products Company New York, NY
BOK Financial Services, Inc. Dallas, TX
Stifel Investment Services Dallas, TX
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Committee: Finance & Facilities

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 7, 2017

Title: Amendment to Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution to the Master Resolution
Establishing the University of North Texas System Revenue Financing System
Commercial Paper Program, Series B

Background:

November 18, 2016 the Board of Regents approved the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution
to the Master Resolution establishing the University of North Texas System Revenue Financing
System Commercial Paper Program, Series B and delegated authority to the Vice Chancellor for
Finance to issue Extendible Commercial Paper “ECP” notes. February 2, 2017 the ECP Program
closed and has provided interim financing for the System’s capital projects in the months since
closing.

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC was named in the Twenty-Fourth Supplement to serve as commercial
paper dealer for the ECP program. Morgan Stanley as ECP Dealer has advised the Vice Chancellor
for Finance for the UNT System that the provision in the Events of Default contained in the
Twenty-Fourth Supplement allowing for a grace period in the payment of the principal and
interest on the Commercial Paper Notes is restricting the market for the sale of the Commercial
Paper Notes.

The UNT System’s Financial Advisor and System staff recommend making the changes set forth
in the attached amendment to the Resolution. The changes would remove a five day grace period
before a failure to pay principal and interest as due would be considered a default. The grace
period of five days does not provide a material benefit, considering the ECP program provides a
timeframe of 180 to 269 days to roll, retire or refund any extended commercial paper notes.
Removal of the grace period is anticipated to improve the marketability of the ECP notes.

Financial Analysis/History:

There is no cost associated with this action. However, the amendments to the Twenty-Fourth
Supplement are anticipated to improve the marketability for the ECP notes, which could maintain
or improve the rate paid on future ECP notes.

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
J a n et DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT System,
ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,
email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,
W c=US

Vice Chanc&ifof fét Birahce

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Digitally signed by

Nancy S. Footer =

mail=nancy.footer@ur
Date: 05.09 16:08:

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel
SYSTEM
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Schedule:
Approval would be effective immediately.

Recommendation:

The Associate Vice Chancellor for Treasury and Reporting recommends that the Board of Regents
approve the attached Amendment to the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution to the Master
Resolution Establishing the University of North Texas System Revenue Financing System
Commercial Paper Program, Series B.

Recommended By: James Mauldin

Associate Vice Chancellor for Treasury
and Reporting
Lee DN oot Jcksom,o-UNT System,

ou=0ffice of the Chancellor,
email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,

J a C kS O n CDZ?: 2017.05.09 17:24:18 -05'00"

Chancellor

Attachments Filed Electronically:

o Amendment to Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution to the Master Resolution
Establishing the University of North Texas System Revenue Financing System
Commercial Paper Program, Series B

SYSTEM
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Board Order

Title: Amendment to Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution to the Master Resolution
Establishing the University of North Texas System Revenue Financing System
Commercial Paper Program, Series B

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the University of North Texas System has implemented the University of North Texas
System Revenue Financing System Commercial Paper Program, Series B, and

Whereas, the Dealer has advised the Vice Chancellor for Finance that the Events of Default
contained in the Twenty-Fourth Supplement allowing a grace period in the payment of the
principal and interest on the Commercial Paper Notes is restricting the market for the sale of
Series B Commercial Paper Notes, and

Whereas, it is the recommendation of the UNT System’s financial advisor and the UNT System
finance staff to make the changes set forth in the attached Amendment to the Twenty-Fourth
Supplemental Resolution to the Master Resolution, and

Whereas, the UNT System has been advised by its bond counsel that the amendments set forth
in the attached Amendment to the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution to the Master
Resolution do not require the consent of the holders of the Commercial Paper Notes,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. The Amendment to the Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Resolution to the Master
Resolution Establishing the University of North Texas System Revenue Financing System
Commercial Paper Program, Series B

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

SYSTEM
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BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents

SYSTEM
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AMENDMENT TO TWENTY-FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION
TO THE MASTER RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE
UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM
REVENUE FINANCING SYSTEM
COMMERCIAL PAPER PROGRAM, SERIES B

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2016, the Board of Regents (the "Board™) of the
University of North Texas System (the "University System") adopted a "TWENTY-FOURTH
SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION TO THE MASTER RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING
THE UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM REVENUE FINANCING SYSTEM
COMMERCIAL PAPER NOTE PROGRAM, SERIES B; AUTHORIZING THE
ISSUANCE OF TAX-EXEMPT AND TAXABLE COMMERCIAL PAPER NOTES; AND
APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING INSTRUMENTS AND PROCEDURES RELATING
THERETO" (the "Twenty-Fourth Supplement™); and

WHEREAS, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC was named in the Twenty-Fourth Supplement
to serve as commercial paper dealer (the "Dealer") for the commercial paper notes authorized to
be sold under the terms of the Twenty-Fourth Supplement (the "Commercial Paper Notes™); and

WHEREAS, the Dealer has advised the Vice Chancellor for Finance for the University
System that the Events of Default contained in the Twenty-Fourth Supplement allowing for a
grace period in the payment of the principal and interest on the Commercial Paper Notes is
restricting the market for the sale of the Commercial Paper Notes; and

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the University System’s financial advisor and
the University System finance staff to make the changes set forth in this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the University System has been advised by its bond counsel that the
amendments set forth in this Resolution do not require the consent of the holders of the
Commercial Paper Notes.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF
THE UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM THAT:

Section 1. Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 7.01 of the Twenty-Fourth Supplement are
hereby amended by deleting the phrase "for five (5) Business Days", as follows:

"Section 7.01. Events of Default. Each of the following events shall constitute and is
referred to in this Twenty-Fourth Supplement as an "Event of Default":

(a) afailure by the Board to pay the principal of any Commercial Paper Note fer-five{5)

Business—Days after the date the same shall have become due and payable on an Extended
Maturity Date;
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(b) a failure by the Board to pay any installment of interest on any Commercial Paper
Note for-five{5)Business-Days after the date such interest shall have become due and payable
on an Extended Maturity Date or in accordance with Section 2.02(c) hereof;"

Section 2. Upon the adoption of this Resolution to amend the Twenty-Fourth
Supplement, the Twenty-Fourth Supplement shall be deemed to be amended in accordance with
this Resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations of the Board and all the owners
of then outstanding Commercial Paper Notes and all future Commercial Paper Notes shall
thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced under the Master Resolution and the Twenty-
Fourth Supplement, as amended.
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Committee: Finance & Facilities

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 17,2017

Title: Approval of Amended UNT System Regulation 08.2000, Investment of System
Funds

Background:

UNT System Regulation 08.2000, Investment of System Funds, sets forth the Board of
Regents annually approved investment policy for UNT System and its component institutions.

The amended investment policy reflects the Board and management’s desire to more
effectively manage cash and improve investment returns of the short-term, intermediate
and long-term pools by way of the recommendations outlined below.

Significant changes in this investment policy include defining benchmarks for each of the
three investment pools and the following:

e Adding an external investment firm as an option in the definition of “Managing
Entity”
e Short-term Pool (STP)
0 Extending maximum maturity from 30 to 90 days and maximum duration
from 7 to 30 days
e Intermediate Investment Pool (11P)
o0 Extending maximum maturity from 5 to 7 years and maximum duration
from 2.5 to 3 years
0 Adjusting the suggested range from 30-65% to 15-60% of funds
o0 Amending Authorized Investments:
» Replaced CD’s with Asset-backed Securities (ABS)
= Lowered required rating for agency and municipal bonds from AA to
BBB
= US Agency and GSE backed mortgage securities (MBS) added
*= Bank loans added
= Corporate bonds rated A or higher added
e Long-term Pool (LTP)
0 Increasing size of range from a maximum of 50% to 60% of funds
o0 Defining and/or clarifying goals and objectives of this pool
0 Asset allocation shifted from 60% growth/30% risk reduction/10% inflation
protection to 65/25/10, respectively
e Adding an annual requirement for investment officers to confirm that no personal
business relationships exist with firms offering to transact with the system for
investment purposes

SYSTEM
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Financial Analysis/History:

UNT System Regulation 08.2000, Investment of System Funds, is reviewed and
approved annually by the UNT System Board of Regents.

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
J a n et DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT
System, ou=Vice Chancellor for

Finance,

W ___email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu
d Id F'Qx Ihincelgﬁuf rF

in
e 17 40885200 05100

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Upon Board approval, management shall work to begin full implementation of pool alignments,
the selection of fund and investment managers, and the reallocation of investments within
appropriate time frames and state laws. An update on progress will be provided at the August
and December Board of Regents meetings.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Regents approve the amended University of North Texas
System Regulation 08.2000, Investment of System Funds.

Recommended By: James Mauldin

Associate Vice Chancellor for Treasury
and Reporting

Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
DN: cn=Lee Jackson, o=UNT System,
L J k ou=0ffice of the Chancellor,
ee a C SO n email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,
c=Us
Date: 2017.05.09 17:25:46 -05'00"

Chancellor

Attachments Filed Electronically:

e UNT System Investment Regulation (with amendments proposed for approval)
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Board Order

Title: Approval of Amended UNT System Regulation 08.2000, Investment of System
Funds

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, it is recommended that amendments be made to the UNT System Regulation
08.2000, Investment of System Funds, to define benchmarks for each investment pool, and

Whereas, it is recommended that each pool be adjusted to reflect an ongoing effort to provide
an appropriate return on excess funds.

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. UNT System Regulation 08.2000, Investment of System Funds, as amended.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents

SYSTEM
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Regulations of the University of North Texas System

Chapter 08

08.2000 Investment of System Funds

Fiscal Management

08.2001

08.2002

08.2003

Regulation Statement. This Regulation sets forth the rules for the investment of

all System funds and funds held by the System in trust for others. All investments
by the System will be made in accordance with Rule 10.100 of the Rules of the
Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System and this System
Regulation.

Application of Regulation. This Regulation applies to the UNT System

Administration and to all UNT Institutions.

Definitions.

1. Authorized Broker/Dealers. “Authorized Broker/Dealers” means those
entities that have been approved as provided herein.

2. Funds. “Funds” is defined by Government Code § 2256.002 and means public
funds in the custody of a state agency or local government that:
a. are not required by law to be deposited in the state treasury; and
b. the investing entity has authority to invest.

3. Funds Subject to Board of Regents Control. “Funds Subject to Board of

|u

Regents Control” is defined by Texas Education Code § 51.002 and means:
a. student fees of all kinds;

b. charges for use of rooms and dormitories;

c. receipts from meals, cafes, and cafeterias;

d. fees on deposit refundable to students under certain conditions;

e. receipts from school athletic activities;

f. income from student publications and other student activities;

g. receipts from the sale of publication products and miscellaneous supplies
and equipment;
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h. students’ voluntary deposits of money for safekeeping;

i. all other fees and local or institutional funds arising out of and by virtue of
the educational activities, research, or demonstrations carried on by the
institution; and

j. donations and gifts to the institution.

4. Investment Officer. “Investment Officer” means the person(s) appointed by
the Board pursuant to the Regents Rules, and any authorized designee.

5. Managing Entity. “Managing Entity” means the entity holding and managing
the investment of funds, and may include UNT System Administration, a UNT
Institution, the University of North Texas Foundation, Inc. (“UNT Foundation”),
the UNTHSC Foundationniversity-of-North-Fexas-Health-Science-Centerat-Fort
Worth,Texas—College—of Osteopathic-MedicineFoundation,—ne. (“UNTHSC
Foundation”), the University of North Texas at Dallas Foundation (“UNT at
Dallas Foundation”), an external asset management firm, or Authorized
Broker/Dealers.

6. Prudent Person Standard. “Prudent Person Standard” is defined by Texas
Education Code § 51.0031(d) and described in Article VII, Section 11b of the
Texas Constitution, and means that standard of judgment and care that
prudent investors, exercising reasonable care, skill, and caution, would acquire
or retain in light of the purposes, terms, distribution requirements, and other
circumstances of the fund then prevailing, taking into consideration the
investment of all the assets of the fund rather than a single investment.

7. System. “System” means, collectively, the University of North Texas System,
University of North Texas System Administration, and UNT Institutions.

8. UNT Institutions. “UNT Institutions” means University of North Texas,
University of North Texas Health Science Center at Fort Worth, and University
of North Texas at Dallas.

Authority and Governing Statutes. The System’s authority to invest funds is
established in the Public Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter
2256), Section 51.0031 of the Texas Education Code, and Rule 10.100 of the Rules
of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System. This Regulation
is promulgated in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act, Section
51.0032 of the Texas Education Code, the Uniform Prudent Investor Act (Texas
Property Code, Chapter 117), the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (Texas Property Code, Chapter 163), and the Public Funds Collateral Act
(Texas Government Code, Chapter 2257). Texas Education Code, Section 51.0032
requires a governing board to adopt a written investment policy, and the Public
2
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Funds Investment Act requires a governing board to adopt a written investment
policy and strategy, review the policy and strategy not less than annually, appoint
an Investment Officer, and adopt internal controls to safeguard the System’s
funds. The Public Funds Collateral Act sets the standards for collateralization of
public funds in Texas.

Investment of System Funds.

1.

Investment Strategy. The eash-investment management objective for the
System is to retain appropriate liquidity to meet daily operating demands and
Commercial Paper self-liquidity coverage requirements while seeking higher
yield on eash—reservesavailable funds through an appropriately diversified
investment portfolio. All Funds Subject to Board of Regents Control shall be
invested pursuant to a Prudent Person Standard. All System endowment
funds shall be invested pursuant to a Prudent Person Standard and shall be
managed through the Short Term Pool (STP), Intermediate Investment Pool
(IIP), and the Long Term Pool (LTP) to meet short, intermediate, and long term
investment objectives.  All UNTHSC medical professional liability self-
insurance plan funds shall be invested pursuant to a Prudent Person Standard.
All other System Funds shall be deposited in an approved depository bank,
invested pursuant to the Public Funds Investment Act, or deposited in the
State Treasury as prescribed by Texas Education Code § 51.008.

Short Term Pool (STP). Short term working capital funds are needed for daily
liquidity requirements and thus shall generally be held in accounts or
investments providing daily liquidity. The objective of this pool is to provide
sufficient daily liquidity while meeting or exceeding the results of the
Bloomberg Barclays US 1-3 Month T-bill index. No investments held in the STP
will have a maturity date greater than ninetythirty (930) days from the
settlement date and the pool shall have a maximum weighted average
maturity of seventhirty (30) days. System-wide, the combined balances that
comprise the STP should be no less than 10% and no more than 20% of the
sum total of all three investment pools. It is understood that fluctuations in
market value and the timing of cash flows can cause temporary swings in these
percentages that might exceed the established boundaries. Consideration will
be given to credit and liquidity risks when determining the diversification of
accounts and investments.

a. Authorized Investments.

i. fully collateralized repurchase agreements or demand accounts
deposited with an approved depository institution;
ii. money market mutual funds;

3
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3.

iii. approved Local Government Investment Pools;

iv. certificates of deposit guaranteed by the FDIC or properly
collateralized;

v. commercial paper that is rated not less than A-1 or P-1 by a nationally
recognized investment rating firm (no issuer in this category may
constitute more than ten percent of the Short Term Pool balance).

b. Self-Liquidity. In accordance with System self-liquidity coverage, UNT
Institutions shall maintain a combined balanee—amount of liquidity, as
calculated by the rating agencies covering the commercial paper program,
in the Short Term Pool (net of bond proceeds) and the Intermediate
Investment Pool, of at least 1.2x the amount of outstanding debt issued
through the System commercial paper program.

c. Investment Objectives.
i. Safety of Principal
ii. Liquidity
iii. CurrentIncome
iv. Appreciation
v. Diversification

Intermediate Investment Pool. Excess cash that may on occasion be needed
for liquidity purposes shall be invested in the Intermediate Investment Pool
(“lIP”). The objective of this pool is to put dormant cash to work in higher
yielding investments than the STP while still prioritizing safety of principal and
liguidity, and meeting or exceeding the results of the Bloomberg Barclays U.S.
Universal 1-5 Year Index. Investments in this pool shall not have a maturity
date that exceeds sevenfive (75) years and the maximum duration of the pool
shall not exceed threetwe-and-ene-half (32%) years. The balance in this pool
should generally be at least 1538% but not more than 605% of the sum total
of all three investment pools. It is understood that fluctuations in market
value and the timing of cash flows can cause temporary swings in these
percentages that might exceed the established boundaries.

Authorized Investments. Investments in the IIP may be invested in any authorized

vehicle available to the Short-Term Pool plus the following:

i. Bond mutual funds;
ii. Corfificatoc—et—desesi—guarantood—Dhy—fhe—FDlC e —sreporly
collateralizedAsset-backed securities (ABS);
iii. Obligations of the United States, its agencies, states, counties, cities, and
any other subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than BBBAA or its

equivalent;
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iv. U.S. Agency and Government-Sponsored Enterprise (GSE) backed
mortgage securities (MBS);
v. Bank loans;
iHvi. Corporate bonds rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized
investment rating firm not less than A or its equivalent

Portfolio Asset Allocation. The IIP shall allocate its investments in such a way that
liquidity may be accessed within three days, if needed. In addition, no individual
issuer other than the United States government shall represent more than 10% of
the IIP balance.

Portfolio Asset Selection. Selection of the underlying assets within each portfolio
shall remain the discretion of the Managing Entity, within the guidelines
established in the portfolio asset allocation set forth above and the investment
management contract.
Investment Objectives.

i. Safety of principal

ii. Liquidity

iii. CurrentIncome

iv. Appreciation

v. Diversification

4. Long Term Investment Pool. Long Term Investment Pool is established to provide an

investment vehicle for growth and distribution of funds available, as appropriate, for

longer term institutional mission to include financial viability and revenue diversity. Long

term cash reserves shall generally constitute at least 25% but not more than 650% of the
sum total of all three investment pools. It is understood that fluctuations in market value
and the timing of cash flows can cause temporary swings in these percentages that might
exceed the established boundaries.

performance:

Outperform the weighted strategic benchmark over rolling five year periods.

Total return goal for the LTP is to exceed the Consumer Price Index plus 4% over rolling

ten year periods or as adjusted by the strategic allocation.

Each investment manager will be evaluated by the managing entity versus a

benchmark and/or a peer universe.

4. Rank in the top half of the NACUBO universe, defined as peers with portfolios ranging

from $100 million to $500 million over rolling five-year periods.

D ‘{Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.25", No bullets or
The purpose of the following objectives is to facilitate the discussion and evaluation of the LTP numbering

|

«****{ Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.5" + Indent
at: 0.75"

|

_— {Formatted: Font: 12 pt

a. Authorized Investments. The investment vehicle for Long Term Pool cash
reserves shall be the UNT System Long Term Pool (“UNTS-LTP”). The UNTS-
LTP shall be held and invested pursuant to a Prudent Person Standard.

5
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b. Portfolio Asset Allocation. The UNTS-LTP portfolio asset allocation shall be
monitored on an ongoing basis, maintained within the tactical range
shown below, and reviewed no less than quarterly in connection with the
required quarterly report to the Board of Regents.

Strategic Target

Policy Allocation Tactical Range
Growth Assets 605% 550 - 705%
Risk Reduction Assets 2530% 1520 —3540%
Inflation Protection Assets 10% 5-15%

The Managing Entity, by and through its investment manager, will be
responsible for monitoring the UNTS-LTP’s strategic target policy
allocation and tactical range. The Managing Entity and its investment
manager may make allocation changes within the tactical ranges shown
above as warranted under a Prudent Person Standard. Any allocation
changes that would exceed the tactical ranges must be pre-approved by
the System Investment Advisory Committee.

c. Portfolio Asset Selection. Selection of the underlying assets within each
portfolio shall remain the discretion of the Managing Entity, within the
guidelines established in the portfolio asset allocation set forth above and
the investment management contract.

A “_ \ [ Formatted: Font: 12 pt
&-d.Strategic Benchmark. The strategic benchmark for the LTP shall be defined y {Format_ted: Normal, Indent: Left: 1.25", No bullets or
as follows: Russell 3000 Index (35%); MSCI ACWI ex USA IMI (30%); numbering

{ Formatted: Underline

Barclays US Aggregate Bond Index (15%); Barclays US Long Credit Index

(10%); Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Index (5%); and S&P Materials Select
Sector Index (5%).

e-e. UNT System Investment Advisory Committee. Members of the
UNT System Investment Advisory Committee shall be the Vice Chancellor
for Finance, the Associate Vice Chancellor for Treasury and Reporting, and
the chief financial officers from each UNT Institution. The UNT System
Investment Advisory Committee shall have oversight of investments in the
UNTS-LTP and IIP, and maintain an active role in advising Managing
Entities. The Vice Chancellor for Finance shall represent the System
Investment Advisory Committee for all approvals that may be necessary or
advisable in connection with the UNTS-LTP to provide to a Managing
Entity.

e-f. Investment Objectives.
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i. Appreciation

ii. CurrentIncome
iii. Diversification
iv. Liquidity

v. Safety of Principal

Bond Proceeds. Bond proceeds and reserves may be invested in a manner
consistent with the requirements and restrictions stated in the applicable
Bond Covenants.

Investment Objectives.
i. Safety of Principal
ii. Liquidity

iii. CurrentIncome
iv. Appreciation

Endowed Funds. The objective of endowment investment is to meet the

donor intent having a long-term horizon, unless otherwise specified. The long-

term objective is to achieve a total annual return which covers the spend rate

plus inflation, administrative costs, and investment management fees. The

endowment corpus shall be invested in a diversified portfolio using reasonable

care to ensure—earnings—aresufficientte-provide on-going and dependable

cash payout, while mitigating the impact of inflation.

a.

Authorized Investments. The System has identified four options for
investing endowed funds:

i. The UNTS-LTP

ii. The UNT Foundation Endowment

iii. The UNTHSC Foundation Endowment

iv. The UNT at Dallas Foundation Endowment

Endowment Policies. Each UNT Institution and the UNT System
Administration shall adopt an Endowment Policy consistent with this
Regulation and subject to Board approval that governs the type of
endowments, acceptance of gifts, purpose and use of endowments, and
distribution requirements of endowed funds.

Asset Allocation. Each UNT Institution and the UNT System Administration
shall select the investment portfolio option. The asset allocation and
selection of the underlying assets within each portfolio shall be at the
discretion of the Managing Entity; provided, however, that investment of
any endowment funds must be pursuant to the Prudent Person Standard
and within the guidelines established in this Regulation, the applicable

7
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8.

UNT Institution Endowment Policy, and the Investment Management
Agreement.

d. Investment Objectives.
i. Appreciation
ii. CurrentIncome
iii. Safety of Principal
iv. Diversification
v. Liquidity

Medical Professional Liability Self-Insurance Funds. The total amount of
reserve funds required for medical professional liability self-insurance shall be
actuarially determined annually. These funds shall be invested in any
combination of the UNT System Long Term Pool or the UNT System Short Term
Pool at the discretion of the UNT Health Science Center. In the event all or a
portion of the self-insurance fund is converted to a quasi-endowment —
subject to liquidation resulting from claims — the quasi-endowment may be
invested in accordance with section V — Endowed Funds. A separate
accounting of the fund balance and transactions must be maintained and
provided to the UNT System Board of Regents at least annually.

a. Investment Objectives.
i. Preservation of Capital
ii. Appreciation
iii. Liquidity

Investment Management.

a. Managing Entity. All System investments shall be held, invested, and
managed by a Managing Entity pursuant to a Prudent Person Standard.
Only those entities named or otherwise approved as a Managing Entity
under this Regulation may provide investment management services for
and on behalf of the System.

b. Investment Management Agreement. Investment management services
provided by a Managing Entity (other than UNT System Administration or
a UNT Institution) shall be administered only through a contractual
agreement (“Investment Management Agreement”) with the System or
an Institution. Authority to approve and sign Investment Management
Agreements is delegated as follows: (i) on behalf of the Board, to the
Chancellor; (ii) on behalf of the System, to the Chancellor or his designee;
(iii) on behalf of a UNT Institution, to the UNT Institution’s President or
his/her designee.
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9.

10.

11.

12.

c. Investment Liaison. Each Investment Management Agreement shall
designate an Investment Liaison to serve as the liaison between the
Managing Entity and the Board of Regents, and may also designate the
Investment Liaison to serve as either a voting or ex-officio member of the
Managing Entity’s board of directors.

Insurance or Collateral. All bank deposits of System funds shall be secured by
pledged collateral with a market value equal to no less than 102% of the
deposits plus accrued interest less an amount insured by the FDIC. Evidence
of the pledged collateral shall be maintained by the Vice Chancellor for
Finance. Eligible collateral must meet the requirements of the Public Funds
Collateral Act or securities authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act.
Repurchase agreements shall be documented by the Master Repurchase
Agreement approved by The Bond Market (TBMA), or any other entity
approved by the Finance Committee of the Board of Regents, noting the
collateral pledged in each agreement. The use of a letter of credit issued to
the System by the Federal Home Loan Bank may be considered by the System
to meet the required bank depository collateral requirements. Collateral shall
be reviewed monthly to assure the market value of the securities pledged
equals or exceeds the related bank balances.

Safekeeping and Custody. Assets shall be settled on a delivery versus payment
basis when appropriate, and secured through independent third-party
custody and safekeeping procedures. Safekeeping procedures shall be
reviewed annually by the Internal Auditor. Periodic surprise audits of
safekeeping and custodial systems shall be conducted annually by the Internal
Auditor.

Authorized Broker/Dealers. The Board of Regents must annually review and
adopt a list of financialinstitutions—and—broker/dealers qualified and
authorized to engage in investment transactions with and for the System. All
Authorized Broker/Dealers and investment management firms must supply a
certification of having read and understood the investment rules, regulations,
and policies applicable to the System and acknowledge that the business has
implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to comply.

Investment Responsibilities. The System Investment Advisory Committee shall
be responsible for investing System funds and must comply with the following:

a. Prudent Person Standard. The Investment Officers shall exercise a Prudent
Person Standard at all times with regard to all funds.
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b. Personal Business Relationship. Should any Investment Officer have a
personal business relationship with a business organization offering to
engage in an investment transaction with the System, a statement shall be
filed disclosing that personal business interest. This statement must be
filed with the Texas Ethics Commission and the Board of Regents. A
“personal business relationship” is defined in Chapter 2256.005(i) of the
Public Funds Investment Act._In addition, annually each Investment Officer
must confirm that no improper personal business relationships, as defined
above, exist. The Vice Chancellor for Finance is responsible for collecting
these confirmations and providing them to the Office of General Counsel
for reporting to the Board.

c. Training. Each member of the Board of Regents and the System
Investment Advisory Committee shall attend at least one training session
within six months after taking office or assuming duties. The Texas Higher
Education Coordinating Board will provide training for the Regents. All
Investment Officers and members of the System Investment Advisory
Committee must attend training not less than once in each fiscal
biennium, and may receive training from any independent source
approved by the Board of Regents. The Texas Higher Education
Coordinating Board is an approved source for training. The Investment
Officers must report the status of their training to the Board of Regents
no later than the 180th day after the last day of each regular session of
the legislature.

13. Reporting.

a. Audit. The System’s Internal Audit department shall perform an annual
compliance audit of management controls and adherence to this policy.
The results will be reported to the Board of Regents and the State Auditor’s
Office.

b. Quarterly Reports. The Vice Chancellor for Finance shall prepare a
quarterly investment report which includes endowments and submit it to
the Board of Regents through the Chancellor. The report will be prepared
in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and will
detail, by asset and fund type, changes in book and market values, dates
of maturity, and accrued interest. The quarterly reports are to be formally
reviewed at least annually by the System’s Internal Audit department in
conjunction with the annual compliance audit, and the result of the review
shall be reported to the Board of Regents.

10
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c. Annual Report. At the end of each fiscal year, the System will prepare a
report of investment performance for the year and submit it to the Board
of Regents at its first regularly scheduled board meeting following the end
of the fiscal year.

References and Cross-references:

Public Funds Investment Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256)

Texas Education Code, Chapter 51, Subchapter A (Section 51.001, et. seq.)

University of North Texas System Board of Regents Rule 10.100

Uniform Prudent Investor Act (Texas Property Code, Chapter 117)

Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (Texas Property Code, Chapter 163)
Public Funds Collateral Act (Texas Government Code, Chapter 2257)

Approved: August 16, 2012

Effective: August 16,2012

Revised: May 16, 2013, August 15, 2013, December 5, 2013, August 21, 2014, October 16, 2014,
November 20, 2015, November 18, 2016
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Committee: Finance & Facilities

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 28, 2017

Title: Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to Modify the
Project Scope of the Interdisciplinary Research Building at HSC

Background:

The TCU & UNTHSC School of Medicine will begin instruction with the initial class of 60 students
in July 2019. Full enrollment of 240 students is planned for 2022. Modifications of the previously
approved Interdisciplinary Research Building (IRB) project have been developed to support the
clinical, instructional and administrative needs of the School of Medicine.

Specifically, the interior space of two of the five floors of the building will be reconfigured. As
shown in attached Space Summary table (attachment A), the 3rd and 4% floors, which were
originally planned for research lab and associated office functions, will be redesigned for the
School of Medicine’s needs. To accommodate the reduction in research space, the HSC Built
Environment Council is developing a comprehensive plan to renovate existing lab space on
campus. The revised design will also maintain all currently planned building systems to support
adaptability and flexibility for any future research laboratory renovations on the affected floors.
The revised design is consistent with the original program goals of the IRB. The proposed
approach will promote interaction of students from the Schools of Medicine and Pharmacy and
also supports the HSC's strategic vision for developing the health providers’ of the future.

Although work on the project is currently underway, staff has engaged the design team and
construction manager to carefully evaluate the proposed changes early in the construction
sequence. Based on detailed takeoff of improvements to be removed and current estimates of the
of the proposed MD school improvements, any net cost differential is minimal and can be
addressed within the existing allocated project contingency without requiring a change to the
overall project budget. The detailed costs of the changes will also be tracked separately to allow
appropriate cost accounting and to support facility chargeback or cost sharing arrangements as
needed.

The project is currently on schedule for completion in December of 2018. The changes proposed
in this item can be incorporated at this time without impacting the expected completion.

The IRB project was originally approved on August 28, 2015 as part of the UNTS FY16 Capital
Improvement Plan and is also incorporated in the current FY17 plan (Project 16-1.40). The
requested action is to amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to modify the IRB project
scope to accommodate the School of Medicine’s need for administrative, clinical and education
space.

Financial Analysis/History:
As approved, the project is funded with a combination of Tuition Revenue Bond financing

($80M) and campus supported Revenue Finance System bonds ($41M). No change in funding
is anticipated as a result of this action.

SYSTEM
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Digitally signed by Gregory R. Anderson
regory R. sumswmnses,

North Texas Health Science Center,

ou=Executive Vice President/CFO,

email=gregory.anderson@unthsc.edu, c=US
n e rS O n Date: 2017.05.05 10:28:52 -05'00'

Institution Chief Financial Officer
Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,

Janet
email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,
=US

Waldron = cvssunow

Vice Chancellor for Finance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Digitally signed by Nancy S. Footer
DN: cn=Nancy S. Footer, o=University of North

Nan cy S. Footer reossysem ou-ofice of eneral Counsel,
email=nancy.footer@untsystem.edu, c=US
Date: 2017.05.09 16:13:15 -05'00"

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Programming/Planning:

IRB Design:

MD School Program:
MD School Design:
Construction:

Substantial Completion:

October 2015
October 2016
April 2017
May 2017

October 2016-December 2018

November 2018

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Regents authorize and approve the following Board Order.

Recommended By:

SYSTEM

James K. Davis

Associate Vice Chancellor for
Facilities Planning & Development

Dr. Michael g
R. Williams &

Date: 2017.05.05 11:39:16 -0500

President

Digitally signed by James M. Maguire
. DN: cn=James M. Maguire, o=Office of Facilities
James M. M ag Uir@ Planning and Construction, ou=UNT System,
email=james.maguire@untsystem.edu, c=US
Date: 2017.05.08 15:38:08 -05'00"

Vice Chancellor
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Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
Lee DN: cn=Lee Jackson, o=UNT
System, ou=Office of the
Chancellor,
email=lee jackson@untsystem.ed

Jackson

Date: 2017.05.09 17:27:30 -05'00"

Chancellor

Attachments Filed Electronically:

e |RB Space Summary Table
e UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan Amendment
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Board Order

Title: Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to Modify the
Project Scope of the Interdisciplinary Research Building at HSC

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the Board of Regents has previously approved the Campus Master Plans for UNT,
UNTHSC, and UNTD, and

Whereas, the Board of Regents has previously approved the UNTS FY16 Capital Improvement
Plan, and

Whereas, the project scope for the IRB has been adjusted to accommodate administrative,
clinical and educational space for the newly established School of Medicine, and

Whereas, programming and planning studies and associated cost estimates indicate the
proposed modifications can be implemented without increasing the project budget,

Whereas, the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan has been updated to reflect the adjusted
project scope,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. Amend the previously approved UNTS Capital Improvement Plan to adjust the IRB
project (project 16-1.40) to accommodate administrative, clinical, and educational
space for the newly established School of Medicine.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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Attachment A

IRB Space Summary
Total IRB Floor 3 IRB Floor 3 IRB Floor 4 IRB | Floor 4 IRB Total IRB Delta
Program as | as Designed | as Proposed | as Designed | as Proposed Program as (between
Designed {ANSF) (ANSF) (ANSF) (ANSF) Proposed two) (ANSF)
(ANSF) (ANSF)
Administration (COP) 25,893 6,916 5,263 13,694 12,179
Research 40,503 12,772 12,259 15,472 25,031
Vivarium 9,844 9,844
Instructional (COP) 19,793 1,410 1,410 16,973 2,820
Building Services 6,175 6,175
Administration (SOM) 9,680 18,374 28,054 28,054
Instructional (SOM) 3,308 5,198 8,505 8,505
Clinical 10,336 10,336 10,336
TOTAL ANSF 102,188 21,098 23,323 18,932 23,571 109,053
TOTAL GSF 173,641 30,001 30,001 30,001 30,001 173,641
EFFICIENCY 58.9% 70.3% 77.7% 63.1% 78.6% 62.8%
03.28.17

Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to Modify the Project Scope

of the Interdisciplinary Research Building at HSC
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FY 2017 Capital Improvement Plan

UNIVERSITY of NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER .
Interdisciplinary Research Building (Amended) UNT s!-cllEENé!E-hll-Tll;!
Capital Improvement Project No. 16-1.40

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This project will construct a building of approximately 173,600 gross square feet for the University of North Texas Health
Science Center (UNTHSC) campus. The facility is planned to be a multi-story building with research laboratories,
vivarium, classrooms, teaching labs, study areas, seminar rooms, multimedia learning, and associated student learning
spaces. Faculty and administrative offices will also be included in this building with office suites, meeting rooms and
collaborative work areas. While the program for the 3™ and 4 floors of the building has been modified to
accommodate the necessary requirements for the new School of Medicine, it will designed to support the adaptability
and flexibility for any future research laboratory renovations on the affected floors.

PROJECT INFORMATION

JUSTIFICATION: The TCU & UNTHSC School of Medicine will begin instruction with the initial class of 60 students in July
2019. Full enrollment of 240 students is planned for 2022. Research and associated office spaces that were originally
planned in the facility have been reduced to support the clinical, instructional and administrative needs of the School of
Medicine. The revised program and design will promote interaction of students from the Schools of Medicine and
Pharmacy and also support the UNTHSC strategic vision for developing the health providers’ of the future.

LOCATION ON CAMPUS: Southeast intersection of Camp Bowie Blvd and Clifton St
SIZE (ASF/GSF): GSF: 173,600 ASF: 102,200

CIP PROJECT TYPE (NEW CONST. OR RENO.): New Construction

HISTORICALLY SIGNIFICANT? (Y or N): N

CONSISTENT WITH MASTER PLAN (Y or N): Y

PROJECT BUDGET

Design Fees S 9,000,000
Construction Costs S 92,000,000
Other Costs (Commissioning, Inspection, etc.) S 2,000,000
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment S 7,500,000
Contingency and Fees S 10,500,000
Total Projects $ 121,000,000
PROJECT FUNDING (in S Millions)
Funding Source Prior Yrs
Abrv. Funding Source Costs FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021+ Source Total
RFS Revenue Financing System Bonds S 3.00 § 523 $§ 1257 S 2020 S - S - S 41.00
TRB Tuition Revenue Bonds S - $§ 3570 $ 4430 S - S - S - S 80.00
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
S 3.00 S 4093 $ 56.87 $ 2020 § - S - S 121.00
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FY 2017 Capital Improvement Plan

UNIVERSITY of NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER .
Interdisciplinary Research Building (Amended) UNT !:!EENQ!E]-TI.;!
Capital Improvement Project No. 16-1.40

PROJECT SCHEDULE

PREVIOUS APPROVALS FROM BOARD OF REGENTS: August 2016
PROGRAMMING/PLANNING: November 2014 -- October 2015
DESIGN: October 2015 — October 2016
PROGRAMMING/ PLANNING FOR MEDICAL SCHOOL: January 2017 — April 2017
DESIGN FOR MEDICAL SCHOOL: April 2017 — May 2017
CONSTRUCTION: October 2016 — December 2018
SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION: November 2018

LOCATION MAP
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Committee: Finance & Facilities

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 12,2017

Title: Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to Modify the
Scope and Budget for Sycamore Hall 2nd Floor Renovation at UNT

Background:

The Sycamore Hall 2" Floor Renovation was approved by the Board of Regents as part of the
FY2016 Capital Improvement Plan at a budget of $3.30 million. This interior renovation project
will provide offices, support spaces and classrooms for the School of Journalism and other
academic units. During the demolition process, additional asbestos was discovered in
mechanical ductwork, walls and other finishes which required remediation. It was also
determined during demolition that the plumbing, doors, and frames could not be salvaged and
required replacement. As a result, the project budget requires an increase of $0.65 million for a
total of $3.95 million to complete the construction of the project.

On August 19, 2016 the Board of Regents approved the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan
which identified capital projects for the UNT System. The requested action is to amend the
UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to modify the scope and budget for the Sycamore Hall 2nd
Floor Renovation project (Project 16-2.65).

Financial Analysis/History:

Funds for the Sycamore Hall 2"d Floor renovation have been allocated by the institution and
confirmed by signature on the amended plan document by the respective President and CFO.
The funding plan has been reviewed by the Vice Chancellor for Finance.

Digitally signed by Bob Brown
N: cn=Bob Brow

DI
O rOW n Texas, ou=VP for F
email=bob.brown ,

c=U
Date: 2017.05.04 17:12:33 -05'00"

Institution Chief Financial Officer
Digitally signed by Janet Waldron

J a n et DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT
System, ou=Vice Chancellor for
Finance,

email=janet.waldron@untsystem.e
W —  due=Us.—
ICe Chan@elaP o M praiaee-05'00

uuuuuuuuuuuu

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

ity of North Texas

Nancy S. Footer =

Date: 2017.05.09 16:13:51 -0500"

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel
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Schedule:

The planning, design and/or construction of the Capital Improvement Project schedules are
detailed in the plan documents.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Regents authorize and approve the following Board Order.

Recommended By: James K. Davis

Associate Vice Chancellor for
Facilities Planning & Development

N e a I Digitally signed by Neal Smatresk
DN: cn=Neal Smatresk, o=University
of North Texas, ou=President,
email=neal.smatresk@unt.edu, c=US
S m at res Date: 2017.05.05 08:49:13 -05'00"
President

Digitally signed by James M. Maguire
. DN: cn=James M. Maguire, o=Office of Facilities
James M. M QUi Plenring and Consrucon, ou=UnT sysem,
email=james.maguire@untsystem.edu, c=US
Date: 2017.05.08 15:39:43 -05'00"

Vice Chancellor

Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
DN: cn=Lee Jackson, o=UNT System,
L J k ou=0ffice of the Chancellor,
ee a C S O n email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,
c=US
Date: 2017.05.09 17:28:55 -05'00"

Chancellor

Attachments Filed Electronically:

e UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan Amendment
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Board Order

Title: Authorization to Amend the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan to Modify the
Scope and Budget for Sycamore Hall 2nd Floor Renovation at UNT

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the Board of Regents has previously approved the Campus Master Plans for UNT,
UNTHSC, and UNTD, and

Whereas, the Board of Regents has previously approved the UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement
Plan, and

Whereas, the project scope and budget have been developed for the renovation of 2" Floor of
Sycamore Hall, and

Whereas, The UNTS FY17 Capital Improvement Plan has been updated to reflect the adjusted
projects scope and budget below:

e Project 16-2.65. Increase the project budget for Sycamore Hall 2 Floor Renovation by
$0.65 million for a project total of $3.95 million,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. Amend the previously approved UNTS Capital Improvement Plan to increase the
project budget by $0.65 million for a project total of $3.95 million for Sycamore Hall 2nd
Floor Renovation (Project 16-2.65).

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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FY2017 Capital Improvement Plan

UNIVERSITY of NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM
FY2017 (in $Million) LnerS T G MoK T
University of North Texas
Prior Yrs Total
Proj. No. Project Funding Source Expensed 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021+ Project
Previously Approved Projects:
1.06 Student Residence Hall PP -
RB 36.36 0.74 37.10
117 University Union Renovation AUX 5.10
CP -
PP -
SF 8.00
Local/Cash 2.60
RB 100.89 11.81 128.40
l17a Scoular/ Stovall Relocations HEAF 1.00
CP 7.68 (7.68)
RB 7.16 0.54 8.70
2.14 SRB Renovation HEAF 4.19
RFS 1.36 14.88 20.43
2.20 Matthews Hall MEP HEAF 0.24 3.96 4.20
2.21 Wooten Hall MEP (Amended) HEAF 0.43 4.72 5.15
2.33 Willis Library MEP HEAF 0.05 3.80 5.10 8.95
2.34 Hickory Hall MEP HEAF 0.24 2.76 3.00
5.01 Central Path Extension at Clark Park HEAF Reserve 0.10 1.40 1.50
16-1.20 College of Visual Arts and Design TRB 0.39 26.61 38.00 5.00 70.00
16-1.84 New Residence Hall
16-1.84a New Residence Hall - Phase 1 RFS 17.04 28.68 3.58
16-1.84b New Residence Hall - Phase 2 RFS 2.34 11.86 26.15 3.35 93.00
16-2.25 General Academic Building MEP HEAF 0.50
RFS 7.00 7.50
16-2.50 Life Science Lab Exhaust Upgrade HEAF - 3.20 3.20
16-2.55 Discovery Park MEP Upgrade RFS 0.60 10.00 10.60
16-2.62a Maple Common Area Renovation AUX 0.15 1.50 1.65
16-2.63 Kerr Hall Kitchen and Dining Renovation AUX 0.06 8.18 8.24
16-2.65 Sycamore 2nd Floor Renovation (Amended) HEAF 0.04 3.91 3.95
16-2.66 Coliseum Concourse Renovation RFS 5.50 2.50 8.00
16-2.67 1500 I-35 Building (Amended) RFS 0.11 10.39 2.00 12.50
16-2.77 Wooten Hall Code Upgrade (Amended) HEAF 2.53 2.53
16-2.78 Child Development Lab Renovation HEAF 0.11 1.89 2.00
16-2.79 McConnell Hall MEP AUX 0.29 1.71 2.00
16-2.80 Fouts Field Demolition Local/Cash 0.05
AUX 4.95 5.00
16-2.81 Fraternity Row Site Development RFS 0.04 2.20 2.24
16-2.82 Track and Field Stadium and Sports Fields (Amendeqrgs 4.00 5.90
GIFT 2.00 11.90
16-2.83 Bruce Hall Renovation AUX 0.61 1.09 1.70
16-2.85 Sage Hall Academic Success Center HEAF Reserve - 1.85 1.85
Previously Approved Projects Total 177.05 137.52 109.14 38.23 3.35 - 465.29
New Projects for Approval:
17-01-0001 |Terrill Hall MEP Renovation HEAF 0.55 5.25 5.80
17-01-0002 |Coliseum MEP Renovation RFES 0.90 9.00 9.90
17-01-0003 [Kerr Hall Air Handler Replacement (Phase 1 & 2) AUX 1.50 2.50 4.00
17-01-0004 (USB MEP Renovation HEAF 0.30 3.00 3.30
17-01-0005 [Discovery Park Bio-Medical Engineering Addition RES 2.00 15.40 17.40
17-01-0006 |Sage Hall Academic Success Center Phase Il HEAF Reserve 0.17 1.28 1.45
17-01-0007 |Life Science Building 4th Floor Laboratories
Renovation RFS 0.60 5.70 6.30
17-01-0008 [Coliseum Roof Replacement Local/Cash 4.31 4.31
17-01-0009 [Off-Site Campus #2 Local/Cash 0.10 1.40 1.50
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FY2017 Capital Improvement Plan

UNIVERSITY of NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM

UNT

FY2017 (in $Million) TRV G NORTH TR
University of North Texas
Prior Yrs Total
Proj. No. Project Funding Source Expensed 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021+ Project

17-01-0010 [New Classroom Building RES 2.20 22.90 25.10
17-01-0011 [Hickory Hall Renovation RFES 0.80 8.00 8.80
17-01-0012 [Eagle Point Parking Lot #84 CP 2.20 2.20

New Project for Approval Total - 15.63 66.43 8.00 - - 90.06
Planned Projects with Identified Funding Sources:
01-0012 Administration Building Renovation HEAF 0.80 7.20 8.00
01-0013 Curry Hall MEP HEAF 0.50 5.00 5.50
01-0014 Underground Utility Repairs HEAF 0.28 2.60 2.88
01-0015 PAC Foundation Repairs HEAF 0.20 1.85 2.05
01-0016 Physical Education Building (PEB) MEP HEAF 0.50 7.00 7.50
01-0017 Language Building MEP HEAF 0.30 4.00 - 4.30
01-0018 Clark Hall lobby renovation AUX 0.15 2.10 2.25
01-0019 Demo and Build New Business Svs Whse AUX 1.25 1.25
01-0020 SRB MEP Renovation HEAF 1.30 1.30
01-0021 RTFP MEP Renovation HEAF 0.50 5.00 5.50
01-0022 Driveway Upgrades (Discovery Park and Campus) [HEAF 1.20 - - 1.20
01-0023 Sage Hall Academic Success Center - Phase 3 HEAF 0.26 1.87 2.13
01-0024 Sage Hall Academic Success Center - Phase 4 HEAF 0.24 1.76 2.00
01-0025 Administration Building Chestnut St Drop-off HEAF 0.40 1.50 1.90
01-0026 Administration Building Elevator Addition HEAF - - 10.00 10.00
01-0027 Chilton Classroom & Restrooms HEAF 0.40 1.50 1.90
01-0028 Chilton Studio HEAF 2.50 2.50
01-0029 Chestnut Hall Renovation HEAF 0.20 1.60 1.80
01-0030 Discovery Park Greenhouse Addition RFS - 3.00 3.00
01-0032 ESSC Envelope Upgrade HEAF 7.80 7.80
01-0033 GAB Interior Renovation HEAF 0.25 2.25 2.50
01-0034 Langage Bldg ADA/TAS upgrades & Interior Renovat|HEAF - 1.50 1.50
01-0035 New Science & Tech Research Building TRB 11.76 50.00 36.24 98.00
01-0036 Union Circle Drive Re-surface AUX 2.00 2.00
01-0037 USB Renovation HEAF 0.25 2.50 2.75
01-0038 Welch St Complex #2 Demolition HEAF 1.50 1.50

Planned Projects with Identified Funding Sources Total - - 27.80 91.71 42.95 20.55 183.01

Planned Land Acquisitions
3.01 [Land Acquisitions per Master Plan [HEAF [ 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 7.50

Planned Land Acquisition Total - 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 7.50

Capital Improvement Plan Total 177.05 154.65 204.87 139.44 47.80 22.05 745.86

Planned Project without Identified Funding Sources

New Construction: Renovation:
Science and Tech Research Building
New Academic Building
Electrical Substation Expansion
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FY2017 Capital Improvement Plan

UNIVERSITY of NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM

UNT

FY2017 (in $Million) LnerS T G MoK T
University of North Texas
Prior Yrs Total
Proj. No. Project Funding Source Expensed 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021+ Project
Summary by Funding Source
Prior Yrs
Funding Source Expensed 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021+ Total
HEAF HEAF 6.30 29.62 28.89 40.21 8.06 18.70 131.78
HEAF Reserve HEAF Reserve 0.10 3.42 1.28 - - - 4.80
Tuition Revenue Bonds TRB 0.39 26.61 49.76 55.00 36.24 - 168.00
Commercial Paper CP 7.68 (5.48) - - - - 2.20
Private Placement PP - - - - - - -
Revenue Bonds RB 144.41 13.09 - - - - 157.50
Revenue Financing System Bonds RFS 1.51 70.45 113.94 40.73 3.35 - 229.98
Auxiliary Reserves AUX 6.06 12.48 9.60 1.50 0.15 3.35 33.14
Grants GRNT - - - - - - -
Student Fees SF 8.00 - - - - - 8.00
Housing Revenue HR - - - - - - -
Gift/Donations GIFT - - - 2.00 - - 2.00
Annual Budget, Operating and Capital Local/Cash 2.60 4.46 1.40 - - - 8.46
Total 177.05 154.65 204.87 139.44 47.80 22.05 745.86

Approved
Digitally signed by Neal Smatresk
DN: cn=Neal Smatresk, o=University of North
Neal Smatresk reso-ree
email=neal.smatresk@unt.edu, c=US
Date: 2017.05.05 15:59:48 -05'00"

President
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Committee: Finance & Facilities

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 25, 2017

Title: Approval of a Letter of Agreement and Delegation of Authority to Negotiate and
Execute a Long-Form Agreement with Learfield Communications, LLC to
administer UNT Athletics Multi-Media Rights

Background:

The University of North Texas (“UNT”) seeks to enter into an exclusive agreement with Learfield
Communications, LLC (“Learfield”) for administration of all marketing, sponsorship, and
promotional rights (“Multi-Media Rights”) around UNT Athletics. The Agreement will engage
Learfield through a wholly-owned subsidiary to be formed under the name “Mean Green Sports
Properties, LLC”. Administration of the exclusive, world-wide Multi-Media Rights will include all
revenue generating opportunities, commercially viable, and marketable rights around UNT
Athletics.

The agreement will provide UNT Athletics with a new, guaranteed revenue model over the course
of the 10-year agreement. The agreement is expected to open many opportunities to incorporate
new elements and modern technologies into the UNT game-day experience, website, and radio
broadcasts while providing significant financial support to enhance the student-athlete
experience.

UNT will be the ninth collegiate institution to be represented by Learfield in Texas — with SMU,
UT Arlington, and the Southland Conference within the Dallas-Fort Worth Metroplex. With the
addition of UNT, Learfield would represent five Conference USA members, including Florida
Atlantic, Louisiana Tech, Middle Tennessee State, and Texas-San Antonio.

A letter of agreement has been negotiated between UNT and Learfield that outlines the basic
terms for administration of Multi-Media Rights and payments to be made — for which Board of
Regents approval is sought. The parties agree to work in good faith to promptly finalize and
execute a long-form agreement incorporating terms set forth in the letter of agreement — for which
delegation of authority from the Board of Regents to negotiate and execute the long-form
agreement is sought.

Financial Analysis/History:

The agreement with Learfield is expected to generate in excess of $5 million in new revenue over
a 10-year period.

Over the term of the agreement, Learfield will pay UNT a $100,000 signing bonus plus guaranteed
rights payments totaling $13,575,000. Learfield will also pay the University fifty percent (50%)
of any amount by which Adjusted Gross Revenue (“AGR”) exceeds the AGR Threshold Amount.
The AGR Threshhold Amount begins at $2,300,000 in 2017-18 and increases annually.

Additionally, Learfield will make an annual payment of $25,000 to the Mean Green Club
beginning in 2020-21 and continuing through the last year of the agreement.

Learfield will also seek to provide a minimum of $200,000 annual corporate sponsorship trade.
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Bob Brown:

ate: 2017.05.04 17:14:15 -0500"

Institution Chief Financial Officer

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron

J a n et DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT System,

ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,

email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,
— =US
Watdh W1 chancetsr-for Firance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Nancy S. Footer

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Multi-Media Rights would be administered by Learfield from July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2027.

Recommendation:

Approval of the Letter of Agreement and Delegation of Authority to Negotiate and Execute a
Long-Form Agreement with Learfield Communications, LLC to administer UNT Athletics
marketing, sponsorship, and promotional rights for the purpose of revenue generation.

Recommended By:

Attachments:

Wren Baker
Vice President/Director of Athletics

Digitally signed by Neal Smatresk

DN: cn=Neal Smatresk, o=University of
N ea I S m a t reS k North Texas, ou=President,

email=neal.smatresk@unt.edu, c=US

Date: 2017.05.05 08:50:30 -05'00"

President

Digitally signed by Lee Jackson

DN: cn=Lee Jackson, 0=UNT System,
Lee J a C kS O n ou=Office of the Chancellor,

email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu, c=US

Date: 2017.05.09 17:30:45 -05'00"

Chancellor

o Letter of Agreement with Learfield Communications, LLC, dated March 20, 2017
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Board Order

Title: Approval of a Letter of Agreement and Delegation of Authority to Negotiate and
Execute a Long-Form Agreement with Learfield Communications, LLC to
Administer UNT Athletics Multi-Media Rights.

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the University of North Texas (“UNT”) seeks to enter into an exclusive agreement
with Learfield Communications, LLC (“Learfield”) for administration of all marketing,
sponsorship, and promotional rights (“Multi-Media Rights”) around UNT Athletics, and

Whereas, the agreement will engage Learfield through a wholly-owned subsidiary to be
formed under the name “Mean Green Sports Properties, LLC” with a term beginning July 1,
2017, and continuing through June 30, 2027, and

Whereas, the agreement will provide UNT Athletics with a new, guaranteed revenue model
over the course of the 10-year agreement and is expected to open up many opportunities to
incorporate new elements and modern technologies into the UNT game-day experience,
website, and radio broadcasts while providing significant financial support to enhance the
student-athlete experience.

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. Approval of the letter of agreement between UNT and Learfield, dated March 20,
2017.

2. Delegation of authority to the chancellor, with the concurrence of the UNT president,
to negotiate and execute a long-form agreement with Learfield Communications, LLC
for administration of Multi-Media Rights around UNT Athletics, incorporating the
terms of the letter of agreement.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions
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BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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Learfield

2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 500
Plano, TX 75093
469-241-9191
www.learfield.com

March 20, 2017

Mr. Wren Baker

Vice President/Director of Athletics
University of North Texas '
1301 S. Bonnie Brae St.

Denton, TX 76207

Dear Wren:

This Letter of Agreement (“LOA”) sets forth the terms and conditions under which University of North
Texas (“University”) engages Learfield Communications, LLC (“Learfield”) through a wholly-owned
subsidiary to be formed under the name “Mean Green Sports Properties, LLC” (“MGSP”), to administer its
athletic marketing, sponsorship and promotional rights, .

A

Parties. This LOA is entered into between University and Learfield. However, upon the full
execution of this LOA, University acknowledges and agrees that Learfield will assign all of its
rights and obligations under this LOA to MGSP who shall then become substituted for Learfield as
a party to this LOA, and University hereby consents to such assignment and substitution. Any
references to Learfield herein shall be read to mean MGSP from and after the effective date of the
foregoing assignment.

Rights. University hereby grants to Learfield, for the duration of the Term (as defined below), the
exclusive world-wide multi-media rights for the items set forth in this LOA and for those items
listed in Exhibit A to this LOA attached hereto and made a part of this LOA (collectively, the
“Multi-Media Rights”) except for any rights specifically excluded as set forth in this LOA.

Term. The period of time during which the Multi-Media Rights may be exercised by Learfield shall
be from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2027 (the “Term™). Each year of the Term shall be measured
from July 1 through June 30 and shall be referred to as an “Athletic Year”. The parties acknowledge
that beginning on the date hereof, Learfield’s staff may begin carrying out some of the terms of this
LOA. During the period commencing June 30, 2025 through December 31, 2025 (“Negotiating
Period”), the parties will negotiate in good faith with the goal of arriving at mutually agreeable
terms for an extension of the Term of this LOA. From the date of this LOA through the end of the
Negotiating Period, University will negotiate exclusively with Learfield with respect to the rights
granted under this LOA. If no agreement for an extension is agreed upon by the end of the
Negotiating Period, the parties will continue to regularly meet thereafter (not less than quarter-
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annually) and negotiate in good faith on a non-exclusive basis for the terms of an extension to this
LOA.

D. Guarantee/Revenue Share. As consideration for the Multi-Media Rights granted exclusively to
Learfield hereunder by University, Learfield will pay will pay University the guaranteed rights
payments set forth in the following chart (the “Guaranteed Rights Fee”). Learfield will also pay the
University fifty percent (50%) of the amount by which Adjusted Gross Revenue (“AGR”)! exceeds
the AGR Threshold Amount set forth in the following chart (the “AGR Threshold Amount™):

Athletic Year | Guaranteed Rights Fee AGR Threshold Amount
2017-18 $1,150,000 $2,300,000
2018-19 $1,175,000 $2,360,000
2019-20 $1,200,000 $2,420,000
2020-21 $1,225,000 $2,480,000
2021-22 $1,250,000 $2,540,000
2022-23 $1,300,000 $2,650,000
2023-24 $1,350,000 $2,760,000
2024-25 $1,450,000 $2,970,000
2025-26 $1,550,000 $3,180,000
2026-27 $1,650,000 $3,390,000

The Guaranteed Rights Fee described above is based upon all of the Assumptions (as defined
below) being accurate. If any or all of the Assumptions do not occur, are not accurate or do not
remain in effect for the entire term of this LOA/the Long-Form Agreement, then such occurrence
shall constitute a Diminishing Event and the process set forth in the definition of a Diminishing
Event shall be followed. “Assumptions” means that, at a minimum, (i) the inventory and
merchandising elements (e.g., signage, tickets, hospitality, suite access, etc.) available to Learfield
is not less than what was available to sponsors under Existing Sponsorship Agreements (as defined
below) during the 2016 — 2017 Athletic Year and (ii) all of the rights licensed exclusively to
Learfield under this LOA/the Long-Form Agreement are available to Learfield in substantially the
same form throughout the term of this LOA/the Long-Form Agreement.

Learfield, through its employees or a third party accounting and auditing firm, shall have the right
to audit, inspect and copy University’s financial and business records in order to verify the net
revenue booked under Existing Sponsorship Agreements (as defined below) during the 2016 —2017
Athletic Year. In the event such an audit reveals University materially overrepresented (greater
than $75,000) the net revenue booked under Existing Sponsorship Agreements, Learfield shall have
the right to defer a portion of the Guaranteed Rights Fee due in either or both of the first two
Athletic Years of the Term to any subsequent Athletic Year during the Term.

In the event that after the date of this LOA, additional sponsorship inventory becomes available in
any University athletic facility, University shall grant to Learfield the exclusive sales and marketing
rights to such inventory and if the grant of such rights materially increases Learfield’s Multi-Media

' “AGR” means Learfield’s gross collected revenue less the following: (i) agency commissions, (if) sponsor fulfillment

costs such as tickets, merchandise, promotional elements and out-of-pocket costs of sales, (iii) third party rights fees .

such as NCAA or NIT related sponsorship fees, (iv) collection and/or litigation expenses incurred by Learfield in
connection with any third party litigation related to Learfield’s performance under this LOA, including but not limited
to those incurred in connection with collection efforts against sponsors, and (v) any other credits, deductions or
adjustments (including labor to hang signs) provided for under this LOA or are identified as deductions from AGR in
a separate writing signed by the parties.
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Rights above the economic value reflected in the Guaranteed Rights Fee and the AGR Threshold
Amount, the parties will meet and discuss in good faith modifications to the terms of this LOA.

In the event that AGR excecds the AGR Threshold Amount in two (2) consecutive Athletic Years,
the parties will meet and discuss in good faith potential modifications to the terms of this LOA.

All Guaranteed Rights Fee payments owed by Learfield under this LOA shall be paid in two equal
installments, one-half on or before January 15 of each Athletic Year, and the balance on or before
July 15" of the following Athletic Year, with a final settle up, if any, derived through the AGR
Threshold Amount, to be paid no later than October 31% of the following Athletic Year.

University shall pay Learfield a commission equal to twenty percent (20%) of the gross revenues
collected by or on behalf of University or any Third Party Rights Holder (as defined below) after
the Termination Date from any Marketing & Sponsorship Agreements entered into prior to the
Termination Date. For example, if the Termination Date is June 30, 2027 and on such date there
are ten (10) Marketing & Sponsorship Agreements in place which have terms that expire on June
30, 2030, and the gross revenues from all such Marketing & Sponsorship Agreements that are
collected during the three year period equals $400,000 in each of those three years, then University
would owe Learfield a commission of $80,000 in each of those three years for a total of $240,000.
University shall pay such commissions to Learfield as and when the gross revenue is collected by
or on behalf of University or the Third Party Rights Holder. On or promptly after the Termination
Date, Learfield will assign all Marketing & Sponsorship Agreements (other than multi-property
Marketing & Sponsorship Agreements) to University or its then multi-media rights holder (“Third
Party Rights Holder”). The fact that a Marketing & Sponsorship Agreement is assigned to a Third
Party Rights Holder shall not relieve University of its obligation to pay Learfield the commissions
described in this Section C nor shall any amendment, restatement or modification of a Marketing
& Sponsorship Agreement entered into after the Termination Date relieve University of its
obligation to pay Learfield the commissions described in this Section C. For the avoidance of doubt
and clarification, a termination of an existing Marketing & Sponsorship Agreement during the term
of the Marketing & Sponsorship Agreement followed by a new agreement between either
University or the Third Party Rights Holder and the same sponsor (or an affiliated company of the
same sponsor) set forth in the Marketing & Sponsorship Agreement, shall not relieve University of
its obligation to pay Learfield a commission under this Section C and shall not for purposes of this
Section C be considered a new agreement with that sponsor.

During the last three (3) Athletic Years of the Term, the parties will discuss in good faith before

Learfield may execute any new Marketing & Sponsorship Agreements that would extend beyond
the Termination Date.

For purposes of this LOA, “Marketing & Sponsorship Agreement” means any agreement entercd
into between Learfield or University and any third party (including any customer, sponsor or
advertiser) in which any Multi-Media Rights are granted to such third party and where the term of
such agreement extends beyond the Termination Date.

For purposes of this LOA, “Termination Date” means the last date of this LOA.

“Diminishing Event” means any event, action, change in circumstances or occurrence which has
the effect or is likely to have the effect of diminishing or eliminating or otherwise negatively
impacting Learfield’s Multi-Media Rights, including but not limited to the following: (1) any
refund or credit which Learfield is required to provide a sponsor because of the failure of signage
not being functional and operational; (2) new naming rights to all or part of a University owned

3
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facility granted to a third party that is a competitor of an Learfield sponsor who holds exclusivity
rights in a sponsorship category; (3) University’s football team or men’s basketball team incurs
disciplinary sanctions that prevent the team from appearing in conference championship games or
post-season conference tournaments, NCAA or NIT tournaments; (4) the University’s football
program or men’s basketball program is eliminated or substantially curtailed; (5) the football
program or men’s basketball program is no longer a member of the Athletic Conference or any
other comparable conference; (6) Learfield loses part or all of a source of revenue or any of its
Multi-Media Rights as a result of an action taken by the Athletic Conference applicable to the
University whether by rule, regulations or contract; (7) the signage of a corporate sponsor of other
partners of the University or the University or a sponsor of a conference network or other
broadcasting network (“Third Party Signage™) in and around University athletics facilities
(“Athletic Areas”) encroaches upon Learfield’s sponsor’s signage by reason of the Third Party’s
signage being visible either during a telecast or by the general public in the Athletic Areas (for the
avoidance of doubt and clarification, the signage identifying the network broadcasting a University
athletic event or show from Athletic Areas shall not be deemed an encroachment in the Athletic
Areas); (8) the revenue from a conference agreement attributable to the University and owed to
Learfield under the terms of this LOA is not paid over to Learfield; or (9) if the University and/or
its athletic department arc the subject of a “material adverse event” whether due to sanctions by
the NCAA for major violations or otherwise; or (10) the University’s material breach of the
LOA/Long-Form Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, a material adverse event does not include
poor performance by or a losing record of a University athletic team.

In the event of a Diminishing Event, the following process shall be initiated: Learfield shall submit
to the University a substantiation of the value attributable to the rights which are not available or
the rights which are negatively affected by the Diminishing Event along with reasonable
substantiation for its calculation whereupon the parties will meet within thirty (30) days thereafter
to discuss Learfield’s calculation and agree upon the remedy for the Diminishing Event, which
could include any of the following or a combination thereof: (i) a reduction in the Guaranteed
Rights Fee; (ii) an extension of the Term; (iii) granting Learficld additional Multi-Media Rights;
(iv) providing Learficld with additional tickets; or (v) any other remedy that the parties may agree
upon. The parties agree that the remedy agreed upon may under certain circumstances remain in
effect beyond the Athletic Year in which the Diminishing Event occurs due to the fact that some
Diminishing Events can have an effect that lasts beyond the Athletic Year in which it occurs, If it
is agreed that a remedy is necessary or appropriate, the parties will continue to negotiate in good
faith until a remedy is agreed upon. The parties acknowledge and agree that the process for a
Diminishing Event is the exclusive remedy under this LOA for any set of facts or action or inaction
that constitutes a real or alleged Diminishing Event, and that in no event shall any such facts or
action or inaction be the basis for termination of this LOA due to the material breach by a party. In
any event, any undisputed portion of the Guaranteed Rights Fee (i.e., the amount of the Guaranteed
Rights Fee less the adjustment proposed by Learfield) shall be paid in accordance with the schedule
in Section C of this LOA. The parties further agree that in the event of a Material Rule Change that
results in Learfield losing significant rights hereunder (e.g., the loss of a significant sponsorship
category, the loss of any Multi-Media Rights, etc.), then such loss of rights shall be deemed a
material breach of this LOA, and, in addition to any other rights or remedies it may have in law or

2 “Material adverse event” means an event, action, conduct, investigation or situation on campus at the University of

such a negative or adverse nature that sponsors or potential sponsors considering sponsoring University athletics are
prompted to discontinue sponsorships or the pursuit of new or replacement sponsorships as a result of not wanting to
be associated with the negative image or scandal; provided, however, that such material adverse event must not have
been directly caused by any act or omission of Learfield or its employees or subcontractors.
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in equity, Learfield shall have the right to terminate this LOA if such rights are not restored within
30 days of the University receiving notice from Learfield of such material breach.

E. Reductions to the Guaranteed Rights Fee. A Diminishing Event shall be deemed to have occurred
and the process for a Diminishing Event shall be initiated if any one or all of the following events
occur and thereby reduce Learfield’s revenue during the Term:

i.  The football or men’s basketball program is eliminated or substantially curtailed;

ii.  In any Athletic Year, University plays fewer than fiftcen (15) home men’s basketball
games at UNT Coliscum (the “Arena™) or fewer than six (6) home football games at
Apogee Stadium (the “Stadium™);

iii.  The University is no longer a member of the Conference USA or any other comparable
conference’;

iv.  The University is party to any agreements with third parties not disclosed in this LOA
(including verbal agreements) that conflict with the rights granted to Learfield hereunder;

v.  Should any force majeure event beyond the control of either Party (e.g., acts of terrorism,
acts of state or the United States, strikes, labor shortages, epidemics or any natural disaster,
including, but not limited to, flood, fire, earthquake, tornado, hurricane or extremely severe
weather conditions, drought, loss of power, whether or not resulting from a natural disaster)
prevent a University football or men’s basketball game being played at its originally
scheduled athletic venue (provided, however, the parties recognize that it is preferred that
University reschedule a game at a different date or time in an effort to keep the game as a
home game instead of moving the location of the game to the visiting team’s home venue
or to a neutral venue, and that rescheduling a home game duc to a force majeure event will
not result in any reduction in the Guaranteed Rights Fee);

vi.  If as a result of some action by the conference Learfield loses part or all of a source of
revenue; or, if there is a Material Rule Change or a Conference Change that materially
diminishes or restricts Learfield’s ability to obtain sponsorship agreements or to otherwise
exercise its licensed rights under this LOA. For purposes of this section, a “Material Rule
Change” means (a) any change in applicable law, rule, regulation or order of any governing
authority having jurisdiction over the University (specifically including without limitation
the University’s Board of Trustees) (b) any change in applicable constitution, bylaws,
regulations or policies of the NCAA or any athletic conference in which the University is
a member (an “Athletic Conference™), (c) any change in any NCAA and Athletic
Conference policies and agreements, (d) any change in policy or practices of the University
or its Athletic Department related to the licensed rights, including without limitation any
restrictions or limitations on the nature of permissible categories for which Learfield may
sell sponsorships, or (¢) any other change in restrictions or impairments upon Learfield’s
exercise of its sponsorship or related rights with respect to the licensed rights caused by
actions of the University, its employees, agents or anyone affiliated with the University
(which action is previously approved by the University). For purposes of this section, a
“Conference Change” means a change in the University’s Athletic Conference affiliation
or a material change in the nature of the Athletic Conference, whether because of (i) the

* In the event that during the Term, the University becomes a member of a “Power 5” conference or the American
Athletic Conference, the parties will meet and discuss potential modifications to the terms of this LOA.

5
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viii,

University’s withdrawal or departure from an Athletic Conference with which it is a
member or (ii) the Athletic Conference disbands or merges with another conference) or
(iii) there are more than two (2) member changes in the Athletic Conference’s membership
within any twenty-four (24) month period (whether voluntary or involuntary departure or
whether additions or contractions) and as a result, Learfield’s rights hereunder are
negatively impacted;

If, during the Term, the University and/or its athletics program is the subject of Material
Adverse Publicity (as defined below), whether due to sanctions by the NCAA for major
violations in its athletic programs or otherwise, which Material Adverse Publicity
materially diminishes or restricts Learfield’s ability to retain or obtain sponsorship
agreements or to otherwise exercise the licensed rights. For purposes of this section,
“Material Adverse Publicity” means public attention or scandal in the form of television,
print media, internet news repotts, or other public news reporting, after the date hereof, that
arises from and relates to activities, conduct, investigations or situations on campus at the
University or affecting or relating to the University’s athletic programs and which public
attention or scandal is of such a negative or adverse nature that sponsors or potential
sponsors are prompted to discontinue sponsorships or the pursuit of new or replacement
sponsorships as a result of not wanting to be associated with the negative image or scandal;
provided, however, that such Material Adverse Publicity must not have been directly
caused by any act or omission of Learfield or its employees or subcontractors; or

If, during the Term, a University athletic team refuses and fails to play a scheduled regular
season game, an NCAA Basketball Tournament game, a National Invitation Tournament
(NIT) game or a post-season football game for which it is eligible (with the exception of a
bowl game after a season in which the University’s football team finished with fewer than
six (6) wins); provided, however, that such failure to play a game must not have been
directly caused by an act or omission of Learfield or its employees or subcontractors.

Additional Consideration. In addition to the Guaranteed Rights Fee and any payments of a

percentage of AGR above the AGR Threshold Amounts, Learfield will provide University with the
following additional consideration:

1

il

iid,

Signing Bonus. Learfield will make a signing bonus payment to the University in the
amount of $100,000 during the 2017-18 Athletic Year.

Trade. During each Athletic Year of the Term, Learfield will endeavor to provide mutually
agreed-upon trade (goods or services requested by University in exchange for sponsorship
rights) to the University’s athletic department in the amount of $200,000, If Learfield
provides University’s athletic department with trade benefits in excess of $200,000 in any
Athletic Year, University will pay Learfield a commission of fifty percent (50%) of such
excess. In the event that Learfield fails to provide University’s athletic department with
trade benefits in the amount of $200,000 in any Athletic Year, the parties may meet and

discuss in good faith a strategy for securing a greater amount of trade benefits during the
following Athletic Year.

Stadium Suite. Each Athletic Year during the Term, University will provide Learfield
exclusive use of a suite in the Stadium throughout the entire football season, along with
twenty (20) tickets and five (5) parking passes for full, exclusive use of the suite. Such
exclusive use will be provided to Learfield, at no cost to Learfield, during each of the 2017-
18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 Athletic Years. During each of the 2020-21, 2021-22, 2022-23,

6
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2023-24, 2024-25, 2025-26 and 2026-27 Athletic Years, Learfield will pay University
$25,000 for such exclusive use of the suite and the tickets and parking passes. Throughout
the Term, Learfield shall be responsible for catering expenses associated with its use of the
aforementioned suite.

Official Athletic Internet Site (“OAS”) and Internet Video Streaming and e-Commerce. Upon the

termination or expiration, whichever is earlier, of its current OAS contract with CBSi Advanced
Media, the University will give strong consideration to enter into a new OAS contract with
Learfield’s affiliated entity, SIDEARM Sports, LLC (“SIDEARM”). University agrees to

incorporate at least three (3) advertising units on each page of the OAS in the next redesign of the
OAS.

The University hereby grants to Learfield the exclusive rights to all revenue-generating
opportunities (including any third party royalties or fees, but excluding revenue generated from the
sale of merchandise), which now or at any time during the Term may exist on the University’s
OAS, including, but not limited to, (i) on-line video streaming of athletic events on the OAS and
the fees attributable thereto, and (ii) all rights to sell sponsorships in the form of company logos
and messages on University’s OAS, audio and visual streaming of sponsorship messages and direct
internet access to other websites, the right to make use of social media platforms including the
University’s athletic department’s (official and institutional) Facebook, YouTube and Twitter
presences and the right to use and monetize the University’s athletic department’s content which
University agrees to supply to Learfield at no cost to Learfield. Learfield and the University will
discuss in good faith any guidelines related to the use of social media platforms. The University
shall, at its sole cost and expense, be responsible for all expenses related to the OAS. University
shall have the right to broadcast on the OAS, free of charge to viewers, select, one-time events
(e.g., signing day events, press conferences announcing new hires). University agrees that all live
sporting events, regularly scheduled press conferences, and other similar events will be behind a
pay wall.

University’s OAS, which shall include all official digital platforms, will be produced by the
University throughout the Term. University agrees to incorporate advertising units on each page of
the OAS. Editorial content on the OAS shall be controlled by University. All audio programming
produced by Learfield, and subject to University approval, may be aired and distributed by
Learfield through the OAS. University may use its own “Apps” (i.e., a specialized program using
software that can be run on the Internet, on a computer, on a smatt phone, tablet or other electronic
device) for its athletic teams to be used on mobile devices, tablets and computers for recruiting and
similar purposes but in no event shall University Apps contain or reference any commercial
sponsorships of any kind or be monetized in any manner. Learfield may on its own, or through
third parties, create and monetize its own Apps using University’s athletic department’s game clips,
highlights and live audio of athletic events. Learfield and the University will meet and discuss in
good faith potential uses of University’s athletic department’s game clips, highlights and live audio
of athletic events in its Apps.

Trademark Licensing Services. In the future, University will give strong consideration to entering
into a new licensing agreement with Learfield Licensing Partners, LLC (“LLP") as its exclusive
trademark agent

ANC. Upon execution of this LOA, University will give consideration to engaging ANC Sports
Enterprises, LLC (“ANC”) to provide any new signage in any University owned or controlled
athletic facility and to be the ongoing content provider for such new signage, but University is not
required to use ANC.
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Ticketing. Upon execution of this LOA, the University will give consideration to entering into a
ticketing agreement with IMG Learfield Ticket Solutions, LLC (“IMGLTS”).

Extended Business Lines. During each Athletic Year of the Term, Learfield will devote sponsorship
inventory it values at no less than $50,000 to promoting the services offered by Learfield’s extended
business lines (i.e., SIDEARM, LLP and IMGLTS), so long as University maintains partnerships
with at least two (2) of Learfield’s extended business lines throughout the Term.

Broadcast Crew Compensation and Travel. Learfield will employ at its expense the radio on-air
talent of the broadcast crew for football and men’s and women’s basketball games. University will
provide Learfield space on the team’s charter transportation for up to four (4) broadcast personnel
(including on-air talent) for football games and up to two (2) broadcast personnel (including on-air
talent) for men’s and women’s basketball games. If space on the team’s charter transportation is
not available for football or men’s or women’s basketball games, University will be responsible for
providing Learfield with commercial travel for those games. Learfield will be responsible for all

other transportation expenses (including all lodging and incidental expenses) for broadcast
personnel.

Television/Streaming. If the broadcast of live and/or delayed television play-by-play for football
or men’s or women’s basketball games are not subject to restrictions of the Athletic Conference,
the NCAA or a network agreement involving the Athletic Conference, University will grant
Learfield the exclusive right to such broadcasts. The University shall grant to Learfield, and shall
not grant to any other third party, the right to stream audio and video broadcasts of University
games and shows on the Internet. All advertising and sponsorship rights retained by University in
connection with television/streaming broadcasts shall be granted exclusively to Learfield. Learfield
and the University will discuss, on a case by case basis, each party’s responsibility for new
streaming or television production expenses that may arise during the Term.

“Beyond the Green”. Learfield shall have the exclusive right to produce the “Beyond the Green”
show and shall retain all sponsorship and advertising sales therefrom. Learfield shall be responsible
for all expenses related to the production of the show. In the event that the University requests
Learfield produce any other show featuring a coach of an athletics program, Learfield need only
broadcast such show if in its reasonable determination the broadcast of such show is economically
feasible.

Radio. Learficld will create and administer a Mean Green Radio Network and will make and cause
to be made live radio, high-definition radio broadcasts of all regular season and post-season games
for football and men’s and women’s basketball and, at Learfield’s option, (i) exhibition games for
football and men’s and women’s basketball, (ii) basketball events such as Midnight Madness and
(iii) collegiate sports other than football and men’s and women’s basketball. All costs associated
with the Mean Green Radio Network will be the responsibility of Learfield.

Tickets/Parking Passes. Each Athletic Year during the Term, University will provide Learfield, at
no cost to Learfield, (i) the same number of tickets (in the same locations) provided by University
for football and men’s and women’s basketball games and other athletic contests to its sponsors
and advertisers during the 2016 — 2017 Athletic Year, (ii) sixteen (16) club seats in the Stadium for
each football game and (iv) exclusive use of the 5™ Floor press box party deck of the Stadium
(including the outdoor open area and Special Events Room 5213) for each football game (pre-game,
in-game and post-game), along with tickets (minimum of forty (40) per game) and parking passes
(one parking per four guests) (collectively, the “Base Ticket Amount”). If the 5™ floor party deck
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is removed, University will provide Learfield with alternative, mutually agreed upon space. All
expenses associated with the 5™ floor party deck, including the outdoor open area and Special
Events Room 5213, (tables, chairs, seating arrangements, catering, décor, etc.) will be the
responsibility of Learfield. Capacity of the 5" floor party deck will be reasonably determined by
the University. Learfield shall have the right to purchase additional regular season tickets (beyond
the Base Ticket Amount) at fifty percent (50%) of face value. Learfield will also have the right to
purchase at face value tickets to the post-season games, tournaments, conference championships
and other championship games in which a University team participates. Each Athletic Year during
the Term, University will provide Learfield, at no cost to Learfield, (i) not less than the same
number of parking passes which are provided to University’s sponsors during the 2016 — 2017
Athletic Year (the “Base Parking Amount™). Learfield shall have the right to purchase additional
parking passes (beyond the Base Parking Amount) at full price.

Staff Tickets/Parking Passes. In addition to the ticket allotment set forth in Section P above,
throughout the Term, University will, at no cost to Learfield, provide Learfield staff members with
sufficient access and parking passes to University athletic contests, to perform all duties necessary.

Hospitality. At no additional cost to Learfield, University will provide Learfield access to all
hospitality areas that are currently utilized to fulfill advertising/sponsorship agreements.

Coaches Talent Fees. Because coaches are University employees, it is at the University’s discretion
(and cost) if coaches receive any additional compensation for appearances/endorsements related to
the Multi-Media Rights. Coaches’ appearance fees for radio/television broadcasts are included in
Learfield’s annual Guaranteed Rights Fee and will be paid at University’s discretion to its coaches.
However, in the event a coach is asked to participate in a commercial, such participation will be
subject to the coach and the sponsor agreeing on compensation for such participation, and such fee
shall be paid by the sponsor.

Office Space. University will provide, at no additional cost to Learfield, suitable office space (two
private offices and a third additional space in close proximity to the two private offices) for three
Learfield personnel within or proximate to the University’s athletic department, University shall
also provide technology infrastructure, and furniture such as desks, chairs, phones, email access
and internet access. If Learfield desires to expand its staff solely to improve its ability to carry out
its responsibilities under this LOA/the Long-Form Agreement, subject to availability, University
shall provide Learfield with additional office space in reasonable proximity to the University’s

athletic department. University parking permits and the associated costs will be the responsibility
of Learfield.

Traditional Athletic Department Expenditures. Throughout the Term, University will continue to
pay for “traditional” athletic department expenditures associated with sports marketing, such as
video board and scoreboard maintenance, media guide production, official athletic website hosting
and maintenance (as identified in the OAS agreement), coaches’ talent fees, ticket promotional
materials and advertising, merchandising, facilities operations and event operations.

Print Publications (e.g.. Programs). University will be responsible for the content, photography,
layout and design of each publication. The parties will be mutually responsible for cover design.
Throughout the Term, the University will continue to pay all printing expenses associated with a
mutually agreed upon number (such number to be consistent with past practice) of men’s and
women’s basketball programs, schedule cards and posters. Learfield will pay all printing expenses
assoclated with a mutually agreed upon number (such number to be consistent with past practice)
of football programs. Learfield will retain all sponsorship and advertising sales revenue from

9
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football and men’s and women’s basketball programs (and any other athletics program), and such
amounts will included in the calculation of AGR. In the event that the University decides to sell
football programs, a to-be-determined number of such programs will be provided free of charge to
media, visiting teams and suite holders, and Learfield will retain all revenue from the sale of all
other programs,

University Logos and Marks (“Marks™). Throughout the Term, Learfield and its sponsors may use
University Marks on a royalty-free basis with regard to any promotion, sponsorships, commercial
endorsements or any other marketing activities covered by this LOA. The use of University Marks
requires University’s prior written approval.

Rivalry Series. University and Learfield will cooperate in the development of a corporate-
sponsored rivalry series with the sponsorship and promotional rights for any agreed upon rivalry
series belonging exclusively to Learfield.

Coaches’ Endorsements, Learfield will have the opportunity to make use of University football and
basketball coaches for sponsored events and sponsor interactions as mutually agreed upon by both
parties during each Athletic Year of the Term at no cost to Learfield. University will ensure that
the head football coach and head basketball head coach provide sponsor appearances at no cost to
Learfield. University will not allow its coaches to participate, directly or indirectly, in the
endorsement of any products or services except for those products or services offered by Learfield’s
University-specific advertisers or sponsors,

Arena/Stadium Use. During each Athletic Year, Learfield will have the right to make use of agreed
upon areas of the Arena and the Stadium for sponsor events and sponsor interactions at no cost to
Learfield. Space will be provided at no cost but all incidental expenses related to the activation will
be the responsibility of Learfield,

Naming Rights Areas and Donor Contributions. If as a result of a New Naming Rights Agreement
or a Donor Contribution, Learfield (i) loses any of its sponsorship rights or sponsorship inventory
related to an athletic facility, (ii) loses revenue under a sponsorship or a potential sponsorship or
(iii) is in breach of an agreement with a sponsor, a Diminishing Event shall have occurred and the
process for a Diminishing Event shall be followed. In the case of Learfield being in breach of an
agreement with a sponsor, Learfield and the University shall negotiate in good faith to make
Learfield whole for the breach which will include any refund, credit or damages owed by Learfield
to the sponsor(s). University acknowledges and agrees that making Learfield “whole” could
involve a remedy that covers more than one Athletic Year depending upon the value of the sponsor
to Learfield, whether the sponsor was granted exclusivity in a sponsorship category and the term
of the sponsorship agreement with such sponsor(s).

The parties agree that, other than with respect to such New Naming Rights Agreement or Donor
Contribution, neither the University nor anyone acting on its behalf will enter into any other
agreement with any third party granting such person or entity rights similar to those granted or
licensed to Learfield under this LOA, unless Learficld agrees in writing on a case-by-case basis.
University also agrecs that any and all sponsorship and promotional opportunities with respect to
University athletics or its teams during the Term will be granted only in connection with a corporate
sponsorship agreement through Learfield pursuant to the provisions of this LOA.

Should the University decide to obtain a naming rights partner for any of its athletic facilities,
University shall give Learfield the right of first offer to provide consulting and other services in
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BB.

CC.

connection with obtaining a naming rights partner with the compensation for such services to be
mutually agreed upon prior to Learfield providing such services.

During each Athletic Year, Learficld shall have the right to create areas of congregation in the
Arena, in the Stadium and in other University athletic facilities that can be used as a game day
related naming rights opportunity for a sponsor, upon University’s prior written approval subject
to existing agreements. Expenses associated with the creation of these areas will be the sole
responsibility of Learfield.

For purposes of this section, “New Naming Rights Agreement” means any agreement entered into
after the date of this LOA by the University granting naming rights to any Person for any part or
all of an athletic facility.

For purposes of this section, “Donor Contribution” means a contribution of money or other valuable
consideration made to the University or the University’s athletic department by a person or
corporate entity which results in that person’s or corporate entity’s name being placed on, in or
around an athletic facility which can be seen or viewed by the general public. For the avoidance of
doubt and clarification, a Donor Contribution does not include a contribution to University or the
University’s athletic department by any Person whose name appears only in the non-public viewing
areas of an athletic facility such as the basketball coaches’ lounge, the weight room or the media
room. The Person whose name appears in a non-public viewing area may not under any
circumstance include Multi-Media Rights that have been exclusively granted to Learfield under
this LOA. The granting of any Multi-Media Rights to that Person shall constitute a Diminishing
Event and the process for a Diminishing Event shall be followed.

For purposes of this section, “Person” means an individual, a sole proprietorship, a partnership
(general or limited), a corporation, a limited liability company, an association, a joint stock

company, a trust, a foundation, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization or any other
business entity.

Existing Sponsorship Agreements. All athletics sponsorship agreements between the University

~ and a sponsor whose term extends beyond August 31, 2017 (“Existing Sponsorship Agreements”)

shall be assigned by University to Learfield who will manage and service them with all of the net
revenue collected thercfrom belonging to Learfield and included in the calculation of AGR.
University will continue to provide all benefits such as tickets and signage to sponsors under
Existing Sponsorship Agreements. University shall use its best efforts to collect all outstanding
revenue from Existing Sponsorship Agreements before August 31, 2017. Beginning on September
1, 2017, University shall provide Learfield with a monthly report on the status of collections.
Beginning on September 1, 2018, Learfield shall retain all outstanding revenue from Existing
Sponsorship Agrecments.

Retained Agreements. The University’s exclusive sponsorship agreements in the apparel and
pouring rights categories (if any) shall be retained by University (the “Retained Agreements™) with
all of the revenue from apparel agreements belonging to University and all revenue from the
pouring rights agreements belonging to Learfield. In exchange for Learfield providing the
University’s pouring rights provider benefits valued at no less than $300,000 during each Athletic
Year of the Term, Learfield and the University mutually agreed that no less than $300,000 shall be
deducted from the Guaranteed Rights Fee each Athletic Year of the Term. If Learfield is required
to provide a sponsor under a Retained Agreement additional benefits such as signage beyond those
that presently exist in the Retained Agreements, Learfield will provide them, if the additional
benefits are available, at a cost to be mutually agreed upon and when agreed upon, deducted from

11
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the Guaranteed Rights Fee each Athletic Year of the Term. Learfield shall have the right to upsell
sponsors under a Retained Agreement.

Excluded Categories. Learfield may not sell a sponsorship which promotes: (i) the sale of tobacco
products, but may sell a sponsorship that includes the industry growers’ responsibility messaging,
(i) sexually explicit products or services, or (iii) material that is defamatory, obscene, profane,
vulgar or otherwise considered socially unacceptable or offensive to the general public or may
cause harm to student athlete health, safety or welfare. Learfield shall be permitted to and shall
have the exclusive right to sell sponsorships in all other categories. For the avoidance of doubt,
Learfield shall be permitted to and shall have the exclusive right to sell sponsorships in the beer
category. Learfield shall be in constant communication with University’s athletic director
regarding potential new or renewal agreements in the alcohol and casino categories. All details
related fo agreements in the alcohol and casino categories will be submitted to the athletic director
for review and, if necessary, adjusted before Learfield may move forward with such agreements.

Ryan Financial Sponsorship Agreement. Upon the expiration or termination (whichever is earlier)
of the University’s agreement with Ryan Financial, Learfield shall have the exclusive right to all
sponsorship benefits previously provided to Ryan Financial. In the event that the University’s
agreement with Ryan Financial is renewed beyond their existing terms and Learfield is required to
provide Ryan Financial benefits, Learfield will provide them, if the benefits are available, at a cost
to be mutually agreed upon and when agreed upon, deducted from the Guaranteed Rights Fee each
Athletic Year of the Term. Learfield shall have the right to upsell Ryan Financial.

Stadium Naming Rights, Learfield will continue to provide Apogee with the benefits described in
Apogee’s agreement with the University (the “Apogee Agreement”). Upon the expiration or
termination of the Apogee Agreement, the University may include the benefits currently being
provided to Apogee in any future agreement for the naming rights to the Stadium (“Stadium
Naming Rights Agreement”); provided, however, that Learfield and the University shall discuss in
good faith modifications to such benefits before they are included in such Stadium Naming Rights
Agreement. If Learfield is required to provide Apogee with additional benefits, such as signage,
beyond those that presently exist in the Apogee Agreement, Learfield will provide them, if the
additional benefits are available, at a cost to be mutually agreed upon and when agreed upon,
deducted from the Guaranteed Rights Fee each Athletic Ycar of the Term. Learfield shall have the
right to upsell Apogee.

Fouts Signage. If as a result of the removal of the Fouts signage, Learfield has lost or may lose
revenue under a sponsorship, the University and Learfield will discuss in good faith alternative
signage opportunities or additional inventory ideas in an effort to assist Learfield.

Binding Effect. This LOA, when fully executed and delivered, shall be a binding and legally
enforceable contract, upon which we may each rely. The parties will work in good faith to
promptly finalize and execute a long-form Multi-Media Rights Agreement incorporating the terms
of this LOA that will continue (the “Long-Form Agreement”). The parties will endeavor to have a

Long-Form Agreement finalized and executed within 90 days from the date of this LOA. Until such -

time as the Long-Form Agreement is finalized and executed, this LOA shall serve as the binding
agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. To the extent there is a

conflict between the Long-Form Agreement and this LOA, the Long-Form Agreement shall
control.

Counterparts. This LOA may be executed in counterparts by facsimile or electronic signature, each
of which shall be deemed an original and each counterpart together shall constitute one document.

12
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11 Entire Agreement. This LOA constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes
all other agreements, arrangements and understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof.

[Signature Page Follows]
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If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding, please sign one copy of this LOA and return it
to me by electronic mail (.pdf). We look forward to a successful relationship.

GO MEAN GREEN!
Sincerely,

MEAN GREEN SPORTS PRAPERTIES, LLC
By: Learfield Communfations, LLC, its Member

7

By:

Greg Brown

President and Chief Executive Officer
Accepted and Agreed by:

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS

By:

Wren Baker
Vice President/Director of Athletics

By:

Neal Smatresk
University President
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If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding, please sign one copy of this LOA and return it
to me by electronic mail (.pdf). We look forward to a successful relationship.

GO MEAN GREEN!
Sincerely,

MEAN GREEN SPORTS PROPERTIES, LLC
By:  Learfield Communications, LLC, its Member

By:

Greg Brown

President and Chief Executive Officer
Accepted and Agreed by:

UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS

w”f/ £ }f . /
By: /£ X / s
Wren Baker 7
Vice President/Director of Athletics

By:

Neal Sm; ﬁ'}iﬁ
University Président
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EXHIBIT A
EXCLUSIVE WORLD-WIDE MULTI-MEDIA RIGHTS

University grants Learfield the exclusive, world-wide multi-media athletic rights as indicated in the body
of the LOA during the Term set forth therein, subject to the terms and conditions of the LOA. In addition
to the rights set forth in the body of the LOA, Learfield’s Multi-Media Rights include all commercially
viable and marketable rights around University athletics, including, but not limited to all radio programming
(live play-by-play, coaches’ call-in and magazine shows, daily reports, webcasts, satellite rights, etc.),
certain television rights (coaches’ television shows), publishing (game day programs, official newspapers,
schedule cards, schedule posters, etc. including at-event sales), OAS, hospitality, promotions and at-event
impact opportunities (Fan Fest-type events, headscts, backdrops, field goal nets, sideline rights, bench
rights, sampling, giveaways, contests, etc.), all athletic venue signage and promotion, use of certain marks
and logos on a non-exclusive basis, etc.

These rights include, but are not limited to, the following:

> Football and Men’s Basketball Game Programs/Roster cards
> All Other Sports Programs/Roster cards
» Official Athletic Publication
> Apogee Stadium Advertising and Sponsorship:
o Electronic ribbon-board fascia displays
Temporary signage
Videoboard sponsorship displays and promotions at all events
Tarps (on sidelines and/or end zone)
Team entry canopy signage (if available)
Public Address announcements at University athletic events
Press conference backdrops
Coaches’ headsets
Video board features, promotions, replay swipes, PSAs and billboards
Cold air balloon signage if and when available
Sideline equipment crates
Sideline cooling systems
Sideline employees (e.g., chain crew, managers, etc. clothing and equipment, if available)
Team Benches
Play Clock(s)
Mobile Applications and Wi-Fi Access/Splash Pages
Video board features, promotions, replay swipes, PSAs and billboards
Virtual Signage rights during telecasts, subject to any rights retained by the broadcasting entity
(e.g., GHSPN)
Main Scoreboard panels or positions
Any sideline and end zone sponsorship panels
Scoreboard tri-vision panels
Field-level signage and banners
Message Center Displays
Concourse Displays and signage
Plaza Areas
Stadium Gates and entrances
Marquee/video display outside of the Stadium
Goal Post padding signage
Digital Ribbon Board signage
Television monitors and screens

O 000000000000 O0OOU0oOCOoOO0o
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Restroom signage

The sponsorship sales rights for plastic cups, cup holders, souvenir cups, food containers, napkins,
plates, wrappers and the like

New Signage

Elevators in the Stadium

Lobby Areas in the Stadium

Learfield shall have the right to place logos on the field in the Stadium, subject to University
approval

Learfield shall have the right to place logos on the gates of the Stadium, subject to University
approval

o Other opportunities as reasonably approved by the University

UNT Coliseum Advertising and Sponsorship:

o All digital signage located in or about the Arena including the main scoreboard ad panels, auxiliary
boards, and fascia

Entrance or exit displays

Rights to University’s main scoreboard ad panels, auxiliary boards and fascia

Rights to LED displays

Any scorer’s table, press row or baseline table sponsorship panels (rotational digital or static)
Team bench signage, including chairbacks and kick plates

Message center displays

Video sponsorship displays

Public address announcements

Team entry canopies/signage

Basketball goal post padding subject to applicable requirements, including without limitation
University, Conference or NCAA rules, regulations and policies (collectively, “Applicable Rules™)
Backboard supports

Playing surface logo opportunities (based on Athletic Conference and NCAA rules and limitations)
Shot clock sponsorship panels subject to Applicable Rules

Static signage opportunities in and around concession areas, facility entries/exits, lobbies,
restrooms, concourses, portal entries/exits into seating areas

Concourse, concession and lobby tabling and displays

Temporary or permanent ad displays for special events

Courtside, rotational and permanent signage

Mezzanine permanent and rotational signage

End-wall permanent and rotational signage

Plastic souvenir cups and concession (food) containers subject to University’s existing agreements
with its pouring rights partner and/or concession provider(s) and any other applicable requirements,
including, without limitation, Athletic Conference or NCAA rules, regulations and policies.
LED and LDP displays

University, opposing team and scorer’s table chair back sponsorship

Press Backdrop

Blimp signage

Elevators in the Arena

Lobby Areas in the Arena

All concourse signage (including banners). Use of current University-branded backlist signage
must be approved by the University

o Learfield shall have the right to place logos on the court in the Arena, subject to University approval
o Other opportunities as reasonably approved by University

Other Sports Venues (any location used for intercollegiate events, both existing and future
buildings):

o Main scoreboard ad panels

O O O O 0]
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Temporary signage

Any sideline and end-line sponsorship panels

Message center displays

Public address announcements

University and opposing team bench and dugout signage

Field fence panel signage

Temporary or permanent playing surface logo opportunities

Static signage opportunities that either currently exist or which Learfield may elect to sell in and

around concession areas, facility entries/exits, restrooms, concourses, portal entries/exits into

seating areas

o Temporary signage and displays for special events

o Sideline equipment

o Plastic souvenir cups and concession (food) containers subject to University’s existing

arrangements with its pouring rights partner and/or concession provider(s) for all facilities and any

other applicable requirements, including without limitation University, Athletic Conference (or any

other conference with which University is affiliated during the Term) or NCAA rules, regulations

and policies

Press Backdrop (subject to University’s existing arrangements)

Elevators

Lobby Areas

o Other opportunities, subject in each case to prior approval by University

Other Athletic Facility Scoreboard and/or Videoboards

Athletic At-Event Hospitality

Athletic At-Event Impact (all sports and sports venues)

o Product Displays

o Sampling, Couponing and Product Distribution

o Title and Presenting Sponsorships as approved by University, which approval will not be
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned

o Pre-Game, Post-Game, Half-Time and Timeout Promotions, Contests, Mascot Appearances,
Corporate Recognition/Presentations and/or Giveaways

o Tailgate Areas/Fan Fair

o Varsity Team Tournaments and Special Events

o Any additional or new at-event impact opportunities

Mean Green Sports Radio Network (all current and future forms of distribution)

Radio Play-by-Play

Coaches’ Radio Call-in Shows

Daily Report

Podcasts

Satellite and National Radio

Any additional or new programming or distribution

Television Programming

o Daily Report and/or Coaches’ Shows

o Pre-Season/Post-Season Specials, etc.

o Any additional or new television programming not subject to Conference or network agreements

Miscellaneous Sponsorship Opportunities

Schedule Cards, Posters and Ticket Backs

Sponsor IDs, In-Ticket Promotions, Brochures and Advertising Media

Media Guides

Ticket Mailer Inserts

Athletic Ticket Envelopes

Kids Club Sponsorship

O 0O O O O 0 OO0
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Email Blasts or linkable factors within existing University combined messages

Athletic Ticket Envelopes

Media Backdrops

Official (Advertising Category Exclusive) Sponsorships

Royalty-free Use of Marks and Logos for sponsorships and promotions but not for sale of a product

at retail

Any additional or new broadcast, print and/or internet programming

E-commerce (including but not limited to apparel, merchandise, DVDs, memorabilia, publications,

photos, videos, auctions) should any or all become available during the Term

o Live and Archived Audio/Video Subscription-based Streaming

o Live Stats should it become available during the Term

o E-Newsletters

Official Athletic Internet Site

o All revenue-generating sponsorship opportunities, which now or at any time during the Term may
exist on University’s OAS, including, but not limited to, all rights to sell sponsorships in the form
of company logos and messages on University’s OAS, audio and visual streaming of sponsorship
messages and direct internet access to other websites

o The right to make use of social media platforms including University’s Facebook, You Tube and
Twitter

o The right to use and monetize University’s Content (University game clips, highlights and live
audio of all University athletic events) permitted under current Athletic Conference rules which
University agrees to supply to Learfield at no cost to Learfield

Digital Media Rights

o All sponsorship rights associated with all University official athletic platforms including browser-
based websites, mobile web and mobile applications, social media channels such as Facebook,
Twitter and Instagram, e-mail and other digital marketing, in-venue digital screens and platforms
and all digital distribution of Content (“Digital Media Rights”).

o Right to represent University in all advertising and sponsorship opportunities related to any
University IPTV system or Wi-Fi/DAS system installed during the Term in any University-owned
athletic facility and to determine the provider of such services to the extent such rights are available
to University.

o Coaches’ shows.

Mobile/Wireless

o Advertising in all forms

o Live and Archived Audio/Video Subscription-based Streaming

o Live Stats

o Messaging (including but not limited to SMS, MMS, Alerts, Contests, Coupons, Polling,
Ringtones, Wallpaper)

o Mobile Website

o Mobile Apps and Wi-Fi Access/Splash Pages

Business-to-Business — While Learfield’s Multi-Media Rights do not include the right to sell

sponsorships in connection with University’s campus-wide business relationships (“Campus-wide

Opportunities™), University recognizes that Learfield’s marketing capabilities can provide additional

o 0O 0 0 O

o O

sources of revenue to University that might not otherwise be obtained but not for Learfield’s
involvement. University therefore agrees to strongly consider working with Learfield to establish a
business relationship which allows Learfield to obtain Campus-wide Opportunities for University, but
University shall not be obligated to do so.

Merchandising Opportunities

o Affinity Products and Specialty Merchandise

o Highlight Videos/CDs/DVDs from seasons covered by the Term
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Committee: Finance & Facilities

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 27, 2017

Title: Delegation of Authority to Extend Agreement with Improving Enterprises

Background:

In September 2011, UNT Health Science Center (UNTHSC) was awarded a grant from the
National Institute of Justice (NI1J), through the U.S. Department of Justice, to manage and
administer the National Missing and Unidentified Persons System (NamuUs) through FY2012.
This award was extended each year through FY2016, and in September 2016, a new award was
made to UNTHSC to manage NamUs through FY2017.

The FY2015, 2016, and 2017 NamUs awards all included funding to upgrade the existing NamUs
software technology, a project referred to as NamUs 2.0, and to create a brand new NamuUs
Critical Incident (CI) system to assist emergency responders tasked with victim accounting and
victim identification needs arising from natural disasters, terrorist attacks, and other critical
incidents. On November 19-20 of 2015, the Board of Regents authorized UNTHSC to enter into
an agreement for twelve months of programming services in support of the NamUs 2.0 project.
UNTHSC's selected vendor, Improving Enterprises, began development work in January 2016.

UNTHSC would like to extend its contract with Improving Enterprises for twelve additional
months of software design and development services. UNTHSC is not seeking an increase in the
maximum amount to be spent on this contract, which is capped at $2,400,000.

Financial Analysis/History:

Revenue from the NamUs award was $2,600,000 in FY12 and grew to $5,000,000 in FY16. An
additional award of $4,700,000 was received for FY2017, making a total of $21,000,000 in
awards to UNTHSC to manage NamUs and deliver new NamUs technologies to stakeholders.

Revenue under the FY2017 NamUs award includes $1,870,838 designated for the NamUs 2.0
and CI projects, and an additional $500,000 remaining from FY2016 to be utilized for the
NamUs 2.0 and CI projects, for a total of $2,370,838. This upgrade project is completely grant
funded.

Successfully completing planned elements of the NamUs 2.0 upgrade project in FY2017 will
significantly increase the likelihood of continued NamUs awards to UNTHSC, with additional
funding for continued system enhancements after the first market releases of NamUs 2.0 and
Cl.

Digitally signed by Gregory R. Anderson
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Institution Chief Financial Officer
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Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
J a n et DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT

System, ou=Vice Chancellor for

Finance,

email=janet.waldron@untsystem.
Waldronz::

Date: 2017.05.08 09:44:32 -05'00'

Vice Chancellor for Finance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Nancy S. Footer s

Date: 2017.05.1110:14:26 -05'00°

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

Extension of contract for twelve additional months.

Recommendation:
It is recommended that the UNT System Board of Regents delegate authority to the Chancellor

to extend the agreement with Improving Enterprises for the NamUs 2.0 and CI software
development project for twelve additional months.

Recommended By: Claire Peel

Interim Provost

Digitally signed by Dr. Michael R.
Williams

D r. M i C hae I DN: cn=Dr. Michael R. Williams,

0=UNT Health Science Center,
a1 ou=President,
R. W| | I IAMS  email=michaelwilliams@unthsc.
edu, c=US

Date: 2017.05.05 11:40:12 -05'00"

President

Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
DN: cn=Lee Jackson, 0=UNT System,
L J k ou=O0ffice of the Chancellor,
ee a C SO n email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,
c=Us
Date: 2017.05.09 17:32:32 -05'00"

Chancellor
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Board Order

Title: Delegation of Authority to Extend Agreement with Improving Enterprises

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, UNT Health Science Center (UNTHSC) provides daily management and
administration of the National Missing and Unidentified Persons System (NamuUs), and

Whereas, the NamUs system is in need of a technology upgrade and UNTHSC has been
awarded the funds to manage and complete the NamUs 2.0 and Critical Incident software
development project, and

Whereas, UNTHSC desires to extend its agreement with Improving Enterprises for twelve
additional months of software design and development services to complete the planned NamUs
technology upgrades,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. Delegation of authority to the Chancellor to extend the agreement with Improving
Enterprises for software design and development services to support the National
Missing and Unidentified Persons System (NamUs) 2.0 and Critical Incident software
development projects for up to twelve additional months.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents

SYSTEM

Page 248 of 697



Committee: Finance & Facilities

Board Briefing

Date Filed: May 3, 2017

Title: Authorization to Serve on Outside Board

Background

In August 2016, in compliance with Regents Rule 05.800, Service on Outside Boards, the Board
authorized Lawrence E. (Joe) Allred, PhD, UNTHSC Associate Vice President for Research and
Innovation, to serve on the board of Cx Precision Medicine, Inc., and it was determined that his
service on this board is of substantial benefit to UNTHSC and UNT System. Dr. Allred will retire
from UNTHSC on May 31, 2017.

UNTHSC seeks to receive board authorization for Gregory R. Anderson, Executive Vice President
for Finance and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) to replace Dr. Allred as UNTHSC’s appointee to the
Cx Precision Medicine, Inc. board.

UNT Health Science Center owns intellectual property developed by Dr. Sid O’'Bryant and other
co-inventors related to the diagnosis and treatment of Alzheimer’s disease. These technologies
are in the process of being licensed into a new company, Cx Precision Medicine, Inc. (Cx) that is
being formed expressly for the purpose of commercializing those technologies by bringing the
goods and services the technologies will enable, into the commercial practice of healthcare.
Because of the work done in the creation and founding of the new company and the licensing of
technologies into the company, UNTHSC will own an initial amount of equity in the form of
common stock equivalent to about 34% of the total issued shares prior to the first major round of
funding.

The benefits UNTHSC will receive from Mr. Anderson’s service on the Cx board will derive directly
from his ability to represent the interests of UNTHSC and assist in supporting the success of Cx
consistent with his responsibilities as an employee of UNTHSC and the fiduciary responsibilities
of being a member of a board of directors. UNTHSC will derive substantial financial benefits
resulting from the success of the company due to the relatively large amount of equity and
royalties that will be earned from the commercialization of the licensed technologies from
UNTHSC. The success of Cx will likely also result in sponsored research back into UNTHSC and
result in a significant enhancement of public reputation for a high quality of science at UNTHSC.
Mr. Anderson would serve on the board in the course and scope of his employment in his position
at UNTHSC and would receive no compensation for these services.

Financial Analysis/History:

UNTHSC invested more than $100,000 in the accumulated intellectual property protection of Dr.
O’Bryant’s multiple technologies and a substantial amount of time and effort by the Office of
Research Development and Commercialization. Cx Precision Medicine will assume the ongoing
costs of the patenting expenses and will reimburse the sunk-in expenses upon receiving at least
$3 million in capital funding.
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Digitally signed by Gregory R. Anderson
regory R. seerass,

of North Texas Health Science Center,

ou=Executive Vice President/CFO,

email=gregory.anderson@unthsc.edu, c=US
n e r S O n Date: 2017.05.09 08:50:48 -05'00"

Institution Chief Financial Officer

Digitally signed by Janet Waldron
a n e DN: cn=Janet Waldron, o=UNT System,

ou=Vice Chancellor for Finance,
email=janet.waldron@untsystem.edu,
Waldron 2=
v, Dater2617:05- 12 16:24:05-05'00"

Vice Chancellor for Finance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel.

Nancy S. Footer

Date: 2017.05.12 09:48:48 0500

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:
Immediately upon Board approval

Recommendation:

The President recommends that the Board of Regents find that service by Mr. Gregory R.
Anderson, Executive Vice President for Finance and CFO, on the board of Cx Precision Medicine,
Inc. is of substantial benefit to the UNT System and to the University of North Texas Health
Science Center, and further that the Office of General Counsel may seek a determination from the
Attorney General of Texas regarding representation and indemnification of Gregory R. Anderson
at such time as litigation relating to his service on the board of Cx Precision Medicine is reasonably

antiCipated' Digitally signed by Dr. Michael R.
Dr. Michael exexoc
R. Williams srarmein
Recommended By:
President

Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
DN: cn=Lee Jackson, 0=UNT System,
L J k ou=O0ffice of the Chancellor,
e e a C S O n email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,
c=Us
Date: 2017.05.09 17:33:44 -05'00"

Chancellor
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Board Order

Title: Authorization to Serve on Outside Board

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the Board of Regents has the authority pursuant to Regents Rule 05.800, Service on
Outside Boards, to determine whether an employee’s service on an outside board is of substantial
benefit to UNTHSC, and if so, to authorize the Office of General Counsel to seek representation
and indemnification for the employee in the event litigation arises relating to service on these
boards, and

Whereas, Lawrence E. (Joe) Allred, PhD, Associate Vice President for Research and Innovation
was authorized by UNTS Board of Regents to serve on CX Precision Medicine, Inc. board in
August 2016 but is retiring from UNTHSC at May 31, 2017, and

Whereas, UNTHSC requests authorization for Gregory Anderson, UNTHSC Executive Vice
President for Finance and Chief Financial Officer, to replace Dr. Allred on the Cx Precision
Medicine, Inc. board.

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1 Service by Mr. Gregory R. Anderson, Executive Vice President for Finance and Chief
Financial Officer, at UNT Health Science Center, on the board of Cx Precision Medicine,
Inc. is of substantial benefit to UNT System and to the University of North Texas Health
Science Center.

2. Mr. Gregory R. Anderson is authorized to serve on the board of Cx Precision
Medicine, Inc. as a part of his duties and responsibilities as Executive Vice President for
Finance and Chief Financial Officer at UNTHSC.

3. The UNT System Office of General Counsel may seek a determination from the
Attorney General of Texas regarding representation and indemnification of Gregory R.
Anderson at such time as litigation relating to his service on the board of Cx Precision
Medicine, Inc. is reasonably anticipated.

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions
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BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents
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MINUTES

BOARD OF REGENTS
Audit Committee
February 23, 2017

The Audit Committee of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System convened
on Thursday, February 23, 2017, in Founders Hall, Room 138, at the University of North Texas at
Dallas, 7300 University Hills Blvd., Dallas, Texas, with the following members in attendance:
Regents Glen Whitley, Don Potts, Rusty Reid, and Laura Wright.

There being a quorum present, the meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman Whitley
at 4:06 p.m. The minutes of the November 17-18, 2016, Audit Committee meeting were approved
on a 4-o0 vote following a motion by Regent Rusty Reid seconded by Regent Laura Wright. The
Committee Charter and Annual Schedule were reviewed. There were no comments or
changes made.

The Committee received two briefings from the UNT System Chief Audit Executive, Tracy Grunig.
The first was a Report of Audit Activities. The second was an update on the UNT System
Enterprise Audit Report Inventory.

Committee Chairman Whitley noted there was one background report. There were no questions.

There being no further business, the Committee meeting adjourned at 4:25 p.m.

Submitted By:

RW L. /-/zzggwii‘

Rosemary R. Haggett
Board Secretary

Date: 2¥Y1larch. G, 2017

Audit Committee

University of North Texas System
Board of Regents Meeting
February 23, 2017
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MINUTES

BOARD OF REGENTS
Audit Committee
May 1, 2017

The Audit Committee of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System convened
on Monday, May 1, 2017 in Room 712, UNT System Building, 1901 Main St, Dallas, TX with the
following committee members in attendance: Regents Don Potts, Rusty Reid, Glen Whitley, and
Laura Wright. Regent Al Silva was also present for part of the meeting.

There being a quorum present, the meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman, Regent
Glen Whitley, at 2:40 p.m.

Ben Kohnle, Partner at Grant Thornton, briefed the Committee on the External Audit of the
UNT System FY 2016 Consolidated Annual Financial Statements.

There being no further business, Regent Potts made a motion for adjournment, which Regent
Reid seconded. The motion was approved and the Audit Committee meeting adjourned at 4:17
p.m.

Submitted By:

Rosemary R. Hédggett
Board Secretary

Date: Mﬁuyﬂ 8, 2017

Audit Committee

University of North Texas System
Board of Regents

May 1, 2017
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Committee: Audit

Board Briefing

Date Filed: April 7, 2017

Title: Acceptance of the Externally Audited UNT System FY16 Consolidated Annual
Financial Report

Background:

Grant Thornton will present results of the External Audit of UNT System FY 16

Consolidated Annual Financial Report. The UNT System Audit Committee Charter, adopted
February 19, 2015 established a responsibility for the Audit Committee to recommend to the
Board of Regents action related to an externally audited Consolidated Annual Financial Report.

Financial Analysis/History:

The Board of Regents directed management to obtain an external audit of the FY 16
Consolidated Annual Financial Report. Digitally signed by Janet Waldron

DN: cn=Janet Waldron, 0o=UNT System,

Ja n et Wa | d ro n ::::\.lic? Chancellor for Finance,

I .waldro edu, c=US

Date: 2017.05.09 09:30:56 -05'00"

Vice Chancellor for Finance

Legal Review:

This item has been reviewed by General Counsel. Nancy S. Footer

Vice Chancellor/General Counsel

Schedule:

The External Audit Opinion of UNT System’s FY 16 Consolidated Annual Financial Report will
be included in the System’s annual report upon approval.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Regents accept the Externally Audited UNT
System FY16 Consolidated Annual Financial Report, and direct that the External Audit Opinion
Letter be included in the System’s Annual Report.

Digitally signed by Tracy C. Grunig
ra Cy . DN: cn=Tracy C. Grunig, o=University of

North Texas System, ou=Internal Audit,

email=tracy.grunig@untsystem.edu,

Recommended By: Grunig o 0511 a7 o500
UNTS Chief Audit Executive

SYSTEM
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Digitally signed by Lee Jackson
ee DN: cn=Lee Jackson, 0o=UNT System,

ou=0ffice of the Chancellor,

email=lee jackson@untsystem.edu,

Jackson &=
Date: 2017.05.09 16:59:56 -05'00"

Chancellor

Attachments Filed Electronically:

e Grant Thornton Presentation on the External Audit of UNT System FY16 Consolidated
Annual Financial Report.

e Final External Audit Opinion of UNT System FY16 Consolidated Annual Financial
Report (Grant Thornton)

e Management Representation Letter

SYSTEM
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Board Order

Title: Acceptance of the Externally Audited UNT System FY16 Consolidated Annual
Financial Report

At an official meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texas System properly
posted and held on May 18-19, 2017, pursuant to a motion made by Regent and
seconded by Regent , the Board approved the motion presented below:

Whereas, the UNT System Audit Committee Charter, adopted February 19, 2015 established a
responsibility for the Audit Committee to recommend to the Board of Regents that the UNT
System Consolidated Annual Financial Report be externally audited, and

Whereas, the external audit firm, Grant Thornton, LLP, conducted an audit of UNT System

FY 16 Consolidated Annual Financial Statements, and provided an unmodified opinion, which is
the best possible opinion, and

Whereas, the Board of Regents has reviewed the FY 16 Consolidated Annual Financial

Report and the final audit opinion of the UNT System FY 16 Consolidated Annual Financial
Report,

Now, Therefore, The Board of Regents authorizes and approves the following:

1. Acceptance of the Externally Audited UNT System FY16 Consolidated Annual
Financial Report

2. Inclusion of the Audit Opinion letter in the final UNT System FY16 Consolidated
Annual Financial Report

VOTE: ayes nays abstentions

BOARD ACTION:

Attested By: Approved By:
Rosemary R. Haggett, Secretary Brint Ryan, Chairman
Board of Regents Board of Regents

SYSTEM
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Y GrantThornton

Presentation to the Audit Committee of the
Board of Regents — 2016 Audit Results

University of North Texas System ("System")

May 1, 2017

Attendees:
Ben Kohnle — Partner
Juliet Williams — Experienced Manager

)
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Our Values are CLEARR

To achieve our global vision, we capitalize on our strengths by
embracing the following values:

+ Unite through global Collaboration

Demonstrate Leadership in all we do

» Promote a consistent culture of Excellence

Act with Agility
+ Ensure deep Respect for people
+ Take Responsibility for our actions

Our values serve as the foundation of each step we take toward achieving our
vision. They guide our decision-making and provide a framework for our people
to make correct and appropriate choices.

)
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Our Responsibilities

We are responsible for:

Performing an audit under US GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards of the financial statements prepared by management,
with your oversight

Forming and expressing an opinion about whether the financial
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects in
accordance with US GAAP

Forming and expressing an opinion about whether certain
supplementary information is fairly stated in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Reading other information and considering whether it is

materially inconsistent with the financial statements

» Read the other information (we do not corroborate it)

 Consider whether it is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements

+ (Call to management's attention identified material
inconsistencies or misstatements of fact, if any

Pa
Presentation to the Audit Committee of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texaggystem

Communicating specific matters to you on a timely basis; we do
not design our audit for this purpose.

An audit provides reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
financial statements do not contain material misstatements due
to fraud or error. It does not relieve you or management of your
responsibilities. Our respective responsibilities are described
further in our engagement letter.

261
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Those Charged with Governance
and Management Responsibilities

Those Charged with Governance
Those charged with governance are responsible for:

Overseeing the financial reporting process

Setting a positive tone at the top and challenging the System’s
activities in the financial arena

Discussing significant accounting and internal control matters
with management

Informing us about fraud or suspected fraud, including its views
about fraud risks

Informing us about other matters that are relevant to our audit,
such as:

- System strategies and related business risks
that may result in heightened risks of material
misstatement

- Matters warranting particular audit attention

- Significant communications with regulators

- Matters related to the effectiveness of internal
control and your oversight responsibilities

- Your views regarding our current
communications and your actions regarding
previous communications

Management
Management is responsible for:

Pa
Presentation to the Audit Committee of the Board of Regents of the University of North Texaggystem

Preparing and fairly presenting the financial statements in
accordance with US GAAP

Designing, implementing, evaluating, and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting
Communicating significant accounting and internal control
matters to those charged with governance

Providing us with unrestricted access to all persons and all
information relevant to our audit

Informing us about fraud, illegal acts, significant deficiencies,
and material weaknesses

Adjusting the financial statements, including disclosures, to
correct material misstatements

Informing us of subsequent events

Providing us with written representations

262
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Materiality

Materiality is the magnitude of an omission or
misstatement that likely influences a reasonable person's
judgment. It is ordinarily evaluated against the relevant
financial statement benchmark.

We believe that total assets is the relevant benchmark
for the System.

Financial statement items greater than materiality are
within our audit scope. Other accounts or classes of
transactions less than materiality may be in our scope if
qualitative risk factors are present (for example, related
party relationships or significant unusual transactions).

)
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Use of the Work of Others

Specialists

The audit team utilized an actuary within our Compensation and Benefits Consulting Practice to review the work of actuaries used by the System.

Subcontractors

Additionally, the audit team received direct assistance from two independent subcontractors during our audit testing, Serna & Company, P.C. and
Gradient Solutions. This work was reviewed and managed by the Grant Thornton engagement team.

Assistance was provided by Serna & Company related to the testing of identified balances using procedures provided by and reviewed by GT
personnel.

Gradient Solutions specializes in the use of computer data acquisition and analysis primarily for governmental entities. Assistance was provided
by Gradient Solutions related to the performance of computer data acquisition and analysis in the areas of vendor, disbursements, human
resources and payroll.

Other Auditors

Our auditor's report on the System makes reference to the audit performed by Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay for the University of North
Texas Foundation, Inc.
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Significant Risks

The following provides an overview of the areas of significant audit focus based on our risk assessments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Tuition and fee revenue, discounts and allowances

Investments and investment return Federal, State and Other grant revenue

Accounts receivable and other assets Legislative appropriations

Capital assets, depreciation and amortization Other revenues

Notes, loans and revenue bonds payable Operating expenses

Accounts payable and other liabilities Intercomponent Transfers

Payroll and related liabilities Implementation of new accounting standard

Net position classification

)
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Result of Financial Statement Audit

Unmodified 'clean’ opinion

No scope limitations

Open and effective communications with management

No unresolved audit issues

Pa
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Audit timeline

P FY15 FY16 Proposed FY17

Planning/Interim Dec. 2015 Nov. — Dec. 2016 June - July 2017
Final fieldwork April - Aug. 2016 Feb. — April 2017 Nov. 2017 - Jan. 2018
Issue financial statements ~ August 2016 May 2017 February 2018
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Summary of Passed Adjustments ($000s)

*  Anentry was identified by management during the closing process, related to the FY16 audit, for which the financial statements are not

being revised.
»  The magnitude of the passed adjustment by financial state

ment category is as follows:

| Increase (Decrease) to:

2016 Income
Description Assets Liabilities Net Position Effect
Construction in Progress - Nondepreciable 2,026,154
Fumiture & Equipment - Depreciable (1,688,692)
Bldg/Bldg improvements - Depreciable (337,462)
Reversing Effect of PY Passed Adjustment (2,129,163)
Total Passed Adjustments '$ - $ - 3 - $ (2,129,163)
FY2016 Report Balance, before Passed Adjustments 1,829,428,686 1,086,495,069 742,933,618 47,417,425
% Impact on Report Balance 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -4.49%

+ Details of the above entry can be found in the management representation letter
One entry was not included in the above as there was no GL account impact, only a reclass between NACUBO class codes. Details

of this entry are included in the management representation letter

Management believes, and we concur, that the impact of not making this adjustment to the System's financial statements is

appropriate, given the fact that the cumulative effect is immaterial

Page
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Internal Control Matters

Our responsibility

Obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement

Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal
control

We express no opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
Control deficiencies that are of a lesser magnitude than a significant
deficiency will be communicated to management.

Definitions

+ A deficiency in internal control ("control deficiency") exists
when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect,
misstatements on a timely basis.

» A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the System's annual
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

+ Asignificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those responsible for oversight of the System's financial
reporting.

)
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Outflow Data Analysis — Computer Data Acquisition and Analysis Work

Our audit included data analysis which focused on the outflow side of the System's operations and involved the
following data files:

» Vendor Data Information

 Disbursement Data Information

* Human Resources and Payroll Data Information

A presentation summarizing the result of this analysis, and thoughts to optimize the results of the analysis, were
presented to the University of North Texas System management team on April 20, 2017.
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Other Required Communications

Disagreements with management

We had no disagreements with management, whether or not satisfactorily resolved, about matters that individually or in the aggregate could be
significant to the System's financial statements or the auditor's report.

Management's consultations with other accountants

We are not aware of any consultations by management with other accountants regarding accounting or auditing matters. Management continues
to use Deloitte on a limited basis to assist with certain bookkeeping services.

Difficulties encountered during the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties, including:

« Significant delays in providing information

Unnecessarily brief time to complete the audit
Unavailability of expected information or System personnel
Restrictions imposed by management

« Extensive unexpected effort to obtain evidence
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Quality of Accounting Practices
and Alternative Treatments
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Quality of Accounting Practices
and Alternative Treatments

Accounting policies

Accounting principles used by the System are considered appropriate in all material respects.

Modifications to the auditor's report

There were no modifications to the audit report.

Accounting estimates

* Valuation of investments

+ Contributions receivable

+ Allowance for uncollectible accounts, including patient receivables

« Accruals for self insurance and pension plans based on actuarial assumptions

We performed tests to satisfy ourselves that these amounts were free from material misstatements.

» We assessed the footnote disclosures and consolidated financial statements for clarity and completeness.
 Footnote disclosures in the financial statements appear overall to be neutral, consistent, and clear.

)
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Selected pronouncements effective for the year ended August 31, 2016 or

subsequent periods

ASU

GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement
and Application

Effective Date

Financial Reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2015. This statement
was implemented in the current year.

Impact

Addresses accounting and financial
reporting issues related to fair value
measurements, provides guidance for
determining fair value measurement
for financial reporting purposes, and
also provides guidance for applying
fair value to certain investments and
disclosures related to all fair value
measurements.

GASB 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other than Pensions

Fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2017

Addresses accounting and financial
reporting for OPEB that is provided to
the employees of state and local
government entities.
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Selected pronouncements effective for the year ended August 31, 2016 or
subsequent periods (continued)

ASU

GASB 79, Certain External
Investment Pools and Pool
Participants

Effective Date

Financial Reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2015. This statement
was implemented in the current year.

Impact

Addresses accounting and financial
reporting for certain external
investment pools and pool
participants. Provides guidance
around disclosures related to such
pools and their participants.

GASB 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest
Agreements

Financial Reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2016.

Addresses accounting and financial
reporting for irrevocable split-interest
agreements by providing recognition
and measurement guidance for
situations in which a government is a
beneficiary of the agreement
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Selected pronouncements effective for the year ended August 31, 2016 or

subsequent periods (continued)

ASU

GASB 82, Pension Issues — an
amendment of GASB Statements NO.
67, No. 68, and No. 73

Effective Date

Financial Reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2016.

Impact

Addresses certain issues that have
been raised with respect to
Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No.
73.

GASB 85, Omnibus 2017

Financial Reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2017.

Addresses practice issues that have
been identified during implementation
and application of certain GASB
Statements, including issues related
to blending component units, goodwill,
fair value measurement and
application, and postemployment
benefits (pensions and other
postemployment benefits)
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Commitment to Promote Ethical and
Professional Excellence

We are committed to promoting ethical and professional excellence.
To advance this commitment, we have put in place a phone and
Internet-based hotline system.

The Ethics Hotline (1.866.739.4134) provides individuals a means to
call and report ethical concerns.

The EthicsPoint URL link

* Can be found on our internal website

» Can be accessed from our external website
(https://secure.ethicspoint.com/domain/en/report_custom.asp?clie
ntid=15191)

Disclaimer: EthicsPoint is not meant to act as a substitute for a
company's "whistleblower" obligations.
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) GrantThornton

This communication is intended solely for the
information and use of management and the
Audit Committee of the Board of Regents of
the University of North Texas System and is
not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.
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UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS
SYSTEM

CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

For the fiscal year ended August 31, 2016

DALLAS, TEXAS

Lee Jackson, Chancellor
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May 1, 2017

Brint Ryan, Chairman, UNT System Board of Regents
Don Potts, Vice Chairman, UNT System Board of Regents
Glen Whitley, Chairman Audit Committee

Board of Regent Members

University of North Texas System

1901 Main Street

Dallas, Texas 75201

Dear Chairman Ryan, Vice Chairman Potts, Chairman Whitley
and Board of Regents

We are pleased to submit the audited Consolidated Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
University of North Texas System (UNTS) for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2016. This report
is in compliance with TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN 2101.011 and in accordance with the
requirements established by the Comptroller of Public Accounts and Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments.

In fiscal year 2016, the University of North Texas System employed over 10,000 people,
educated over 42,000 students, and awarded more than 9,200 degrees. With a total annual
economic impact of over $5.2 billion, the System is a robust contributor to the vitality and
growth of the region, and to the prosperity and culture of the state. Rooted in the 125-year
history of our flagship institution in Denton, UNTS continues to innovate, to excel, and to serve.

The University of North Texas, renowned for its arts and music programs and built on a history
of teacher training, business education, and liberal arts, is also ranked among the 115 top-tier
research universities in the latest Carnegie Classification list. The university has been named
one of America’s 100 Best College Buys for 20 consecutive years, a ranking based on having a
high-achieving freshman class and affordable tuition. The Princeton Review continually names
UNT as a Best in the West school and Forbes has listed UNT as an America's Top College for
eight consecutive years. UNT has 15 programs ranked in the Top 100 in the nation by U.S. News
& World Report.

UNT Health Science Center at Fort Worth is one of the nation’s premier graduate academic
medical centers and is composed of five schools that specialize in patient-centered education,
research and health care. UNTHSC’s dedication to primary care has received national
recognition for the 15th consecutive year in U.S. News & World Report’s annual ranking of
medical schools. The university invests $40 million in annual research expenditures — a figure
that has approximately doubled since 2006.
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UNT Dallas, the only public, doctoral granting comprehensive university in the City of Dallas —
the hub of the State’s most densely populated region — offers bachelors, masters and a juris
doctor degree. Enrollment has increased since its inception and now includes the UNT Dallas
College of Law, a distinctive new school dedicated to providing affordable access to education
with an annual tuition that is significantly lower than all other law schools, public or private, in
Texas.

In 2015, the 84" Texas Legislature reaffirmed its commitment to UNTS and its institutions by
increasing funding by more than $70 million dollars for 2016 and 2017 for instruction and
operations, infrastructure and capital projects, research, and graduate medical education.
Unique strengths of UNT System component institutions are also recognized and funded,
including: the UNT Health Science Center’s Institute for Patient Safety and Preventable Harm;
its forensics program, the most advanced in the country; and the University of North Texas’s
Texas Academy of Mathematics and Science, an important pipeline for STEM education, and
one of the many ways that UNT advances science, math, engineering and technology.

We are committed to being good stewards of the resources entrusted to us by the State of Texas
and by students and their families, and we hold ourselves accountable for the wise and
appropriate use of those resources. UNT System’s externally-audited consolidated annual
financial report serves as a testament to the work we’ve done to ensure that our stewardship,
accountability, and financial viability are just as strong and important to us as our academic
services themselves.

Respectfully,

Vice Chancellor for Finance, UNT System

cc: Lee F. Jackson, Chancellor
Dr. Neal Smatresk, President UNT
Dr. Michael Williams, President UNTHSC
Robert Mong, President UNT Dallas
Bob Brown, Vice President for Finance and Administration, UNT
Greg Anderson, Executive Vice President and CFO, UNTHSC
Dan Edelman, Executive Vice President for Administration and CFO, UNT Dallas
Tracy Grunig, Chief Audit Executive, UNT System
Nancy Footer, Vice Chancellor and General Counsel, UNT System

1901 MAINSTREET | DALLAS, TEXAS 75201 | TEL 214.752.8585|FAX 214.752.8827
WWW.UNTSYSTEM.EDU
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Regents
University of North Texas System

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely presented
component unit of the University of North Texas System (the “System”) as of and for the year ended August 31,
2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the System’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the University of North Texas Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), a discretely
presented component unit. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished
to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Foundation, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Aunditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and
the discretely presented component unit of the System as of August 31, 2016, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other matters

Reguired supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 11 through 20, and Required Supplemental Information on pages 67, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. This required supplementary information is the responsibility of management.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These limited procedures consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, dated May 1, 2017, on our
consideration of the System’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the System’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dallas, Texas
May 1, 2017
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UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2016

Introduction

The University of North Texas System (the “System”) was established by the 76th Legislature and legislative funding
was provided for the fiscal year beginning September 1, 1999. The System is an agency of the State of Texas and is
currently comprised of the University of North Texas System Administration (“System Administration”), established
1999, and three academic institutions funded by the Legislature: the University of North Texas (“UNT”), established
1890; the University of North Texas Health Science Center at Fort Worth (“HSC”), established 1970; and the
University of North Texas at Dallas (“UNTD”), established 1999.

The System serves the North Texas area, boosting economic activity in the region by over $5.2 billion annually.
Approximately 43,000 students are enrolled in undergraduate, graduate and professional programs. The System
awarded more than 9,200 degrees in 2015, including the largest number of Master's and Doctoral degrees in the
region. The System has a network of over 360,000 alumni with more than 237,000 alumni living in the Dallas-Fort
Worth region. The System is governed by a nine-member Board of Regents appointed by the Governor of Texas and
confirmed by the Texas State Senate. Three members are appointed every odd-numbered year for six-year terms.
In addition, the Governor appoints a non-voting Student Regent for a one-year term.

Financial Highlights and Overview of the Financial Statements

The objective of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”) is to provide an overview of the financial
position and activities of the System for the year ended August 31, 2016, with selected comparative information for
the year ended August 31, 2015. The MD&A was prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying financial statements and notes. The emphasis of discussion about these financial statements will
focus on current year data. Unless otherwise indicated, years in the MD&A refer to the fiscal years ended August 31.

The System consolidated financial report includes three primary financial statements: the Statement of Net Position;
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows. The financial
statements of the System have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(“GAAP”) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).

In addition, the System consolidated financial report contains the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement
of Activities for the University of North Texas Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), a discretely presented component
unit. The Foundation is a separate nonprofit organization which is an essential component of the University of North
Texas program for university advancement and for the development of private sources of funding for capital
acquisition, operations, endowments, and other purposes relating to the mission of the University of North Texas.
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance with GAAP as prescribed by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”).

Financial Highlights

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the System exceeded its total liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources in 2016, resulting in a net position of $742.9 million. Unrestricted net position, which
may be used to meet the System’s future obligations, was $173.4 million, or 23.3% of total net position at
year end.

e In 2016, the System concluded the fiscal year with a positive change in net position of $47.4 million,
compared to a $16.4 million change in 2015. Major contributing factors related to this $31.0 million
increase include a $19.5 million increase in legislative, additional and capital appropriations from general
revenue and the Higher Education Fund (“HEF”). Additionally, the System had $10.7 million net increase in
the fair value of the System’s investments in 2016 that compares favorably to a $21.0 million loss reported
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UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TEXAS SYSTEM
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2016

in the prior year. These increases were offset by investments in plant operations at UNT that are not
capitalizable, reflected in an increase in materials and supplies and repairs and maintenance expense of
$8.8 million. Further, an increase of $3.4 million in depreciation and amortization expense was primarily
due to the completion of new buildings. In addition, an increase of $4.6 million in interest expense and
fiscal charges expense on capital asset financings is due to additional bond interest payments from 2015
issuances.

e The System continues to make significant investments, $88.4 million in 2016 alone, in numerous capital
projects across all institutions to strategically benefit students, faculty, and staff. The System has also
committed $457.0 million to fund, with assistance from State supported debt financing and HEF capital
appropriations, future capital asset additions and improvements over the next several years. These projects
are currently in various stages of completion. The “Capital Asset and Debt Administration” section of the
MD&A provides more details pertaining to these strategic investments.

Overview of the Financial Statements
These statements are prepared applying the following principles and standards:

e Reporting is on the full accrual basis of accounting. All current year revenues and expenses are recognized
when earned or incurred, regardless of when the cash is received or disbursed.

e Depreciation and amortization expense on capital assets is reported as an operating expense on the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. The historical cost of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and amortization, is reported on the Statement of Net Position.

e Revenuesand expenses are categorized as operating or nonoperating. Revenues from state appropriations,
gifts, and investment income are reported as nonoperating revenue in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 35, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for Public Colleges and
Universities, as amended.

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the System at fiscal year-end. From the data
presented, readers of this statement are able to determine the assets available to continue the operations of the
System. They are also able to determine what the System owes to vendors, investors and lending institutions. Finally,
the Statement of Net Position provides a picture of the net position and the availability of resources to cover the
expenses of the System. The change in net position is one indicator of whether the financial condition has improved
or worsened during the fiscal year when considered with nonfinancial facts, such as enrollment levels and the
condition of facilities.

The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows and net position
of the System as of the end of the year. The net position section of the statement is reported by three major
categories: 1) Net Investment in Capital Assets, 2) Restricted, and 3) Unrestricted. The Net Investment in Capital
Assets section represents the System’s equity in property, plant, and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization, capital asset related bonds and other debt items. Restricted Net Position is reported for amounts
subject to constraints that are either externally imposed or imposed by law. Amounts that are permanently held for
investment are divided into two categories: 1) Non-Expendable and 2) Expendable. Unrestricted Net Position is
available for any lawful purpose of the System.

12
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The following table reflects the Condensed Comparative Statement of Net Position for the System as of August 31,
2016 and 2015:

Condensed Comparative Statement of Net Position
As of August 31,2016 and 2015
(in thousands of dollars)
% Increase
2016 2015 (Decrease)
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets 544,986 498,910 9.2%
Non-Current Assets:
Capital Assets, Net 1,025,004 1,004,303 2.1%
Other Non-Current Assets 233,585 223,979 4.3%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 25,854 22,298 15.9%
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,829,429 1,749,490 4.6%
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Current Liabilities 407,949 376,985 8.2%
Non-Current Liabilities:
Bonded Indebtedness 514,046 362,782 41.7%
Other Non-Current Liabilities 142,377 282,173 (49.5%)
Deferred Inflows of Resourc